
Meeting:  Phase 2 Reservoir Project Agreement  2020 July 16 

Subject:  Reservoir Committee Meeting 1:00 PM –  4:15 PM 

Location:  Maxwel l  Project Off ice  

122 Old Highway 99W, Maxwel l ,  CA 95955  

 

Call  in:  1-408-418-9388  

Code:  146 077 0999 

WebEx Link 

Chair:  Thad Bettner (Glenn-Colusa I r r igation Dist r ict)  

Vice Chair :  Jeff Davis  (San Gorgonio Pass Water  Agency) 

Treasurer :  Jamie Traynham (Davis  Water Distr ict)  

AGEND A 

 
Status: Issued for  Use  Version: A 

Purpose: Informat iona l  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat 1 Subject  to change  Ref/File #:  

Caveat 2  Page: 1 o f  4 

 

Not ice:  Pursuant to Execut ive Orders  N -25-20 and N-33-20,  i s sued by Governor  

Newsom on March 12,  2020,  and guidance by the Cal i forn ia  Department of  Publ ic 

Health dated March 11,  2020,  th is  meet ing wi l l  be conducted by te leconference.  

The publ ic may attend the meet ing and offer  publ ic comments by  phone, us ing the 

cal l - in  number above. Members of  the Committee wi l l  part ic ipate by te leconference 

f rom other locat ions .  In  addit ion,  the publ ic and members  of  the Committee may, 

at thei r  d iscret ion,  at tend the meet ing at the S ites Pro ject  Author i ty ’s  Maxwel l  Off ice 

located at 122 Old Highway 99 West,  Maxwel l ,  CA 95955.  However ,  i t  i s  requested 

that everyone wear  fac ia l  cover ings  and the room wi l l  be arranged to ach ieve 

phys ical  d is tanc ing standards ,  and capacity  at  th is  s i te i s  therefore l im ited and wi l l  

not be suff ic ient to accommodate more than a few members of  the publ i c.   
 

ROLL CALL & CALL TO ORDER :    

 

•  Int roduct ions.  

•  Pledge of  Al legiance.  

•  Approval  of  July  16,  2020 Agenda.  

•  Announcement of  Closed Sess ion.  

•  Per iod for  Publ ic Comment .   

 

1.  Consent  Agenda:  Approximate start  t ime 1 :10 pm 

  
The following items have been reviewed by the Executive Director. To his knowledge, there is no opposition to the action. 
The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and 
separately considered at the request of any person.  
 

1 .1  Approve the June 18 ,  2020 Phase 2 Reservoi r  Committee Meet ing Minutes .  

 

1 .2  Accept the S i tes  Pro ject  Author i ty  T reasurer’ s  Report  as presented in  

At tachment 1 .2A.  (Attachment A)  

 

1 .3  Approve the Payment of Cla ims as presented in  Attachment 1 .3A with 

support ing detai ls  provided in  Attachment 1 .3B.  (Attachments  A,  B  & C)  

 

1.4  Consider approval of  Resolut ion No. 2020-03, providing al l  of the duties,  

authori t ies and responsibi l i t ies to the Authori ty’s Executive Director  that were 

previously  delegated to the Authori ty’s General  Manager.  (Attachment  A)  

https://meethdr.webex.com/meethdr/j.php?MTID=m36e2fd1a75ad0270795a288b393df7f2


Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 July 16  

   Page: 2 o f  4 

 

 

1 .5  Consider approval  of the revised changes to the Authori ty Consult ing Services 

Agreement. (Attachment  A)  

 

1 .6  Consider approval  of the Coordination, Engineering and Operations, 

Environmental  Planning and Permitt ing, and Joint Budget and Finance 

Workgroup Charter  Document updates.  (Attachment A & B)  

 

1.7  Consider approval  of  an amendment to Brown and Caldwel l ’s  (Project Controls)  

contract and task order scope of work and budget.   (Attachment A)  

 

2 .  Act ion I tems :        Approx imate star t  t ime 1:15 pm  

 

2 .1  Accept the Financial  Auditor’s  Report.  (At tachments  A & B)  

 

2 .2  Recommend approval of  release of  a Request for  Qual i f ications to in i t iate the 

procurement of legal services to support the acquis i t ion of  the water r ights  

permits and approvals needed to support  the project . (Attachment  A)  

 

3 .  Discuss ion and Informat ion I tems :                     Approx imate s tart  t ime 1:45 pm  

 

3.1 Review and comment on the condit ional ly  approved August 2019 Water  

Storage Pol icy and consideration of  updates to al ign with Value Planning.  

Recognize the storage pol icy serves as the foundational  document to 2021 key  

mi lestones of creating a Plan of Finance and Operations Plan and refer  

consideration of  updates to the ad hoc Engineerin g and Operations Workgroup.  

(Attachment  A)  

 

3.2 Review and comment on the approach being taken  for the model ing basel ine 

for the EIR/EIS analys is.  

 

3.3  Review and Comment  on Credit Reimbursement Pol icy  (Pol icy)  Revis ions.  

(Attachment  A)  

 

3.4  Receive status update on prel iminary part icipation levels ,  outreach efforts  

related to maintaining project subscr ipt ion in  Second Amendment to 2019 

Reservoi r  Project Agreement (Amendment 2) and the process of rebalancing 

part icipation.   (Attachment  A)  

 

3.5  Review and comment on the July  2020 Quarter ly  Update of  the plan and 

schedule for  addressing the Organizational Assessment  f indings and 

recommendations.  (Attachment  A)  

 

3.6   Review and comment on the Strategic Planning Session Draft  Agenda.  

(At tachment  A)  

 

4.  Reports :                                                            Approximate start  t ime  3:15  pm 

 

4.1  Member’s  Reports :  

 



Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 July 16  

   Page: 3 o f  4 

 

4.1.1  Chairpersons’  Report :   

 

Th i s  t ime i s  set  as ide to al low the Chai r/Co -Chai r  an opportuni ty  to 

disc lose/discuss  i tems re lated to the S i tes  Project.  

 

4 .1.2  Workgroup Chai rpersons’  Report :   

 

Th i s  t ime i s  set  as ide to al low the Workgroup Chai rperson s ’  an opportuni ty  to 

disc lose/discuss  i tems re lated to the S i tes  Project.  

 

4 .1.3  Reservoi r  Commit tee Part ic ipant Reports :    

 

Th i s  t ime i s  set  as ide to al low Representat ives or  thei r  Al ternates an opportuni ty  

to disc lose/di scuss i tems re lated to the S i tes  Project.  

 

4 .2  Execut ive Di rector ’s  Report s :  

•  Monthly  s tatus repor t .  (Attachment  A)   

 

5 .  Closed Sess ion  

 

5.1  Execut ive D i rector’ s  Three-Month Per formance Review  (Govt.  Code§ 

54954.5(e)) .   

 

6 .  Future Meet ings  and Schedules :                       Approx imate start  t ime 4:00  pm  

 

6 .1  Suggested Future Agenda I tems .  

 

6 .2  Upcoming meet ings :  

 

S t rategic P lanning Sess ion  

August  13,  2020  

TBD 
( Te leconferenc ing and v ideo l ink  w i l l  be prov ided as  an opt ion)  

 

Reservoir  Commit tee   

Fr iday,  August  21,  2020 9 :00 AM 

Si tes Pro ject  Off ice ,  122 Old Highway 99W Maxwel l ,  CA  95955  
( Te leconferenc ing and v ideo l ink  w i l l  be prov ided a s  an opt ion)  

 

Author i ty  Board  

Wednesday,  August  26 ,  2020 1:30pm 

Si tes Pro ject  Off ice  
( Te leconferenc ing and v ideo l ink  w i l l  be prov ided as  an opt ion)  

 

ADJOURN:  

 

PERIOD OF PUBLIC COMMENT :  Any person may speak about any subject of  concern,  

provided i t  i s  wi th in the jur i sd ict ion of  the Reservoi r  Commit tee and i s  not a l ready 

on today’s agenda.  The total  amount of  t ime al lot ted for  receiv ing such publ ic 



Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 July 16  

   Page: 4 o f  4 

 

communicat ion shal l  be l imi ted to a total  of  10 minutes per i ssue and each indiv idual 

or  group wi l l  be l im i ted to no more than 3 minutes each with in the 10 minutes 

a l located per i ssue.  Note:  No act ion shal l  be taken on comments made under th i s  

comment per iod.  

 

ADA COMPLIANCE:  Upon request ,  agendas wi l l  be made avai lable in  a l ternat ive 

formats to accommodate persons  wi th  disabi l i t ies .  In  addit ion,  any person wi th  a 

disabi l i ty  who requi res a modi f icat ion or  accommodation to part ic ipate or  attend 

th i s  meet ing may request  necessary  accommodation.  P lease make your request  to 

the Board Clerk ,  speci fy ing your d i sabi l i ty ,  the format in  which you would l ike  to 

receive th i s  Agenda and any other accommodation requi red no later  than 24 hours  

pr ior  to the s tart  of  the meet ing.  



Meeting:  Phase 2 Reservoir Project Agreement  2020 June 18 

Subject:  Reservoir Committee Meeting 1:00 PM –  4:00 PM 

Location:  Maxwel l  Project Off ice  

122 Old Highway 99W, Maxwel l ,  CA 95955  

 

Call  in:  1-408-418-9388  

Code:  146 887 2482  

WebEx Link 

Chair:  Thad Bettner (Glenn-Colusa I r r igation Dist r ict)  

Vice Chair :  Jeff Davis  (San Gorgonio Pass Water  Agency) 

Treasurer :  Jamie Traynham (Davis  Water Distr ict)  

MI NUT ES  

 
Status: Issued for  Use  Version: A 

Purpose: Informat iona l  Date: 2020 June 18  

Caveat 1 Subject  to change  Ref/File #:  

Caveat 2  Page: 1 o f  9 

 

CALL TO ORDER :    

 

V ice-Chai rman Davi s  cal led the meet ing to order  at 1:00 p.m.,  fol lowed by the 

Pledge of  Al legiance.  

 

ROLL CALL :  

 

Rol l  was cal led (See Attachment A) ,  which resul ted in  1 8 el ig ib le representat ives .  

Th i s  equated to 88% of  the cur rent  part ic ipat ion percentage being in  at tendance, 

which i s  g reater  than the 50% needed to have a quorum of the Reservoi r  

Committee.  

 

ATTENDANCE:  

 

See Attachment  B.  

 

AGENDA APPROVAL :  

I t  was moved by  Traynham, seconded by T incher  to approve the June 18,  2020 

Reservoi r  Commit tee Agenda, as p resented. Mot ion carr ied unanimously .  

 

PERIOD OF PUBL IC COMMENT :  

 

V ice-chai rman Davi s  cal led for  publ ic comment .  Hear ing none, he c losed the per iod 

of  publ ic comment .  

 

1.  CONSENT AGENDA:   

 V ice-Chai rman Davi s  made t ime to cons ider  Consent Agenda I tem Numbers  

 1 .1 through 1.3.  

  

 Ms .  Kao stated there was an inaccuracy in  the Reservoi r  Committee Minutes 

of  May 21,  2021,  page 3,  under Agenda I tem 2.1 B “Two -Step Cash Cal l  Process”  

second bul let  “…19 out of  21 agencies…”.  She stated i t  was actual ly  17 out of  

21 agencies .  Br ie f  d i scuss ion fol lowed.  

 

 Act ion :  I t  was moved by T incher,  seconded by Marks to approve Consent 

Agenda I tem Numbers 1 .1 through 1.3  as fol lows:  

 

https://meethdr.webex.com/meethdr/j.php?MTID=mf4ffcae7314f6a603309564d71431bb7


Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 June 18  

   Page: 2 o f  9 

 

1.1  Approve the May 21 ,  2020 Phase 2 Reservoi r  Committee Meet ing Minutes .   

 

1 .2  Accept the S i tes  Pro ject  Author i ty  T reasurer’ s  Report  as presented in  

At tachment 1 .2A.  (Attachment A)  

 

1 .3  Approve the Payment of Cla ims as presented in  Attachment 1.3A with 

support ing detai ls  provided in  Attachment 1 .3B.  (Attachments  A,  B  & C)  

 

 Mot ion carr ied unan imously .  

 

2.  Act ion I tems :        

 

2 .1  Mr.  Speser t  s tated staf f  worked with the Author i ty  Ad Hoc Legi s lat ive & 

Outreach Committee to develop a l i s t  of  State leve l  legis lat ive and 

government  pr ior i t ies  to focus on act iv i t ies  to better  a l ign  with key project  

mi lestones.  He stated fur ther  S tate act iv i t ies  would be implemented in  

coordinat ion with S i tes  Federal  government affa i r s/ legis lat iv e pr ior i t ies  and 

any adjustments would be taken back to the Reservoi r  Committee  (RC) and 

Author i ty  Board  (AB)  before being incorporated wi th updates  provided on 

s igni f icant progress .  D iscuss ion fol lowed.  

 

 Act ion :  I t  was moved by Cheng, seconded by T incher to accept the 2020-2021 

S i tes Pro ject  State Agency Legis lat ive Act iv i ty  P r ior i t ies .  (Attachment  A)   

 

 Mot ion carr ied unan imously .  

 

INTRODUCTIONS:  

 

Execut ive Di rector  Brown stated Introduct ions were not  taken at the beginning of  

the meet ing and requested that Int roduct ions be done at  th i s  t ime.  

 

The S i tes Staff ,  Consul tants  and members of  the publ ic int roduced themselves.  

 

2 .2  Approve the Author i ty’s  negot iat ion approach for  permit s  and operat ing 

agreements.  (Attachment  A)  

 

 Execut ive Di rector  B rown spoke to the need for  the Author i ty  Board and the 

Reservoi r  Commit tee to establ i sh an approach  on negot iat ing permit s  and 

agreement  approval s  to advance the project.  

 

 Ms. Forsythe provided an overv iew of the Author i ty ’s  negot iat ion approach for  

permit s  and operat ing agreements  wi th s tate and federal  agencies.  She spoke 

to the purpose of  the Workgroups,  Role of  the lead negot iator  and negot iat ing 

team as wel l  as member involvement.  D iscuss ion fol lowed.  

 

 Act ion :  I t  was moved by Nuedeck,  seconded by  Vanderwaal  to a pprove the 

Authori ty’s negotiat ion approach for  permits and operating agreements.  

 

 Mot ion carr ied unan imously .  

 

3.  Discuss ion and Informat ion I tems :  

 



Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 June 18  

   Page: 3 o f  9 

 

3.1 Receive status update on prel iminary part icipation levels ,  outreach efforts  

related to maintaining project subscr ipt ion in  Second Amendment to 2019 

Reservoi r  Project Agreement (Amendment 2) and the process of rebalancing 

part icipation.  (Attachment A, B & C)  

 

Mr. Robinette stated based on the soft cal l  survey and some informal responses, 

staff has a working assumption that project part icipation in the Sacramento 

Val ley wi l l  drop about 13,000 AF. He spoke to the fol lowing:  

•  Prel iminary Part icipation Levels .  

•  Outreach and Rebalancing.  

•  Schedule.  

•  Cash Cal l  T iming.  

•  Process for  a part icipant securing a posi t ion in  the part icipat ion queue 

and steps involved.  

Mr.  Robinette spoke to a request  f rom Colusa County regarding an alternate 

payment plan based on their  unique  s i tuat ion.  He stated the alternate payment 

plan proposed by the County was analyzed by the Project team and the Team 

determined that i t  was prudent and reasonable to accept the alternate 

payment plan.  

 

Vice-Chai rman Davis  stated Dan Ruiz ,  representative f or Wests ide Water Distr ict ,  

through the chat box, wanted i t  known that the Wests ide WD Board had no 

material  update.   

 

Ms.  Kao expressed concern regarding the 16,000 AF noted in the prel iminary 

soft cal l  survey resul ts  and requested that aster isks be place d next to Santa 

Clara County ’s column. She stated staff  has not establ ished a staff  

recommendation on the 16,000 AF but are evaluating a 16,000 AF level.  

Executive Di rector Brown stated the edi t would be made.  

 

Mr. Evans informed the RC members that the Colusa County Board of Supervi sors 

on Tuesday, June 16,  2020 approved the Phase 2 Part icipation Agreement.  

 

Discussion fol lowed with no action taken.  

 

3.2  Receive status update on draft 2020 Final  Federal  Feasibi l i ty  Report.  

 

 Mr. Brown provided an update on the draft 2020 Final  Federal  Feasibi l i ty  Report ,  

stat ing the approved 2020-2021 Si tes Federal  Government Affai rs  Pr ior i t ies  

includes completion of  the F inal  Federal  Feasibi l i ty  Report  to qual i fy for  federal  

funding and serves as a basis  for  the State’s  feasibi l i ty  analysi s required for WSIP 

funding. Mr.  Brown spoke to the fol lowing:  

•  Potential  benefi ts  for  north and south of  delta,  new suppl ies for  

incremental  level  4 refuges and improvement for migrating f i sh in north 

of  delta r ivers and st reams.  

•  WIIN Act construction funds.  



Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 June 18  

   Page: 4 o f  9 

 

•  Differences between the draft 2020 FFFR and VP7 (the Authori ty’s  

preferred al ternative).  

•  Project costs.  

•  “Right s i zed” Project.  

•  WIIN Act deadl ines.  

•  Benefit  cost  rat io.  

•  Key WIIN Act cr i ter ia (determination of  feasibi l i ty by December 2020 and 

init iat ion of construction by 2022).  

•  Feasibi l i ty Report Review Process.  

Mr. Brown stated the draft  2020 FFR i s currently  going through pol icy review and 

wi l l  be sent to Washington DC in July  where i t  wi l l  undergo numerous reviews by 

OMB and the Secretary of Inter ior  who wi l l  then submit  the f inal  determination 

to Congress.  

 

Discussion fol lowed with no action taken.  

 

3.3  Review and Comment on  the objectives and alternatives for  the Revised 

Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement  (EIR/EIS)  to 

focus efforts in developing a more complete project descr ipt ion on schedule. 

(Attachment A & B)  

 

 Ms. Forsythe provided an overview on the objectives and al ternatives for the 

Revised Environmental Impact Report/Environmental  Impact Statement.  She 

spoke to the fol lowing:  

  

Overview:  

•  Work on the preparation of the Revised EIR/EIS,  updates to the Biological  

Assessment and design efforts.  

•  Key f i r s t  step i s  the development of  a Revised Project Descr ipt ion .  

o  Serves as the foundation of  the Revised E IR/EIS.  

o  Preferred Project i s  foundation of  the Biological Assessment and 

Sites Feasibi l i ty Report.  

•  Sol ici t ing early input to reduce rework and maintain schedule.  

Bui lding Block to September Decis ion:  

•  Environmental  Planning and Permitt ing Key Mi lestones .  

o  September, RC and AB to review and approve .  

▪  More complete project descr ipt ion .  

▪  Recommendation on Prefer red Project .  

•  Necessity  of staying on schedule.  

Objectives –  Background: 



Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 June 18  

   Page: 5 o f  9 

 

•  CEQA Guidel ines –  require that a project descr ipt ion contain a clear 

statement of the project objectives, including the underly ing purpose of  

the Project.  

•  Staff proposing revis ions to objectives to:  

o  Better ref lect goals  of  RC and AB as descr ibed in  the Val ue 

Planning Report and messaging documents .  

o  Add clar i ty and specif icity to improve understanding of  the 

foundation of the Project.  

•  Improve environmental,  agricul tural  and municipal water  supply 

rel iabi l i ty in a cost -effective manner for  Project Part icipant s.  

•  Improve cold water  pool management in Shasta Reservoi r  through 

coordination and exchanges wi th Reclamation to benefi t  anadromous 

f i sh.  

•  Enhance the Delta ecosystem by providing water to convey food 

resources from the f loodplain to the Delta thereby impro ving the food 

chain and qual i ty  of the Delta’s  estuarine habitat for  the benefit  of  

pelagic f ishes in  the north Del ta (e.g. Cache Slough) .  

•  Provide improvements in  state-wide water  supply  rel iabi l i ty  to enhance 

opportuni t ies for f i sh protection, habitat man agement and other 

envi ronmental needs.  

•  Provide local and regional  amenit ies,  including development of 

recreational  faci l i t ies,  reduction of local  f lood damage and maintaining 

community connectivi ty  through roadway modif ications.  

Al ternatives –  Background:  

•  CEQA Guidel ines requi re that an EIR analyze a reasonable range of  

alternatives that would:  

o  Satis fy and attain most of the basic objectives of  the project .  

o  Avoid or substantial ly lessen any of the s igni f icant effects of  the 

project.  

•  Staff  proposing revis ions to al ternatives to better  al ign with Value 

Planning Report.  

•  Alternatives –  Key Components and Dif ferences of  the 

Faci l i t ies/Operations, Action Al ternative 1 (Derived from VP7 and Action 

Al ternative 2 ( Includes Parts  of VP5 and VP6) .  

•  Next Steps:  

o  Continue development and ref inement of  more complete project 

descr ipt ion, including:  

▪  Objectives .  

▪  Action Al ternatives .  

▪  No Action Alternatives .  



Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 June 18  

   Page: 6 o f  9 

 

▪  Recommended Preferred Project .  

•  Return to RC and AB in September with:  

o  More complete project descr ipt ion .  

o  Recommend Preferred Project for  the purpose of  the CEQA 

analysi s .  

•  Coordinate with Reclamation and Si tes legal counsel  for input.  

Discussion fol lowed regarding Al ternative 1 and Al ternative 2 (Conveyance 

Release/Dunnigan Release and Route to West s ide of Reservoir)  and cl imate 

change with no action taken.  

  

3.4  Review and comment on the approach for  di scussions wi th the Cal i fornia  

Department of  Water  Resources on a Sites Coordinated Operations Agreement.  

(Attachment A)  

 

Ms. Forsythe stated Staff i s  reinit iat ing technical di scussions wi th DWR on a Si tes 

Coordinated Operat ions Agreement (COA).  She stated the S ites COA would 

address the fol lowing key i tems:  

1.  Coordination of  Si tes water  del iver ies with DWR’s operation of  the State 

Water Project.  

2.  Sites water  accounting in  the context  of  the C oordinated Operations 

Agreement for the CVP and SWP.  

3.  Conveyance and operational  losses.  

4.  Exchanges and transfers  f rom Sites -part icipants to non-Si tes SWP 

contractors .  

5.  Water r ights and point of del ivery  considerations.  

She also spoke to the fol lowing:  

•  Sites Reservoi r  Project Schedule –  Mi lestones and Scheduled dates .  

•  DWR/Si tes Term Sheet Developments Schedules .  

•  Next Steps.  

Discussion fol lowed with no action taken.  

 

3.5  Receive status update on the Colusa Basin Drain  (CBD) evaluation and 

Dunnigan Pipel ine al ignment review.   

  

 Mr. Luu provided an update on the CBD evaluation and the Dunnigan Pipel ine 

al ignment.  He stated the Dunnigan Pipel ine al ignment analysis  i s  progress ing 

wel l ,  with no fatal  f laws having been identi f ied to date.  He stated further  the 

consul tant team is  ref in ing the al ignment to reduce impacts to propert ies and 

landowner operations as wel l  as minimizing environmental  impacts to B i rd 

Creek. He further stated a hydraul ic study of the  CBD has been in i t iated and 

the analysis would confi rm whether releases into the CBD are viable. He said a 

determination of a go/no-go on releases to the CBD would be made by August 



Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 June 18  

   Page: 7 o f  9 

 

2020.  And should the use of  the CBD not be feasib le an alternative extendi ng 

the Dunnigan Pipel ine al ignment to the r iver  would st i l l  exis t .   

 

Discussion fol lowed regarding environmental benefi ts  and t iming of  water  

release south of  the Delta with no action taken.  

 

3.6  Receive status update on the approach for Regulatory Agency Technical  

Working Group.  (Attachment A)  

 

 Ms .  Forsythe stated staf f  have re in i t iated ef for ts  on the development and 

submitta l  of  key permits  for  the S i tes Pro ject as ref lected in  the Amendment  

1B Work P lan.  She s tated two technical  work ing groups would be establ i shed 

to faci l i tate regular  communic at ion and coordinat ion with  s tate,  federal  and 

local  agencies  wi th jur i sd ict ion over a l l  or  por t ions of  the Project.   

 

She stated Group 1:  Interagency General  Update  and Coordinat ion Meet ings  

would meet on a quarter ly  bas i s  to update and coordinate with a l l  s tate,  

federal  and local  regulatory  and/or  partner ing agencies ;  Group 2:  F i shery and 

Operat ions Technical  Meet ings would focus ,  as needed on f i shery and 

operat ions meet ings  to review and discuss the model ing approach,  analys i s  

approach, operat ional  cr i te r ia and the resul t ing effects to species of  the 

Pro ject .  She al so spoke to potent ia l  attendees of  each of  the Technical  

Work ing Groups.   

 

B r ief  d i scuss ion fol lowed with no act ion taken.  

 

4.  Reports :                                         

 

4.1  Member’s  Reports :  

 

4.1.1  Chairpersons’  Report :   

 

None.  

 

4 .1.2  Workgroup Chai rpersons’  Report :   

 

Reservoi r  Operat ions  & Engineer ing  

 

Mr.  Kunde stated the Reservoi r  Operat ions and Engineer ing Workgroup i s  

meet ing every th ree weeks and progress  i s  being made.  

 

Budget & F inance 

 

Ms.  T raynham stated the Budget and F inance Work group i s  work ing on revis ing 

the Credit  Reimbursement Pol icy and should be to the Reservoi r  Committee 

for  cons iderat ion in  July  2020.   

 

Coordinat ion  

Vice-chai rman Davi s  provided a br ief  update on act iv i t ies  of  the Coordinat ion 

Workgroup.  



Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 June 18  

   Page: 8 o f  9 

 

 

4 .1.3  Reservoi r  Commit tee Part ic ipant Reports :    

 

Th i s  t ime i s  set  as ide to al low Representat ives or  thei r  Al ternates an opportuni ty  

to disc lose/di scuss i tems re lated to the S i tes  Project.  

 

None.  

 

4 .2  Execut ive Di rector ’s  Report s :  

•  Monthly  s tatus repor t .  (Attachment  A)   

•  Message Platform Update.   

•  Delta Stewardship letter  regarding cons i s tency determinat ion  concerns.  

•  Memo regarding report ing and respons ib i l i ty  requi rements  as i t  re lates  to 

conduct  matters  wi th in the workplace.  

•  Governor’s/State Budget.  

•  Strategic  P lanning  Sess ion updates.  

•  Communicat ions regarding the fol lowing:  

o  Revi sed Message Platform has been added to the Home Board  

Package.  

o  Town Hal l  meet ings to be held on July  14  and July  15,  2020.  

o  Landowner Newsletter  re :  r ight s i zed project wi l l  be out soon.  

 

5 .  Future Meet ings  and Schedules :                        

 

5 .1  Suggested Future Agenda I tems .  

 

 B r ief  d i scuss ion fol lowed regarding poss ib le Agenda I tems for  future Agendas .  

 

5 .2  Upcoming meet ings :  

 

Reservoir  Commit tee   

Thursday,  July  16,  2020 1 :00 PM 

Si tes Pro ject  Off ice ,  122 Old Highway 99W Maxwel l ,  CA  95955  
( Te leconferenc ing and v ideo l ink  w i l l  be prov ided a s  an opt ion)  

 

Author i ty  Board  

Wednesday,  July  22,  2020 1:30pm 

Si tes Pro ject  Off ice  
( Te leconferenc ing and v ideo l ink  w i l l  be prov ided as  an opt ion)  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Reservoir Committee Meeting   2020 June 18  

   Page: 9 o f  9 

 

Vice-Chai rman Davi s  adjourned the meet ing at 3:36 p.m.  

 

 

 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 

Vice-Chai rman     Execut ive Di rector  

Jeff  Davi s       Jer ry  Brown 



Top ic :  Sites Reservoir Project , Phase 2 2020 June 18 

Subject:  Reservoir Committee Meeting 1:00 PM – 4:00 PM 

Rol l  Ca l l  

 Status: Issued for  use  Version: 0 

Purpose:  Date: 2020  June 18  

Caveat 1  Ref/File #:  

 Caveat 2 Subject  to rev is ion  Page: 1  o f  1 

 

Current Voting Committee Participants (21):  

 

 Pct  Par t i c ipant  

 3.42 American Canyon, City 

 2.51 Antelope Valley-East Kern WA 

 2.46 Carter MWC 

 4.97 Coachella Valley WD 

 4.97 Colusa County  

 5.49 Colusa Co. WD 

 2.50 Cortina WD (1) 

 2.90 Davis WD  

 0.00 
Department of Water 

Resources (non-voting)  

 4.06 Desert WA  

 3.09 Dunnigan WD  

 3.68 Glenn-Colusa ID  

 Pct  Par t i c ipant  

 2.64 LaGrande WD (1) 

 15.34 Metropolitan WD  

 3.42 Reclamation District 108  

 7.93 San Bernardino Valley MWD  

 6.01 San Gorgonio Pass WA  

 6.53 Santa Clara Valley WD  

 3.67 Santa Clarita Valley WA (2)  

 6.27 Westside WD  

 3.17 Wheeler Ridge-Maricopa WSD 

 0.00 
US Bureau of Reclamation 

(non-voting) 

 4.97 Zone 7 WA  

 100.00 Total 
 

18.  Voting members represented at Meeting start    

88%  Represented part ic ipat ion percentage 

Representat ion has been delegated as fol lows:  

(1)  To Jamie Traynham, Davis  WD 

(2)  To Amparo F lores , Zone 7 

  



Top ic :  Sites Reservoir Project , Phase 2 (2019) 2020 June 18 

Subject:  Reservoir Committee Meeting 1:00 PM – 4:00 PM 

 
Current Voting Reservoir Committee Participants (21) :  

 Page 1 of 3 

 

Par t i c ipant  ✓  Representa t ive  ✓  Al ternate  Others  

American Canyon, City  Rick Kaufman  
Felix Hernandez III 
Jason Holley 

 

AVEK WA  Dwayne Chisam  Dan Flory  

Carter MWC  Ben Carter  Ann Carter  

Coachella Valley WD  Robert Cheng  Ivory Reyburn   

Colusa County.  Mike Azevedo  Gary Evans  

Colusa Co. WD  Shelley Murphy  Joe Marsh  

Cortina WD  Jim Peterson  Chuck Grimmer Jamie Traynham 

Davis WD  Jamie Traynham  Tom Charter  

Desert WA  Mark Krause  Steve Johnson  

Dunnigan WD  Bill Vanderwaal    

Glenn-Colusa ID  Thad Bettner  Don Bransford  

LaGrande WD  Zach Dennis   Ken LaGrande Jamie Traynham 

Metropolitan WD  Randall Neudeck  Chandra Chilmakuri  

RD 108  Bill Vanderwaal  Blair Lewis  

San Bernardino V MWD  Bob Tincher  Heather Dyer  

San Gorgonio Pass WA  Jeff Davis    

Santa Clara Valley WD  Cindy Kao  Eric Leitterman  

Santa Clarita Valley WA  Dirk Marks  Steve Cole  

Westside WD  Allan Myers  Dan Ruiz  

Wheeler Ridge-Maricopa 

WSD 
 Rob Kunde    

Zone 7 WA  Amparo Flores 

 
 

 
 

Carol Mahoney 
Jarnail Chahal 

Wes Mercado 
Valerie Pryor 

 



Reservoir Committee Meeting                                        2020 June 18  

 Page 2 of 3 

Non-Voting Committee Participants (2): 

Par t i c ipant  ✓  Representa t ive /Other  ✓  Al ternate /Other   

Dept of Water Resources  Rob Cooke  David Sandino  

  Ajay Goyal  Jim Wieking  Dave Arrate 

Bureau of Reclamation  Richard Welsh  Don Bader  Chris Duke  

  

Ryan Davis 

Natalie Wolder  

 

 

 

Derya Sumer 

Mike Dietl 

David Van Rijn  

 Mike Mosley 

   Shana Kaplan 

Authority,  Non-Signatory (6): 

Par t i c ipant  ✓  Representa t ive  ✓  Al ternate   

Glenn County  John Viegas    

PCWA  Ed Horton 
 

 

Ben Barker 

Darin Reintjes 
 

Roseville  Sean Bigley 
 

 

Trevor Joseph 

Jason Marks 
 

Sacramento, City of  Jeff Harris  Anne Sanger  

Sacramento County WA  Kerry Schmitz  Michael Peterson  

Tehama-Colusa Canal 

Authority 
 Jeff Sutton    

 
Staff:  

 

✓ Name Represent ing  

 Jerry Brown Executive Director 

 Forsythe, Ali Sites Project Authority 

 Spesert, Kevin Sites Project Authority 

✓ Name Represent ing  

 Trapasso, Joe Sites Project Authority 

 Tirado, Yolanda Board Clerk 

 Kivett, Marcia Admin 

Consultants:  

 

✓ Name Represent ing  

 Alexander, Jeriann Fugro 

 Boling, Robert HDR 

 Briard, Monique ICF 

 Floyd, Kim Floyd 

 Herrin, Jeff AECOM 

 Heydinger, Erin HDR 

 Katz, Sara Katz & Associates 

✓ Name Represent ing  

 Kuney, Scott Young Wooldridge 

 Robinette, JP Brown & Caldwell 

 Rude, Peter Ch2m 

 Spranza, John HDR 

 Tull, Rob Ch2m 

 Warner Herson, 

Laurie 
Phenix 



Reservoir Committee Meeting                                       2020 June 18  

 

Page 3 of 3 

Other Attendees:  

Name Represent ing  Contac t  (Phone & E -mai l )  

Laura Nicholson Office of Senator Nielson 
 

Henry Luu HDR 
 

Juleah Cordi 
Office of Assemblyman 

James Gallagher 

 

Cathy Westcot HDR  

Laverne Bill   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 



 

 
Top ic:  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 1.2 2020 July 16 

Subject :  Treasurer’s  Report 

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: T rapasso  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Staf f  Report  QA/QC:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: In format ional  
Authority 

Agent: T rapasso  Ref/File #: 10.700  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  1 

 

Requested Action:  

 

Accept the Sites Project Authori ty Treasurer’s  Report as presented in Attachment 

1-2A.  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background : 

 

Attachment 1-2A incorporates f inancial  information through June 30, 2020.  

 

Pr ior  Action:  

 

None.  

 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source:  

 

None.  

 

Staf f Contact:  

 

Joe Trapasso 

 

At tachments :  

 

Attachment A:  June 2020 Treasurer’s Report.   



MKivett
Text Box
2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,
Agenda Item 1.2 Attachment A






























 
Top ic:  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 1.3 2020 July 16  

Subject :  Payment of Claims 

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: T rapasso  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Staf f  Report  QA/QC:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Act ion  
Authority 

Agent: T rapasso  Ref/File #: 10.700  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  1 

 

Requested Action :  

 

Approve the Payment of  Claims as presented in Attachment 1.3A with support ing 

detai ls  provided in Attachment 1.3B.  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background : 

 

Attachment A presents the warrants to be drawn against  the  invoices received 

by the Si tes Project Authori ty through July 6,  2020.  

 

Attachment B summarizes  detai l s  of  the invoices received through July  6 , 2020 

and how the incurred costs  are al located between the Authori ty  and Reservoir  

Committee.  

 

Attachment C presents a budget status report of key consul tants ’  task orders and 

tasks through the per iod of  performance of the invoices  presented in Attachment 

B.  

 

Pr ior  Action:  

 

None.  

 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source:   

 

Total  Payment of Cla ims i s $1,106,991.94 with $71,071.19 of  costs  being assigned 

to the Authori ty  and $1,035,920.75 assigned to the Reservoi r  Committee.  

For  the Reservoir  Committee  ass igned amount , $991,634.57 wi l l  be paid through 

the WSIP account and $44,286,18 through the JPA/Sites account as shown in 

Attachment B.  

Staf f Contact:  

Joe Trapasso 

Attachments :  

Attachment A:  July  2020 Report  on warrants  to be drawn for Payment of Claims.   

Attachment B:  July  2020 Monthly Consul tant and Vendor Invoice table.  

Attachment C:  July  2020 Key Consul tant Budget Status Report .  



MKivett
Text Box
2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,
Agenda Item 1.3 Attachment A






          Sites
       Topic:  Program Operations - Finance

     Purpose:  Summarize the review of invoices for preparation of monthly Accountant and Treasurer's reports. 

Review

Date Period by

Adept Solutions

 IT Related Services/Computer Equipment 7/1/20 07/20

Adept Solutions

 IT Related Services/Computer Equipment 7/1/20 5/20

AECOM (Reservoir) (HR)

 Engineering Services 6/10/20 5/20

AECOM (Reservoir) (HR)

 Engineering Services 7/7/20 6/20

AECOM Technical Services, Inc.

 Engineering/Tech 7/6/20 6/20

Brown and Caldwell (B)

 Project Controls 7/2/20 6/20

CH2M Hill Engineers (Operations) (D)

 Operations / Simulation Modeling 6/15/20 5/20

CH2M/Jacobs (Conveyance) (HC)

 Engineering Services 6/17/20 5/20

Colusa Indian Community Council

 Tribal Council

Darling H2O Consulting, Inc.

 Organizational Assessment 6/30/20 6/20

Dunn Consulting

 Legislative/Regulatory/Strategic Support 7/2/20 6/20

Fechter and Company, CPAs

 Accounting Services 6/22/20 6/20

Forsythe Group, LLC

 EPP Manager 6/25/20 6/20

Fugro (I)

 Geotechnical Engineering Services 7/6/20 6/20

Gerald (Jerry) Johns

 Project Operations

$ Authority 

Board

$1,275.60

$30,251.85

$13,209.93

$202,638.30

MSP-139657

Invoice #

139699

Total

No Invoice

127

Letter

Letter

1200277979

D3205400-014

D3380600-001

$682.00

Board Approval Items

Consultant/Vendor

$157,711.74 $157,711.74

$78,837.14

$128,807.64

$77,323.89

$128,807.64

$77,323.89

$236.25

$8,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 KMS

$1,275.60

$202,638.30 JAT

AEF

$236.25

JAT

$78,837.14 HL

AEF

HL

HL

HL

SPE

FD

JB

$13,209.93 HL

JAT

July 9, 2020

    Subject: Consultant/Vendor Invoices Received for July 2020 Board Authority and Reservoir Committee 

2000378520

2000377940

17376336

The following consultant and vendor invoices were received and reviewed for inclusion in Payment of Claims for the 

Authority Board and Reservoir Committee consideration at their July monthly meetings.

$251.66 $50.33 $201.33 KMS

$760.20

$98,335.19

$152.04 $608.16 KMS

$ Reservoir 

Committee

2000369389

SPA-202006

04.72190035-15

No Invoice

$30,251.85

$682.00

$98,335.19

Monthly Invoice Summary v04.xlsx
 (Printed 7/9/2020) 

Page 1 of 4

MKivett
Text Box
2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,
Agenda Item 1.3 Attachment B




          Sites
       Topic:  Program Operations - Finance

     Purpose:  Summarize the review of invoices for preparation of monthly Accountant and Treasurer's reports. 

Review

Date Period by
$ Authority 

Board

Invoice #

Total

Board Approval Items

Consultant/Vendor

July 9, 2020

    Subject: Consultant/Vendor Invoices Received for July 2020 Board Authority and Reservoir Committee 

The following consultant and vendor invoices were received and reviewed for inclusion in Payment of Claims for the 

Authority Board and Reservoir Committee consideration at their July monthly meetings.

$ Reservoir 

Committee

HDR (A)

 Project Integration 7/6/20 6/20

ICF Jones & Stokes, Inc. (Environ.) (E)

 Env/Biological Services 6/15/20 5/20

ICF Jones & Stokes, Inc. (Permitting) (F)

 Permitting and Agreements 6/15/20 5/20

Katz & Associates (C)

 Communications 6/15/20 5/20

Katz & Associates (C)

 Communications 7/6/20 6/20

K-Coe Isom, LLP

 Accounting 6/30/20 6/20

Larsen Wurzel & Associates, Inc.

 Cost Development 6/15/20 5/20

Larsen Wurzel & Associates, Inc.

 Cost Development 7/2/20 6/20

M.R. Cleaning Service

 Office Cleaning

Maximum Pest Control

 Pest Spraying 6/26/20 6/20

MBK Engineers

 Reservoir Operations 6/19/20 5/20

Montague DeRose & Associates, LLC

 Municipal Advisor 6/4/20 4/20

MT Shasta Water

 Office Water 6/5/20 6/20

MT Shasta Water

 Office Water 6/26/20 6/20

Perkins Coie, LLP

 Special Legal 6/23/20 5/20

Recology Butte Colusa Counties

 Office Trash Pickup 6/30/20 6/20

$65.00

$7,785.75

$4,568.75

$30.15

$72.25

$597.60

$35.95

$597.60 AEF

$17,349.28 $14,199.87 KMS

$11,538.00 $9,441.99

$43,590.12

KMS

$31,549.15

$1,997.00

$3,623.50

$9,382.75

$202,638.30

$43,590.12

$35,391.94

1609000-0620

No Invoice

51183

20-05-4941.0

1200277979

0147510

0147511

1609000-0520

413789

413822

KC090345

$35.95

$9,382.75 JAT

$3,623.50 JAT

$30.15 KMS

$4,568.75 JAT

$72.25 KMS

$65.00 KMS

$7,785.75 AEF

KMS

$202,638.30 JAT

$399.40

KMS

$1,597.60

$20,979.99

4888SITES

401027

407049

6208406

37438579

AEF

AEF

$35,391.94

JAT

Monthly Invoice Summary v04.xlsx
 (Printed 7/9/2020) 

Page 2 of 4



          Sites
       Topic:  Program Operations - Finance

     Purpose:  Summarize the review of invoices for preparation of monthly Accountant and Treasurer's reports. 

Review

Date Period by
$ Authority 

Board

Invoice #

Total

Board Approval Items

Consultant/Vendor

July 9, 2020

    Subject: Consultant/Vendor Invoices Received for July 2020 Board Authority and Reservoir Committee 

The following consultant and vendor invoices were received and reviewed for inclusion in Payment of Claims for the 

Authority Board and Reservoir Committee consideration at their July monthly meetings.

$ Reservoir 

Committee

Rush Personnel

 Yolanda Tirado Services 6/15/20 6/20

Rush Personnel

 Yolanda Tirado Services 6/15/20 6/20

Rush Personnel

 Yolanda Tirado Services 6/29/20 6/20

Rush Personnel

 Yolanda Tirado Services 6/29/20 6/20

Spesert Consulting

 Bus/Communications Manager 7/3/20 6/20

Stradling, Yocca, Carlson & Rauth

 Bond Counsel 6/18/20 5/20

The Catalyst Group

 Strategic Planning Services 7/2/20 6/20

The Ferguson Group

 Federal Government Affairs Support 6/1/20 6/20

Trapasso Consulting Services

 Program Operations Manager 7/5/20 6/20

U.S. Bank - Credit Card

 Misc. Expenses 7/1/20 6/20

U.S. Postal Service

 P.O. Box 7/1/20 7/20

Waterology Consulting

 Executive Director Services 7/1/20 6/20

William Avery & Associates

 Personnel Recruiter 1/21/20 1/20

William Avery & Associates

 Personnel Recruiter 1/21/20 1/20

William Avery & Associates

 Personnel Recruiter 5/8/20 5/20

William Avery & Associates

 Personnel Recruiter 5/8/20 5/20

$3,450.00

$11,100.88

$1,058.40

$1,411.20

$21,320.00

$3,450.00

$11,100.88

$15,000.00

$28,000.00

$251.13

$120.00

$251.13

$8,400.00 $8,400.00

$1,234.80

$1,411.20

JAT

JT/ FD 

/JS

$21,320.00 JB

$5,500.00 $5,500.00 JAT

$3,223.68 $3,223.68 JAT

$28,000.00 JB

JB

$282.24 $1,128.96 KMS

$33,750.00

KMS

$33,750.00

$120.00

$246.96

$7,500.00 $7,500.00

$987.84

$5,500.00

KMS

KMS

2940

3013

3014

IVC000000137562

$5,500.00 JAT

JAT

$282.24 $1,128.96 KMS

$211.68 $846.72

0620149

SPA 17-33

Online 7/1

Letter

3

2939

IVC000000137791

IVC000000137792

07-20

365299-0001

KMS

KMS

IVC000000137563

492

Monthly Invoice Summary v04.xlsx
 (Printed 7/9/2020) 

Page 3 of 4



          Sites
       Topic:  Program Operations - Finance

     Purpose:  Summarize the review of invoices for preparation of monthly Accountant and Treasurer's reports. 

Review

Date Period by
$ Authority 

Board

Invoice #

Total

Board Approval Items

Consultant/Vendor

July 9, 2020

    Subject: Consultant/Vendor Invoices Received for July 2020 Board Authority and Reservoir Committee 

The following consultant and vendor invoices were received and reviewed for inclusion in Payment of Claims for the 

Authority Board and Reservoir Committee consideration at their July monthly meetings.

$ Reservoir 

Committee

William Avery & Associates

 Personnel Recruiter 5/8/20 5/20

Wiseman Consulting Group

 ROW/Land Management

Young Wooldridge, Law Offices, LLP

 Legal Counsel 6/30/20 6/20

1,106,991.94 71,071.19 1,035,920.75

115,357.37 71,071.19 44,286.18 

991,634.57 991,634.57

4,130,583.88

(4) Fund Checks Received

JPA/Sites

Total

$ Authority 

Board

KMS

$2,271.36 $2,271.36 JAT

JAT

3015

No Invoice

$5,998.00 $3,353.25 $2,644.75

WSIP To Date

Balance

July 2020 Monthly Totals

Cumulative Summary

Cash Accounts

WSIP

     3,950,210.53 

8,080,794.41

Total

$ Authority 

Board

$ Reservoir 

Committee

$ Reservoir 

Committee

66804

Notes: * 

Monthly Invoice Summary v04.xlsx
 (Printed 7/9/2020) 

Page 4 of 4



7/9/2020

Area / 

Consultant

Task 

ID
Task Name

$ Contract 

Ceiling

 $Task Budget 

Authorized 

(2020)

$ Spent to 

date   

(2020)

$ Budget 

Remaining 

(2020)

Spent %
Task % 

Complete

8 Month 

Plan (2020)

a) HDR Costs and Task % as of 06/20 Services 1,499,864          1,499,864             1,046,629    453,235          70%

a) HDR A01 Communications Int. -                         -                 -                   - 100%

a) HDR A02 Ops Modeling Int. 181,007                43,269          137,738          24% 70%

a) HDR A03 Env. Planning Int. 149,357                157,369        (8,012)             105% 75%

a) HDR A04 Permitting Int. 243,884                217,610        26,274            89% 75%

a) HDR A05 Real Estate Int. 139,718                69,768          69,950            50% 60%

a) HDR A06 Engineering Int. 299,476                198,972        100,504          66% 75%

a) HDR A07 Geotech Int. -                         -                 -                   - 100%

a) HDR A08 Controls Int. 224,387                170,737        53,650            76% 75%

a) HDR A09 General Int. 98,267                   119,639        (21,372)           122% 75%

a) HDR A10 Authority's Engineer -                         -                 -                   - 100%

a) HDR A11 Health, Safety & Loss Prevention -                         -                 -                   - 100%

a) HDR A12 Quality Management -                         -                 -                   - 100%

a) HDR A13 Risk Management 49,890                   18,901          30,989            38% 50%

a) HDR A14 IT 15,831                   12,033          3,798               76% 75%

a) HDR A15 GIS -                         765                (765)                 - 100%

a) HDR A16 Document Management 3,734                     3,654            80                    98% 75%

a) HDR A17 Staff Support 14,004                   2,402            11,602            17% 75%

a) HDR A18 Satellite Project Office -                         -                 -                   - 100%

a) HDR A19 Land Conservation Approach -                         -                 -                   - 100%

a) HDR A98 HDR Project Management 40,309                   23,242          17,067            58% 75%

a) HDR A99 Expenses 40,000                   8,267            31,733            21% 75%

b) BC Costs and Task % as of 06/20 Services 899,156              899,156                675,155        224,001          75%

b) BC B01 Project Controls 113,645                60,036          53,609            53% 80%

b) BC B02 Contract Administration and Compliance 492,414                365,670        126,744          74% 75%

b) BC B03 Work Planning and Scheduling 100,341                99,410          931                  99% 90%

b) BC B04 Project Administrative Support 117,516                105,160        12,356            89% 90%

b) BC B05 PMP Sections -                         -                 -                   - -

b) BC B98 Project Management 73,240                   42,370          30,870            58% 60%

b) BC B99 Expenses 2,000                     2,510            (510)                 125% 100%

JULY KEY CONSULTANT BUDGET REPORT

 FOR AUTHORITY BOARD AND RESERVOIR COMMITTEE,

 FINANCE AND ECONOMICS AD HOC COMMITTEE
Sites

MBR v1.xlsx Page 1 of 3

MKivett
Text Box
2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,
Agenda Item 1.3 Attachment C




7/9/2020

Area / 

Consultant

Task 

ID
Task Name

$ Contract 

Ceiling

 $Task Budget 

Authorized 

(2020)

$ Spent to 

date   

(2020)

$ Budget 

Remaining 

(2020)

Spent %
Task % 

Complete

8 Month 

Plan (2020)

JULY KEY CONSULTANT BUDGET REPORT

 FOR AUTHORITY BOARD AND RESERVOIR COMMITTEE,

 FINANCE AND ECONOMICS AD HOC COMMITTEE
Sites

c) K&A Costs and Task % as of 06/20 Services 199,930              199,930                138,060        61,870            69%

c) K&A C01 Local/Landowner Outreach 14,083                   4,499            9,584               32% 50%

c) K&A C02 Statewide Outreach 22,000                   17,286          4,714               79% 70%

c) K&A C03 NGO Outreach 12,166                   1,085            11,081            9% -

c) K&A C04 Strategic Communications 19,666                   12,844          6,822               65% 50%

c) K&A C05 Message Development/Training 11,831                   3,778            8,054               32% 60%

c) K&A C06 Informational Materials Distribution 38,500                   34,496          4,004               90% 60%

c) K&A C07 Website Modifications and Management 18,600                   7,393            11,208            40% 65%

c) K&A C08 Video & Photography -                         73                  (73)                   - -

c) K&A C09 Authority/Reservoir Committee Public Affairs Support 14,500                   15,828          (1,328)             109% 50%

c) K&A C10 Media Relations 13,084                   10,995          2,089               84% 65%

c) K&A C11 Social Media 5,000                     1,500            3,500               30% 35%

c) K&A C98 Project Management 30,500                   25,828          4,673               85% 65%

c) K&A C99 Expenses -                         2,457            (2,457)             - -

d) CH2-d Costs and Task % as of 05/20 Services 993,000              993,000                479,843        513,157          48%

d) CH2-d D01 Permitting and Resource Agency Technical Support 100,000                71,586          28,414            72% 90%

d) CH2-d D02 Environmental Document Support 356,853                140,676        216,177          39% 35%

d) CH2-d D03 Total Operations Technical Support 300,000                125,048        174,952          42% 65%

d) CH2-d D04 Value Planning 88,000                   79,921          8,079               91% 100%

d) CH2-d D98 Project Management 31,147                   32,091          (944)                 103% 60%

d) CH2-d D99 Expenses & Subconsultants 117,000                30,520          86,480            26% 45%

e) ICF-e Costs and Task % as of 05/20 Services 428,000              428,000                186,461        241,539          44%

e) ICF-e E01 Draft EIS/EIR Review and Strategic Consultation -                         -                 -                   - -

e) ICF-e E02 Prepare Admin Final Responses to Comments -                         -                 -                   - -

e) ICF-e E03 Prepare Administrative Final EIR/EIS 15,000                   14,967          33                    100% 100%

e) ICF-e E04 Begin Preparation of Administrative Record for Fin -                         -                 -                   - -

e) ICF-e E05 Engagement -                         -                 -                   - -

e) ICF-e E06 Geotechnical Environmental Document -                         -                 -                   - -

e) ICF-e E07 Develop Environmental Document Work Plan 110,000                85,759          24,241            78% 75%

e) ICF-e E08 Support Development of EIR/EIS Project Description 180,000                57,124          122,876          32% 30%

e) ICF-e E09 Prepare Annotated Outline 88,000                   -                 88,000            - -

e) ICF-e E98 Project Management 31,500                   28,611          2,889               91% 75%

e) ICF-e E99 Expenses 3,500                     -                 3,500               - -

MBR v1.xlsx Page 2 of 3



7/9/2020

Area / 

Consultant

Task 

ID
Task Name

$ Contract 

Ceiling

 $Task Budget 

Authorized 

(2020)

$ Spent to 

date   

(2020)

$ Budget 

Remaining 

(2020)

Spent %
Task % 

Complete

8 Month 

Plan (2020)

JULY KEY CONSULTANT BUDGET REPORT

 FOR AUTHORITY BOARD AND RESERVOIR COMMITTEE,

 FINANCE AND ECONOMICS AD HOC COMMITTEE
Sites

f) ICF-f Costs and Task % as of 05/20 Services 708,300              708,300                183,622        524,678          26%

f) ICF-f F01 Finalize Joint Biological Assessment -                         -                 -                   - -

f) ICF-f F02 Finalize Geotechnical Permits and Fieldwork 297,120                37,628          259,492          13% 50%

f) ICF-f F03 Prepare Section 106 Documents -                         -                 -                   - -

f) ICF-f F04 Begin Preparation of Permits and Agreements 26,000                   25,976          24                    100% 100%

f) ICF-f F05 Prepare for 2020 Field Work Studies -                         -                 -                   - -

f) ICF-f F06 Strategize on Mitigation and Adaptive Management P -                         -                 -                   - -

f) ICF-f F07 Early Coordination and Development of Key Permits 333,740                82,890          250,850          25% 30%

f) ICF-f F98 Project Management 35,000                   30,734          4,266               88% 75%

f) ICF-f F99 Expenses 16,440                   6,395            10,045            39% 15%

hc) CH2-hc Costs and Task % as of 05/20 Services 597,023              597,023                77,324          519,699          13%

hc) CH2-hc HC01 Project Coordination 15,378                   4,211            11,167            27% 25%

hc) CH2-hc HC02 Engineering Support for Proj. Description of Preferred Proj. from Value Planning 370,475                44,050          326,426          12% 15%

hc) CH2-hc HC98 Project Management 55,469                   21,204          34,265            38% 25%

hc) CH2-hc HC99 Expenses & Subconsultants 155,700                7,859            147,841          5% 15%

hr) AEC-hr Costs and Task % as of 06/20 Services 599,379              599,379                236,549        362,830          39%

hr) AEC-hr HR01 Project Coordination 7,339                     1,487            5,852               20% 20%

hr) AEC-hr HR02 Engineering Support for Project Description of Preferred Project 567,000                212,462        354,538          37% 48%

hr) AEC-hr HR98 Project Management 25,040                   22,600          2,440               90% 95%

i) FUG Costs and Task % as of 06/20 Services 85,995                85,995                  62,058          23,937            72%

i) FUG I01 Data Review and Develop 2019 Feasibility Study Work Plan -                         -                 -                   - -

i) FUG I02 - Obsolete - -                         -                 -                   - -

i) FUG I03 2019 Site Investigation -                         -                 -                   - -

i) FUG I04 Future Site Investigation Work Plan for Design -                         -                 -                   - -

i) FUG I05 Assessment of Proposed Field Data Collection Points 50,786                   31,736          19,050            62% 62%

i) FUG I98 Project Management 35,209                   30,322          4,887               86% 86%

i) FUG I99 Expenses -                         -                 -                   - -

Notes: * 

MBR v1.xlsx Page 3 of 3



 

 
Top ic:  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 1.4 2020 July 16 

Subject :  Reassignment of Staff  

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: Brown  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Staf f  Report  QA/QC:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: In format ional  
Authority 

Agent: Brown Ref/File #:  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  1 

 

Requested Action :  

 

Consider  approval  of  Resolut ion No. 2020-03, providing al l  of  the duties, 

authori t ies  and responsibi l i t ies to  the Authori ty’s Executive Director  that were 

previously  delegated to the Authori ty’s General Manager .  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background : 

 

As a resul t  of  the organizational  assessment,  the duties and responsibi l i t ies  of  the 

General  Manager were reassigned to an inter im Executive Di rector in December 

2019 and a new Executive Director was selected and a contract for these services 

was executed in March 2020.  There is  no longer a General  Manger role on th e 

project.   The proposed attached resolut ion memorial izes th e change from 

General  Manager to Executive Di rector  to affect al l  agreements, contracts,  and 

any other documents that the Authori ty has previously executed  identi fy ing the 

General  Manager posit ion.     

 

Prior  Action:  

 

None 

 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source:  

 

There is  no f i scal  impact associated with this change.  

 

Staf f Contact:  

 

Jer ry Brown 

 

At tachments :  

 

Attachment A: Resolut ion No. 2020-03 



 

1 
 

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03 

 

In the Matter of: 

 

Authorizing the Executive Director as having all of the duties, responsibilities and 

authorities previously directed upon the General Manager. 

 

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously assigned certain duties, responsibilities and 

authorities to the General Manager in the oversight of the Project and has 

identified such in its agreements, contracts, permits, and other business 

documentation related to the Project; and   

 

WHEREAS, in December 2019 the Authority created the “interim” Executive 

Director position as the replacement for the General Manager position; and 

 

WHEREAS, in March 2020 the Authority entered into a contract for services  with 

the Authority’s Executive Director (the “Contract”), which provided for the 

Executive Director’s fulfillment of duties, responsibilities, and authorities that were 

previously fulfilled by the former General Manager, and thereby replaced the 

General Manager position on a permanent basis with the position of Executive 

Director. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by this Board of Directors as follows: 

1. The Executive Director position replaces the previous General Manager 

position within the Project’s organization and, pursuant to the Contract, 

has been delegated all of the duties, responsibilities, and authorities 

previously assigned to the former General Manager. 

2. All references to the term “General Manager” in any agreements, 

contracts, permits or other business documents shall be understood to 

mean “Executive Director”, if and as applicable, and all such 

agreements, contracts, permits or other business documents shall, as 

appropriate, be revised to replace the term “General Manager” with the 

term “Executive Director”.  Such amendments shall be considered  

2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee, 

Agenda Item 1.4 Attachment A 



 

2 
 

 

 

ministerial and not subject to further agreement or negotiation between 

effected parties, and is fully within the rights of the Authority to unilaterally 

authorize. 

3. The Authority’s officers and Executive Director are authorized to do all 

things necessary and proper to carry out and implement the above 

reference matters.  

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Sites Project 

Authority this 22th day of July 2020, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

 

I, Fritz Durst, Chair Authority Board of the Site Project Authority, do hereby certify 

that the resolution set forth above is true and accurate copy of the resolution 

adopted by the Board of Directors of the Sites Project Authority at a duly called 

meeting of the Board on July 22, 2020 and that said resolution has not been 

rescinded, amended or modified and is in full force and effect as of the date 

hereof.  

In Witness Whereof, I have executed this certificate this 22th day of July 2020. 

 

 

________________________ 

Fritz Durst, Chair Authority Board, Sites Project Authority 

 

 

 



 
Top ic :  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 1.5 2020 July 16 

Subject:  Consulting Service Agreements Terms and Conditions 

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: Joe Trapasso  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Si tes  Staf f  Repor t  QA/QC:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Informat iona l  
Authority 

Agent: Joe Trapasso  Ref/File #:  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  1 
 

Requested Action :   

 

Consider  approval  of the revised changes to the Authori ty  Consult ing Services 

Agreement.  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background :  

 

The Sites Project Authori ty’s s taff,  in coordination with General  Counsel ,  

previously  developed the Si tes Standard Consult ing Services Agreement which 

has been used as the standard contract for consul tant services  s ince July  2018.  

 

Recently  a need was determined to expand compl iance with al l  appl icable laws, 

specif ical ly incorporat ing any agreement and agreement amendments between 

the Authori ty and a state or federal  agency  funding agreement into the 

agreements of the Authori ty’s consul tants.   Attachment A covers the standard 

condit ions in  the consult ing agreements.  S imi lar  provis ions wi l l  be added to  

agreements wi th other service providers  where state and/or federal  funding i s 

involved.   

 

Pr ior  Action:  

 

At the July  20,  2018 Reservoi r  Committee  meeting,  the Sites Consult ing Services 

Agreement was approved. 

 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source : 

 

The addit ional standard condit ions are not expected to increase costs for  

consul t ing services s ince the consul tants working on the Sites project also perform 

work for State and Federal  agency’s which means they already have workplace 

programs in  place to meet these requirements.   

 

Staf f Contact :  

 

Joe Trapasso  

 

At tachments :  

 

Attachment A:  Proposed Language Revis ions.  



 
 

2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee, 

Agenda Item 1.5 Attachment A 

ADDITIONAL LANGUAGE TO AUTHORITY CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT  

July 2020 

 

Minor language additions to the Authority’s Standard Consulting Services 

Agreement are in red which has been approved by Authority legal counsel. 

1.  Services g. Use of Employees, Subconsultants and Subcontractors. Consultant 

shall furnish sufficient qualified personnel necessary to perform the Services and 

shall provide and employ all required equipment, materials and supplies necessary 

to perform the Services in accordance with the completion schedule for the 

Services. Any subconsultant or subcontractor that will provide services shall be listed 

in the Task Order with a corresponding Hourly Rate Schedule. Consultant shall not 

commission the services of any new or additional subconsultant or subcontractor 

without the approval of the Authority, which approval the Authority may withhold 

or condition in its reasonable discretion to ensure adherence to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, and which approval shall, if granted, be 

memorialized in the form of a Change Order. Consultant shall determine the 

method, details, and means of performing the Services and may at its own cost, 

employ such employees, subconsultants and subcontractors as it deems necessary 

to perform the Services. Authority may not control, direct or supervise Consultant’s 

employees, subconsultants or subcontractors in the performance of the Services, 

and Authority shall not be liable for any expenses or costs relating to Consultant’s 

employees, subconsultants or subcontractors unless Authority has agreed in writing, 

prior to the time such expenses or costs are incurred, to reimburse Consultant for 

such expenses. Consultant shall ensure that any contract entered into with any 

subconsultant or subcontractor is expressly subject to all applicable terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, which applicable terms and conditions include, 

without limitation, those governing insurance, applicable laws, indemnification, 

ownership of work product, confidentiality and conflicts of interest. 

8.  Compliance with Laws.  The Services shall conform to the requirements of all 

governmental agencies having jurisdiction over the Services. Consultant shall also 

comply with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and 

orders applicable to the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, 

including all licensing requirements and occupational, health, safety, employment 

and environmental laws. Such applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and 

orders shall include, without limitation, those that are specifically incorporated into 

any agreement between Authority and a state or federal agency pertaining to the 

Services, which agency agreement and any amendments thereto the Authority will 

provide to Consultant following their execution. Consultant shall bear all costs, 

expenses and liabilities related to any changes in the Services to conform to such 

laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and orders. 



 
Top ic :  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 1.6 2020 July 16 

Subject:  Workgroup Charter Documents 

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: Jer ry Brown  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Si tes  Staf f  Repor t  QA/QC:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Informat iona l  
Authority 

Agent: Jer ry Brown  Ref/File #:  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  1 
 

Requested Action :   

Consider approval  of the Coordination,  Engineering and Operations,  

Environmental  Planning and Permitt ing  and Joint Budget and Finance 

Workgroups Charter  Document  updates.  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background:  

The Reservoir  Committee and the Authori ty Board each recently went through a 

process to re-evaluate and establ i sh the i r  respective workgroup and committee 

st ructures for the upcoming 18 months of  project work .  Each workgroup has met 

and considered i ts charter and i s recommending Reservoir  Committee approval  

of  updated documents .  

Along with the individual workgroup charters,  there i s an overarching chart ing 

document that the Reservoir  Committee  previously establ i shed to general ly 

inform the purpose,  roles and responsib i l i t ies  and part icipat ion guidel ines for 

workgroups (Attachment B) .  No changes are being proposed to this  document 

at thi s t ime.  

The Authori ty  Board has gone through a s imi lar  process relat ive to the charter  

documents of  i t s committees and wi l l  be asked to approve thei r  updates at i t s 

July 2020 meeting. According to Section 9 of the November 2016 Authori ty 

Bylaws,  the charter documents must be approved by the Authori ty Board.  

 

Pr ior  Action:  

 

None. 

 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source : 

 

None.  

 

Staf f Contact :  

 

Jer ry Brown 

 

At tachments :  

 

Attachment A:  Individual Charter  Documents .  

Attachment B: Charter Document Attachment A.  



Top ic:  Sites Reservoir Project, Phase 2 2020 July 1 6 

Subject :  Reservoir  Committee’s Coordination Work  Group  

C oo r d in a t i on  W o rk  G r ou p Ch a r t e r i ng  Do cu m ent  

Status: For  Coord inat ion Work  Group’ s  rev iew Preparer: Brown  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: In format ional  
Checker

:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  18  

Caveat: Subject  to  change QA/QC:  Page 1 of  2  

 

Status :  Ad Hoc 

Leader  Thad Bettner  (GCID, Chair)  

Members  Jeff Davis  (SGPWA, Vice Chair)  

Leaders f rom each chartered working group  of  the 

Reservoi r  Committee,  and any other members of the 

Reservoi r  Committee designated by the Chai rperson  (or  

thei r  respective designated representative) 1 

Budget & Finance Jamie Traynham (Davis  WD, Chair  & Treasurer)  

 Robert  Cheng (CVWD, Vice Chair)  

Res. Ops. & Eng.  Rob Kunde (WR-M WSD, Chair)  

 Mike Azevedo (Colusa Co.,  Vice  Chai r)  

Env.  & Permits  Thad Bettner (GCID, Chair)  

 Heather Dyer (SBVMWD, Vice Chair)  

Staff Support :  

1.  The Executive Di rector  and/or hi s/her des ignated representat ive .  

2.  Legal counsel  on an as needed basi s .  

3.  Special ty advisors or experts  on an as need basi s.  

Formation:  Apri l  3,  2020 (E lections)  

Expires :  Annual ly,  commensurate with elections,  which occur in  February 

or  March, and in  any event,  expires at the end of  the Phase 2 

(2019)  Agreement .  

NOTES:  The Authori ty’s Joint  Exercise of  Powers Agreement (Section VI)  -  

including the Bylaws -  al low for the creation of specif ic Project 

Agreement Committees to be assigned the responsibi l i ty to 

perform specif ic functions associated with advancing the S i tes 

Reservoi r  Project  

Related Documents :  

▪  Attachment A:  Work Group Charter ing Process,  General  Requi rements.  

 
1  The total  number  of  part ic ipat ing  agencies  on th is  Work Group shal l  not  exceed the 

Pro ject Agreement Committee’s quorum thre shold.  



 

 Page 2  of  2  

Purpose:   To faci l i tate the Reservoir  Committee’s abi l i ty  to perform the functions 

delegated to i t  by the Authori ty ,  which are defined in  the Reservoi r  Project 

Agreement;  the Work Group ’s  role is  advisory  and may make no binding 

decis ions for the Reservoi r  Committee or Authori ty .  

Meeting Frequency:   When ei ther the Chair  or  Vice-Chair  deems necessary .  

Work Group ’s  Roles and Responsibi l i t ies :  

▪  Acting in an administer ial  role,  serves as the clearinghouse to assign and/or 

pr ior i t ize matters  of  interest  to the most-appropriate work group; who wi l l  

then prepare a recommendation to the Reservoi r  Committee for  

consideration and possible act ion.  

Should either  the l ikel ihood for  potential  dupl ication o f  effort between work 

groups exi st  or  the need to ensure integrat ion between work groups exi st ,  

ass ign one work group to be the overal l  lead.  

▪  To ensure each work group i s performing their  duties  eff iciently,  effect ively,  

t imely report ing to the Reservoi r  C ommittee, and in accordance with thei r  

respective charter ing document.  In addit ion,  to prevent the dupl ication of  

effort  between mult iple work groups.   

NOTES:  Agreement by the Chair  and Vice-chai r  i s  needed to appoint or  

replace a Work Group Leader  

▪  To ensure the status of  the Reservoir  Committee’s efforts  are being re ported 

in a t imely  manner.  This  may include request in g specif ic i tems be included 

in the Au thor i ty’s  meeting agenda for  the Authori ty’s  consideration.  

▪  To ensure information from the Authori ty i s  presented to the Reservoir  

Committee for  their  consideration  on a t imely manner. Thi s may include 

overs ight of the Reservoir  Committee’s meeting agenda.  

▪  Maintain  and recommend interpretation of the Reservoir  Committee’s  

governance documents .  

 



Top ic:  Sites Reservoir Project, Phase 2 2020 July 16 

Subject :  Reservoir  Committee ’s  Reservoir  Operations and Engineering  

Workgroup 

W o rk g ro u p  Cha r t e r i n g  D oc um en t  

Status: Adopted  May 18 ,  2020 Preparer: Heyd inger  Phase: 1 Version: D 

Purpose: Informat iona l  Checker: Watson  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat:  QA/QC:  Ref/File #: 12.228-290.110 

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  3 
 

Status: Ad Hoc 

▪  Leaders: Chair   Vice Chair  

WR-M WSD, Rob Kunde Colusa County, Mike 

Azevedo 

▪  Members (10): GCID, Thad Bettner  SCVWD, Er ic Leitterman 

  Cindy Kao 

CVWD, Robert Cheng Dunnigan, Bi l l  Vanderwaal 

Ivory Reyburn  

Westside WD, Dan Ruiz SBVMWD, Bob Tincher 

  Heather Dyer 

Zone 7, Amparo Flores MWDSC, Randall Neudeck 

NOTE: Should a work group member not be able to participate, one of 

the alternates wil l  be asked to participate. Should more than 10 

participants to the Phase 2 (2019) Reservoir Project Agreement plan to 

attend, at least 3 days prior ,  the meeting wil l  be publicly noticed 

along with post ing of the agenda. 

▪  Alternates (3): Davis WD/TC4, Jeff Sutton SCVWA, Dirk Marks 

   American Canyon, Rick Kaufman 

▪  Non-Voting (2):   Rob Cooke –  DWR  TBD - Reclamation 

▪  Expert ise:  Staff from part icipating agencies who have specif ic 

expertise that is relevant to the matter being 

addressed by this work group. 

▪  Staff Support: 

1.  The Executive Director and the EPP Manager. 

2.  Legal counsel on an as needed basis.  

3.  Other specialty advisors or experts on an as needed basis.  

▪  Formation: March 19, 2020 



 

 Page 2  of  3  

▪  Expires:  End of the Phase 2 Amendment Reservoir Project 

Agreement 

Related Documents: 

▪  Attachment A: Work Group Chartering Process, General Requirements 

Purpose:  To advise the Reservoi r Committee on matters related to  

1.  The proposed reservoir operation to include in the EIR/S, permit 

applications,  Project Operations Plan, the Author ity- led Feasibil ity, to 

comply with other statutory requirements , and WSIP-related 

agreements for public benefits.  

2.  The proposed cooperative or integrated operations with Reclamation 

and Department of Water Resources that wi l l  be needed to optimize 

both consumptive water supplies and water-based public benefits as 

defined, respectively in Reclamation’s Feasibi l i ty Report and to 

provide the water-based public benefits  as approved by the California 

Water Commiss ion as part of their administration of Prop 1, Chapter 8 

(WSIP).  

3.  The feasibi l ity- level engineering of the reservoir,  conveyance facil i t ies , 

and appurtenant structures for incorporation into both the Final EIR/S, 

the Authority- led Feasibi l i ty Study to fulf i l l  Prop 1 funding el igibi l i ty  

requirements, and the integration of Reclamation’s feasibil ity studies. 

Meeting Frequency:  When either a Leader determines or  a Reservoir  

Committee Chairperson requests that a potential issue exists to wa rrant 

convening the work group to develop a recommended resolution or 

response for the Reservoir Committee to then consider and act upon. 

Work Group’s Roles and Responsibil it ies : 

▪  The primary focus areas of this workgroup are 

a.  The new or expanded facil it ies that wil l  convey water to/from the 

Sacramento River for storage in the proposed Sites Reservoir.   This  

includes canals,  pipel ines, regulating reservoirs,  pumping plants, 

both the primary and saddle dams, and grid interconnection 

facil it ies. 

b.  Providing input and reviewing the engineering documents that wi l l  

be relied upon in the EIR/S, and permit applications, and the 

Author ity- led Feasibil ity Study. 

c. Input to the development of an over-arching procurement st rategy 

by project phases and to sol icit proposals from consultants to 



 

 Page 3  of  3  

perform work to advance the project in Phase 2. This wil l  include 

preparation and review of solic itat ion documents, participation in 

the proposal reviews and rankings, interviews with short- l is ted f irms,  

and development of a recommendation to execute selective 

contracts.  

d.  Developing and ref in ing the range of operational strategies 

addressing the anticipated competing uses for consumptive and 

public benefit al locations for consideration by the Reservoir 

Committee. 

e.  Developing the details of the water supply components of the 

operational strategies to produce a refined approach that wil l  

serve as the foundation to work with USBR and DWR to init ial ly 

develop foundational operating principles that wil l  eventually 

become the basis for a cooperative operating agreement to 

coordinate Sites operations (both consumptive and Prop 1) with the 

CVP operations and SWP operations.  

f.  Refining the range of the Prop 1 water-related public benefits ( i.e. 

ecosystem, water quality, and emergency response) for inclusion 

into the WSIP-related agreements  and serve as the basis for init ial 

pre-application discussions with the permitting agencies. 

g.  Review of Reclamation’s Feasibil ity to ensure consistency with the 

Author ity- led feasibil ity studies . 

h.  Input & review of the WSIP-related agreements for water-related 

benefits  

i .  Support the development of pre-application work efforts 

anticipating the need for: 

•  A revised water r ight application to the SWRCB,  

•  Incidental take authorization from state and federal wildl i fe 

agencies ( involving the CDFW, NMFS, and USFWS),  

•  Modif ication of the f lood protection and Sacramento River water 

quality ( involving the Central Val ley Flood Protection Board, US 

Army Corps of Engineers, and RWQCB) 

•  Compliance with other regulatory requirements 

 



Top ic:  Sites Reservoir Project, Phase 1 (2019) 2020 July 16 

Subject :  Reservoir  Committee ’s Environmental  and Permitt ing Work Group  

W o rk  G r ou p Ch a r te r i ng  Do cu me n t  

Status: For  Workg roup cons ide ra t ion  Preparer: Forsythe  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Informat iona l  Checker:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Subject  to change  QA/QC:  Ref/File #: 12.228-025 .000 

eFile: 01-06A  Env i ronmenta l  P lann ing and  Pe rmi t t i ng Workgroup Char ter  Page: 1 o f  2 
 

Status: Ad Hoc 

▪  Leaders: Chair   Vice Chair 

 Thad Bettner, GCID Heather Dyer (SBVMWD) 

▪  Members (9):  Mike Azevedo (Colusa Co.)  Randall Neudeck (MWD) 

Robert Cheng (CVWD)  Bi l l  Vanderwaal (DWD) 

Jeff Davis  (SGPWA)   

Rob Kunde (WR-M WSD)    

Er ic Leitterman (Valley Water) 

  

▪  Expert ise:  PCWA/Rosevi l le for Lower American River   

Staff from part icipating agencies who have specif ic 

expertise that is relevant to the matter being 

addressed by this work group. 

▪  Staff Support: 

1.  Environmental Planning and Permitt ing Manager. 

2.  Legal counsel on an as needed basis.  

3.  Other specialty advisors or experts,  including consultant team 

members on an as needed basis.  

▪  Re-Adoption of Charter : June 17, 2020 

▪  Expires:  End of the Phase 2 Reservoir Project Agreement 

Related Documents : 

▪  Attachment A: Work Group Chartering Process, General Requirements  

Purpose:  To advise the Reservoir  Committee on all environmental 

planning and permitt ing aspects of the development and implementation 

of pre-construction, construction, and mit igation actions for the S ites 

Reservoir Project.  

Meeting Frequency:  When either the Leader determines or the Reservoir  

Committee Chairperson requests that a potential issue exists to warrant 

convening the work group to develop a recommended resolut ion or 

response for the Reservoir Committee to then consider and act upon.  



 Page 2  of  2  

 

Work Group’s Roles and Responsibil it ies : 

▪  The primary focus of this work group is to review and provide input to:  

1.  The Author ity’s adoption of CEQA Guidelines, revis ions to those 

Guidelines, if  any,  and proposed environmental polic ies.  

2.  The Authority’s development, completion, and implementation of 

all environmental  planning and permitt ing aspects of pre-

construction, construction, environmental commitments, and 

mit igation actions for the Sites Reservoir Project.    

NOTE: The review of operations or construction permits,  and 

approvals has been assigned to the Reservoir Operations and 

Engineering Work Group (e.g. , Dam Safety,  Traff ic).  



 

Top ic :  Authority Phase 2 (2020) 2020 Jul 16 

Subjec t :  Joint Budget and Finance Committee 

Comm it tee  Charter ing  Docume nt  

Status: For  Commi t tee  Cha i r /V ice Cha i r  Cons iderat ion  Preparer: Trapasso  Phase: 2 Version: A  
Purpose: Approva l  Checker: Traynham/Cheng  Date: Ju l y  2020 
Caveat: Subjec t  to  change  QA/QC: Traynham/Cheng   Ref/File #: 12 .228-210.700 
  Page: 1  o f  2  

 

Status: Ad Hoc 
  Chair:  Jamie Traynham (Davis WD) 
  Vice Chair:  Robert Cheng (CVWD) 
  Members (6):  Thad Bettner (GCID) 

Katrina Jessop (SCVWD) 
 Rob Kunde (WR-M WSD) 

Shelly Murphy (Colusa County WD) 
Dan Ruiz (Westside WD) 
Bil l Vanderwaal (RD-108) 

  Staff Lead: Joe Trapasso 
  Staff Support:  Legal counsel on an as needed basis 

Other specialty advisors or experts on an as needed basis 

  Formation: May 27, 2020 

  Expires: End of the Phase 2 (2019) Reservoir Project Agreement 

Related Documents: 

  Attachment A: Work Group Chartering Process, General Requirements 

Purpose:  To advise the Reservoir Committee and Authority Board on:  

a.  Status of expenditures,  

b.  Progress related to implementation of Work Plans, 

c.  Contract and task order documents, 

d.  Agreements such as the 2019 Reservoir Participat ion Agreement 

e.  Credit Reimbursement Policy, 

f.  Proposed finance plan, and  



 Page 2  of  2  

g.  Project’s overall  economics for inclusion in the Feasibi l ity Report and WSIP-
required state feasibi l ity assessment. 

Meeting Frequency:  When either the Chair determines, or an Authority 
Chairperson requests that a potent ial  issue exists to warrant convening the 
Committee to develop a recommended resolution or response for the Authority 
to then consider and act upon. 

Committee’s Roles and Responsibilities: 

  The primary focus areas of this work group are: 

a.  Serve as the Authority’s budget committee to manage the planned, 
actual, and forecast costs for Phase 2.         

b .  Maintaining both the Cost Development Model and Credit reimbursement 
Policy; 

c.  Assessment of the Project ’s overall economic feasibi l ity; 

d.  Recommending a financing strategy for each subsequent project phase; 

e.  Recommending how requests to part ic ipate should proceed; including the 
rebalancing processes that wil l occur prior to the end of August 2020 and 
December 31, 2021. 

f.  Review monthly payment of claims for adequacy to recommend approval 
to the Reservoir Committee and Authority Board. 

g.  Review of Reclamation’s Feasibi l ity Study for both economic and f inancial 
feasibi l ity. 

NOTE: The review for technical feasibi l ity has been assigned to the Water 
Facil it ies Work Group. 



 

Topic: Sites Reservoir Project , Phase 2           2020 July 16 

Subject:  Reservoir Committee ’s Work Groups 

W o r k  G r o u p  C h a r t e r i n g  P r o c e s s ,  G e n e r a l  R e q u i r e m e n t s   

( A t t a c h m e n t  A  t o  e a c h  W o r k  G r o u p ’ s  C h a r t e r i n g  D o c u m e n t )  

Status: I s s ued  f o r  U se  Preparer: Brown  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Informat iona l  Checker:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Subject  to change  QA/QC:  Ref/File #: 12.228-200 .000 

eFile: 01-06B Char ter  P2  (2019)  At tachment  A  Page: 1 o f  3 
 

Introduction:  Advancing the Sites Reservoir Project (Project) requires the 

integration of both mult iple discipl ines and the respective values each 

participant expects to obtain through th is and potentially subsequent 

phases.  Given the size and complexity  of this Project, the work has been 

organized into major categories of work (e.g. cost centers) that serve as 

the basis for executing specif ic Project Agreements , such as the Reservoir 

Committee for the Project’s Phase 2 (2019) 1.   

In anticipation of the need to expeditiously and cost-effectively resolve 

issues, the Reservoir Committee has been further organized into work 

groups by key topic areas.  Each work group wil l  be advisory to the 

Reservoir Committee and be responsible for developing 

recommendations for the Reservoir Committee’s consideration regarding 

the specif ic matter assigned to them by an over-arching Coordination 

Work Group. The Coordination Work Group ’s purpose is to (a) perform 

minister ial functions that are intended to  ensure integration and facil itate 

timely decision-making by the Reservoir Committee  and (b) both 

maintenance of and recommend interpretation of the Reservoir 

Committee’s  governance documents . 

Chartering Document ’s  Purpose:  

▪  To define the primary roles and responsibil it ies applicable to each 

work group to address specif ic matters and to avoid the potential for 

duplication of effort among mult iple work groups ; 

▪  To establ ish a timeline for completion of the specif ic assignment with 

the expectation its  role be revis ited and, as appropriate, the 

chartering document either be amended or a new work group be 

created. 

Work Group Roles and Responsibil it ies:   Each work group’s primary roles 

and responsibi l i t ies  include the following, which are in addition to 

specif ic assignment identif ied in their respective chartering document:  

 
1  Since Phase 1,  the Author i ty  and Reservoi r  Committee have been deemed to each 

be a legi s lat ive body as refer red to in the Brown Act .  Should there be a need for  an 

Author i ty Committee to  meet  with a Reservo i r  Committee’s Work Group, so long as 

both are advi sory,  the resu l t ing meet ing does  not  have to be not iced.  



 

 Page 2  of  3  

▪  To keep the Reservo i r  Committee’s Leadership Team appraised of the 

work group’s progress and the escalation of issues in a t imely manner.  

▪  To incorporate the Reservoir Committee’s direction to their respective 

work group; to then provide recommendations back to the Reservoir 

Committee for their consideration and eventual disposit ion (e.g. 

adoption of a document or recommended pol icy).  

▪  To review staff and consultant developed work products and/or 

deliverables for:  

a.  Acceptabil ity with the applicable standard of practice related 

primari ly to technical and quality considerations;  

b.  Identif ication of potential scope changes that may affect –  both 

posit ively and negatively –  the approved annual budget, target 

work plan, and/or schedule; 

c. Identif ication of potential ly s ignif icant changes in r isk  and/or the 

reallocation of r isk;  

d.  Identif ication of potential pol icy issues;  and, 

e.  Ensuring a consol idated set of comments is maintained and final 

acceptance of how subsequent versions have addressed prior 

comments.  

▪  Where issues require an integrated response from mult iple work groups, 

the Reservoir Committee’s leadership team may assign a lead who wil l  

then coordinate with each of the required work groups to develop an 

integrated response for the Reservoir Committee’s consideration.  

▪  Each work group’s activit ies are ad hoc in nature in that they are 

l imited in scope to that which is provided for in the accompanying 

“Work Group Chartering Document” and presently anticipated to be 

completed within a phase (or year) , generally through review of 

portions of drafts  of feasibil i ty studies, the EIR/S and the WSIP 

application and related documents.  

Participation:  Organizations2 who are signatory to the Reservoir 

Committee and deemed to be in good standing by the Coordination 

Work Group, have been approved to provide in -kind services to the 

Reservoir Committee, may designate personnel to represent their interests 

and serve in an act ive capacity to any Work Group.  Reservoir 

Committee Work Groups may also include as technical advisors  who are 

not s ignatory to the Reservoir Committee, but whose specif ic knowledge 

and expertise is deemed essential to  advise on specif ic issues. This can 

 
2  Refer to Project Agreement Committee’s charter ing document, which 

defines membership types appl icable to al low part icipation in the 

respective Project Agreement Committee.  



 

 Page 3  of  3  

include Author ity Members, Associate Members, and non-voting cost-

share partners or Ex Officio Members. 



 
 

Top ic:  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 1.7 2020 July 16 

Subject :  Contract Amendment for Professional Services (Brown and 

Caldwell) 

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: Robinet te  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Staf f  Report  QA/QC: T rapasso  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Approval  Act ion 
Authority 

Agent: T rapasso  Ref/File #: 12.221 -210.018  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  2 

 

Requested Action :  

Consider approval of  an amendment to Brown and Caldwel l ’s (Project Controls )  

contract  and task order scope of work  and budget in the amount of  $31,881 for  

a new total  contract authori ty  of  $1,942,399.   

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background : 

The Project Controls  contract supports  the Project Operat ions Manager provid ing 

pr imari ly  staff  augmentation to cover f inancial  and administ rat ive activi t ies.   

Brown and Caldwel l  was compe tit ively se lected for these services  in March 2019 

and an Amendment 1B task order was i ssued in February 2020 to carry these 

services through August 2020. Through the past s ix months, addit ional work was 

incurred in these areas developing work plans , leading the rebalancing and 

outreach efforts ,  and support ing early funding agreement changes wi th the 

CWC.  Also,  the Executive Di rector  has been delegating more of the 

administ rat ive activi t ies to the B&C support staff to free up his t ime for highe r 

value activi t ies .   Staff  t r ied to st retch the contract authori ty  through to August  

2020 but has come up short  and a modest increase i s  necessary to continue to 

provide these important functions in  August .     

Prior  Action:  

February 26, 2020: Approved Project Controls task order amendment of $899,156 

for the period of January 1, 2020 through August 31, 2020.  

January 17, 2020:  Approved Amendment 1B Work Plan for the period of January 

1, 2020 through August 31, 2020 as part of  a no cost t ime extension to the then 

current Part icipation Agreement.  The Amendment included summary - level  

descr ipt ions of the del iverables wi th est imated Reservoi r  Committee budgets.  

Each del iverable budget was further  defined in  the document by the level  of 

effort  requi red to complete each del iverable by consultant for u se in  developing 

amended consultant task orders intended to be submitted for approval to the 

Reservoi r  Committee and Authori ty  Board in February 2020.  

December 19, 2019: Approved a recommendation to the Sites Project Authori ty  

to approve an amendment to Brown and Caldwel l ’s (B&C) (Project Controls)  

contract period of performance by extending their  task order f rom December 31,  

2019 through June 30, 2020 with no change in thei r  cost .  



 

 Page 2  of  2  

March 22, 2019:  Approved a recommendation to the Si tes Project Authori ty  to 

approve the Brown and Caldwel l  Phase 2 (2019) task order and budget for  

project controls  services f rom Apri l  1,  2019 through December 31, 2019.  

January 18, 2019:  Delegated responsibi l i ty  to the Ad Hoc Finance and Economics 

Work Group to review and consider accepting the terms and condit ions and 

recommending to the Sites Project Authori ty to approve the agreement 

negotiated by staff .  

November 16, 2018 : Approved a recommendation to the Si tes Project Authori ty 

to accept the evaluation panel’s  selection of  B&C for  Service Area B –  Project  

Controls .  

August 16, 2018 : Approved a recommendation to the Si tes Project Authori ty to 

the release of  the Project Development Support  Services RFQ-18-04.  

Fiscal  Impact/Funding Source : 

The BC contract cei l ing i s proposed to increase by $31,881 with thi s amendment 

to complete the addit ional scope of work. Thi s addit ional  budget would increase 

the contract budget cei l ing to a not to exceed amount of $1,942, 399.  

Thi s  change wi l l  be accommodated within  the Amendment 1B Work Plan  total  

budget.  $31,881 wi l l  be real located f rom the General  Manager (GM) budget 

(Reservoir  Committee share).  The Reservoir  Committee share of the GM budget 

in the Amendment 1B Work Plan  is  $258,400.  Actual spend to date for the GM is 

$159,763 and no further  invoices are anticipated , leaving $98,637 remaining.  This 

reallocation does not impact the Amendment 1B carryover funds previously discussed as part of 

the cash call process. 

Staf f Contact :  

Joe Trapasso  

Attachments :  

Attachment A:  Task Order  Amendment.  



 

2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee, 

Agenda Item 1.7 Attachment A 

 

Sites Project Authority 

Project Controls 

Task Order Amendment 

 

Consultant: Brown and Caldwell  

Task Order No. 2.4 

Task Order No. 2.4 amends the current Brown and Caldwell Consulting Agreement and task order 

work activities with the Authority for Project Controls Services for the period of performance through 

August 31, 2020. This task order amendment expands the scope of work and increases the budget 

as presented below. 

Scope of Work 

Brown and Caldwell has been providing additional administrative support to the Authority’s new 

Executive Director and has supported changes to the Early Funding Agreement with the California 

Water Commission (CWC) to provide increased project revenue. Additional administrative support 

is required in support of planned town hall meetings and strategic planning sessions. Brown and 

Caldwell has developed Participation Agreement work plans for the Reservoir Committee, and has 

supported recent rebalancing efforts. Finally, additional changes are required to the Amendment 

2 Work Plan based on increased CWC revenue, cash call timing due to COVID-19, project 

rebalancing, and negotiated task orders. 

Budget 

The Brown and Caldwell contract ceiling is increased by $31,881 with this amendment to complete 

the additional scope of work. This additional budget increases the contract budget ceiling to a not 

to exceed amount of $1,942,399. 

Period of Performance 

The period of performance of the task order does not change with this amendment and remains 

as August 31, 2020. 

 

Brown and Caldwell Sites Project Authority 

 

 

 

By: ________________ By: _____________________________ 

 

Printed Name:  ____________________ Printed Name: __________________ 

 

Date:   ____________________________ Date: ___________________________ 

 



 
 

Top ic:  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 2.1 2020 July 16 

Subject :  2019 Financial Audit Report  

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: T rapasso  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Staf f  Report  QA/QC:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: In format ional  
Authority 

Agent: T rapasso  Ref/File #:  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  1 

 

Requested Action:  

 

Accept the Financial  Auditor’s  Report.  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background : 

 

Fechter and Company, CPA, was awarded a contract to conduct an audit of the 

Authori ty’s f inancial  information for the f iscal years 2016, 2017 and 2018. The 

audit  for  the f i scal  years  2016 and 2017 were in it iated in  Apri l  2018 and completed 

in early July.  The f i scal year 2018 audit report was in i t iated in Apri l  2019 and 

completed in  July  2019.  

 

The Authori ty approved Fechter and Company to conduct the f iscal year 2019 

audit .   I t  was started Apri l  2020 and concluded June 2020.  

 

The report for f i scal year 2019 concludes: “ In our opinion, the f inancial  statements 

refer red to above present fai r ly ,  in  al l  mater ial  respects,  the f inancial  posit ion of  

the Authori ty  as of December 31, 2018, and the results of i t s operations and cash 

f lows for the years then ended in c onformity wi th accounting pr inciples general ly  

accepted in the United States of America. ”  

 

I t  should be noted current l iabi l i t ies  increased f rom $2,146,939 as of December 

31,  2018 to $6,793,111 as of  December 31, 2019,  due pr imari ly  to an increase in 

the Authori ty’s Part ic ipant Reimbursement Pol icy  l iabi l i ty.  

 

Pr ior  Reservoir  Commit tee Action:  

 

None.  
 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source : 

 

None.  

 

Staf f Contact:  

 

Joe Trapasso 

 

At tachments :  

 

Attachment A –  2019 Financial  Audit Report .  

 

Attachment B –  2019 Management Report .  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
With 

Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2019 

 

MKivett
Text Box
2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,
Agenda Item 2.1 Attachment A




SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Annual Financial Report 
December 31, 2019 

 
 

 

Table of Contents 

   Page  

Introductory Section 

Organization of Authority and List of Board of Directors ....................................................... 1 

Financial Section 

Independent Auditor’s Report .................................................................................................. 2-3 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis .................................................................................. 4-7 

Basic Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position ................................................................................................... 8 

Statement of Activities ....................................................................................................... 9 

Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ................................................................................ 10 

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ........................... 11 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements .................................................................................. 12-17 

Required Supplementary Information 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Budget to Actual                       
– General Fund ................................................................................................................... 18 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Budget to Actual                       
– Reservoir Fund ................................................................................................................ 19 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information ....................................................................... 20 

Other Reports 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial  

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an  
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with  
Government Auditing Standards..................................................................................................21-22 



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Organization of Authority and List of Board of Directors 
December 31, 2019 

 

1 

Sites Project Authority (the Authority) was established on August 26, 2010, when seven regional 
entities, including several local water agencies and Counties, executed the Joint Exercise of Power 
Agreement. The primary purpose of the Authority, as stated in the agreement, is to pursue the 
development and construction of the Sites Reservoir Project, which has long been viewed as an ideal 
location for additional off stream storage to provide direct and real benefits to instream flows, the Delta 
ecosystem, and water supply. In keeping their commitment to move the project forward on behalf of 
the region, the Authority has spent the last nine years working towards this goal by engaging the public, 
various stakeholders, state and federal agencies and landowners, initiating the required environmental 
planning process, and conducting feasibility studies, among other efforts. 

 

 GOVERNING BOARD  

   

Name Office Member Represented 

Fritz Durst Chair Reclamation District 108 

Gray Allen Vice Chair Placer County Water Agency 

Gary Evans Member County of Colusa 

Joe Marsh Member Colusa County Water District 

Leigh McDaniel Member County of Glenn 

Logan Dennis Member Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District 

Jeff Harris Member City of Sacramento 

Jeff Sutton Member Tehama-Colusa Canal Authority 

Doug Parker Member Westside Water District 

Jamie Traynham Treasurer TC 4 Districts 

Greg Johnson Member - Non-Voting Western Canal Water District 

Don Bader Cost-Share Partner - Non-Voting U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 

Rob Cooke Ex-Officio - Non-Voting CA Department of Water Resources 

   



  

2 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 

Board of Directors 
Sites Project Authority 
Maxwell, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major 
fund of the Sites Project Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 



 

3 

Board of Directors 
Sites Project Authority 
Maxwell, California 
 
Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and cash 
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis information, and the budgetary comparison schedules, as listed 
in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
June 15, 2020, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Fechter & Company 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
 
 
 
Sacramento, California 
June 15, 2020



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
December 31, 2019 

 

4 

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance 
of the Sites Project Authority (the Authority) provides an introduction to the financial statements of the 
Authority for the year ended December 31, 2019, and a comparison to the prior audited financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information 
presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the Introductory Section and with the basic 
financial statements and related notes, which follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 
 

 The Authority’s assets exceed liabilities by $5,898,590 as of December 31, 2019. 
 

 The Authority’s revenues exceeded expenditures by $4,436,226 for the year ending 
December 31, 2019. The Authority’s largest expense was for professional services. Professional 
services were 67% of total expenses for the year ending December 31, 2019. 

Required Financial Statements 
 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities provide information about the activities and performance of the Authority using 
accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies. 
 
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Authority’s investments in resources (assets) and the 
obligations to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating 
the capital structure of the Authority, and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Authority. 
All of the current period’s revenue and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities. This 
statement measures the success of the Authority’s operations over the past year and can be used to 
determine if the Authority has successfully recovered all of its costs through its revenues. This statement 
can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness. 
 
More detailed information about the Authority’s most significant funds – not the Authority as a whole, 
is provided in the fund financial statements.  Funds are accounting devices the Authority uses to keep 
track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs. The Balance Sheet for 
governmental funds presents financial information by fund types showing money left at year-end 
available for spending.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for 
all governmental fund types focuses on how money flows into and out of the various funds.   
 
Financial Analysis of the Authority 

 

One of the most important questions asked about the Authority finances is, “Is the Authority better off 
or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities report information about the Authority in a way that helps answer this question. These 
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most private sector companies.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are 
taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid. 

 
These two statements report the Authority’s net assets and changes in them. You can think of the 
Authority’s net assets – the difference between assets and liabilities – as one way to measure the 
Authority’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Authority’s 



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
December 31, 2019 

 

5 

net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one 
will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population 
growth, zoning, and new or changed government legislation, such as changes in Federal and State 
regulations. 
 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the basic financial statements. 
 
Statement of Net Position 
 

 
As discussed earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. In the case of the Authority, assets exceeded liabilities by $5,898,590 and $1,462,364 as of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

 
The largest portion, 58%, of the Authority’s assets was cash in bank as of December 31, 2019. 
 
Current liabilities increased from $2,146,939 as of December 31, 2018, to $6,793,111 as of 
December 31, 2019, due primarily to an increase in the Authority’s Participant Reimbursement Policy 
liability. 
 
At the end of fiscal years 2019 and 2018, the Authority showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net 
position of $5,898,590 and $1,462,364, respectively. 
  

2019 2018 Change
Assets

Cash and investments 7,342,108$   3,567,974$   3,774,134$   
Other current assets 5,349,593     41,329          5,308,264     

Total Assets 12,691,701   3,609,303     9,082,398     

Liabilities
Current liabilities 6,793,111     2,146,939     4,646,172     

Total Liabilities 6,793,111     2,146,939     4,646,172     

Net Position
Unrestricted 5,898,590     1,462,364     4,436,226     

Total Net Position 5,898,590$   1,462,364$   4,436,226$   



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
December 31, 2019 

 

6 

Statement of Activities 
 

 
The Statement of Activities shows how the Authority’s net position changed during the periods.  In the 
case of the Authority, net position increased by $4,436,226 for the year ending December 31, 2019, and 
decreased by $5,686,604 for the year ending December 31, 2018, respectively. 
 
A closer examination of the sources of changes in net position reveals that: 
 
Total revenue, which consisted of member dues and assessments, increased by $19,472,385 from the 
year ending December 31, 2018, to the year ended December 31, 2019, due primarily to the billing of 
Phase 2 of the Project ($11.6 million) and Prop 1 funding ($8.1 million). Total expenses also increased 
by $9,349,555 from the year ending December 31, 2018, to the year ended December 31, 2019, to match 
the Authority's scope of work in 2019.   
 
Authority/Admin expenses comprised 3.15% and 6.71% of total expenses for the years ending December 
31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Reservoir expenses comprised 96.85% and 93.29% of total expenses 
for the years ending December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The Authority’s total budget for the General Fund for the year ended December 31, 2019, showed excess 
revenues over expenditures of $258 compared to the actual amount of $24,264.  The difference was 
primarily due to the determination of critical tasks that were required to be postponed. 
 

 

2019 2018 Change
General Revenues

Membership Admin/Authority 506,294$      691,795$      (185,501)$     
Membership - Water 11,456,740   -                11,456,740   
Prop 1 funding 8,080,794     -                8,080,794     
Interest revenue 121,535        1,183            120,352        

Total Revenues 20,165,363   692,978        19,472,385   

Operating Expenses
Authority/Admin 494,930        427,934        66,996          
Reservoir 15,234,207   5,951,648     9,282,559     

Total Expenditures 15,729,137   6,379,582     9,349,555     

Change in Net Position 4,436,226$   (5,686,604)$  10,122,830$ 

Actual Budget Variance

Revenues 519,194$      515,000$      4,194$          
Operating Expenses 494,930        514,742        (19,812)         

Net Increase 24,264$        258$             24,006$        



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
December 31, 2019 

 

7 

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position 
 
The Authority continues to plan and expand project activities to build the large water infrastructure 
project.  Expanding activities results in a continuation of increases to the annual financial budgets. 
 
The California Water Commission’s Early Funding Agreement (EFA) with the Authority was approved 
mid-2019 for the maximum amount payable by the State to not exceed $40,818,884 for activities 
reasonably related to the completion of environmental documentation and permitting. In 2019, the 
Authority processed and received a State payment of $2,769,021 towards the not to exceed amount for 
eligible activities. In 2020, the Authority will continue to prepare and submit EFA invoices for payment. 
 
The current phase of the project is anticipated to be completed by August 31, 2020, and is fully funded. 
The Authority is planning to finalize the next phase of the project in mid-2020 to initiate work on 
September 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021. The current plan is to fund the next phase of the project 
through a Participants’ cash call and additional received EFA dollars. 
 
Future Plans for the Sites Reservoir Project 
 
As an ongoing part of the EFA funding process, the Authority will continue to prepare and submit 
invoices for payment on a quarterly basis.   
 
The Authority will continue to expand its governance and member participation. 
 
The Authority will be developing a detailed work plan and financing plan for the remainder of Phase 2 
through December 31, 2021. 
 
The Authority will secure additional necessary professional services contracts such as engineering 
contracts to support the implementation of the Phase 2 Work Plan and beyond. Critical Phase 2 activities 
that need to be performed by the professional services includes further work to secure necessary 
environmental permits and agreements, additional operations simulation modeling, and detailed 
engineering work. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the Authority’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders, 
and other interested parties with an overview of the Authority’s financial operations and financial 
condition. Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to 
request additional financial information, please contact the Authority’s Treasurer at P.O. Box 517, 
Maxwell, California 95955 or view the website of the Authority at www.sitesjpa.org. 
  



ASSETS

Cash and investments 7,342,108$         

Due from other governments 35,293                

Grants receivable 5,311,774           

Prepaid expenses 2,526                  

TOTAL ASSETS 12,691,701         

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 728,458              

Participant reimbursement policy 6,064,653           

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,793,111           

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 5,898,590           

NET POSITION 5,898,590$         

SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

8



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:

EXPENSES:

Authority/Admin 494,930$        

Reservoir 15,234,207     

Total expenses 15,729,137$   

GENERAL REVENUES:

Membership Admin/Authority 506,294$        

Membership Water 11,456,740     

Prop 1 funding 8,080,794       

Interest revenue 121,535          

Total general revenues 20,165,363     

Change in net position 4,436,226       

Net position, beginning of fiscal year 1,462,364       

Net position at end of fiscal year 5,898,590$     

SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

9



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

General Special

Fund - Revenue -

Authority Reservoir Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments 504,957$    6,837,151$   7,342,108$   

Due from other governments 12,863        22,430          35,293          

Grants receivable -              5,311,774     5,311,774     

Prepaid expenses 334             2,192            2,526            

TOTAL ASSETS 518,154$    12,173,547$ 12,691,701$ 

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 51,526$      676,932$      728,458$      

Participant reimbursement policy -              6,064,653     6,064,653     

Total liabilities 51,526        6,741,585     6,793,111     

FUND BALANCES

Fund balance:

Assigned to development of the reservoir -              5,431,962     5,431,962     

Unassigned 466,628      -                466,628        

Total fund balance 466,628      5,431,962     5,898,590     

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 518,154$    12,173,547$ 12,691,701$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

10



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

General Special

Fund - Revenue -

Authority Reservoir Total

REVENUES

Membership Admin/Authority 506,294$    -$                 506,294$          

Membership Water -              11,456,740       11,456,740       

Prop 1 funding -              8,080,794         8,080,794         

Interest revenue 12,900        108,635            121,535            

Total revenues 519,194      19,646,169       20,165,363       

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Accounting services 8,527          34,111              42,638              

Audit fees -              11,892              11,892              

Administrative support 13,437        53,749              67,186              

General manager 50,532        385,369            435,901            

Insurance 200             585                   785                   

Office expenses 8,197          4,509                12,706              

Rent expense -              2,500                2,500                

Dues and Subscriptions 15,799        6,981                22,780              

Professional fees 395,821      10,064,129       10,459,950       

Reimbursements -              4,660,713         4,660,713         

Website, computer support 2,182          8,729                10,911              

Miscellaneous 235             940                   1,175                

Total expenditures 494,930      15,234,207       15,729,137       

Net changes in fund balances 24,264        4,411,962         4,436,226         

Fund balances, beginning of year 442,364      1,020,000         1,462,364         

Fund balances, end of year 466,628$    5,431,962$       5,898,590$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2019 

 

12 

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity: Sites Project Authority (the Authority) was established as an 
independent special agency in August of 2010 under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, 
California Government Code, Section 6500. 

As of December 31, 2019, 11 public entities, filling 9 Board seats with 2 government 
agencies serving ex-officio positions and 2 Associate Members, were approved members 
of the Authority as follows: 
 

 
The Authority is a public entity district and therefore, falls under the guidelines of a special 
district governmental entity. The Authority is governed by a board of directors that 
consists of one representative of each member. 
 
The Authority was developed with the purpose to effectively study, promote, develop, 
design, finance, acquire, construct, manage, and operate Sites Reservoir and the related 
facilities. The purpose of pursuing and developing the Sites Reservoir are to: (a) increase 
surface water storage and enhance water management flexibility in the Sacramento 
Valley, (b) provide flood control benefits, (c) improve conditions for fish and wildlife in 
the Sacramento Valley and (d) improve the operation of the State’s water system. 
 
Financial Statement Presentation: The Statement of Net Position and Statement of 
Activities display information about the primary government (the Authority). These 
statements include the financial activities of the overall government. These statements 
report the governmental activities of the Authority, which are normally supported by inter-
governmental revenues. The Authority had no business-type activities as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2019. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for each function of the Authority’s governmental activities.  Direct expenses 
are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and; therefore, are 
clearly identifiable to a particular function.  Program revenues include operating grants.  
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented instead as general 
revenues. 
 

  

Reclamation District 108 Westside Water District 
Placer County Water Agency/ Colusa County Water District

City of Roseville Sacramento County Water Agency/
County of Colusa City of Sacramento
County of Glenn California Department of Water Resources
Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District TC 4 Districts (Associate Member)
Tehama-Colusa Canal Authority Western Canal Water District (Associate 
U. S. Bureau of Reclamation Member)



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2019  

 

13 

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

Fund financial statements of the Authority are organized into one fund which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity. The fund is accounted for by providing a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditures. The Authority reports two funds, the General Fund, which 
accounts for all revenues and expenditures necessary to carry out the administrative 
activities of the Authority, and the Reservoir Fund, a special revenue fund used to account 
for specific work activities for the development of the Sites Reservoir Project and is 
funded by contributions from the Project Agreement Members. 
 
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus: Basis of accounting refers to the point at 
which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in 
the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of 
the measurement focus applied. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when 
the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Authority gives 
(or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include 
grants, entitlements, and donations. 
 
Revenues from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in 
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized 
when measurable and available. Charges for services, operating grants, and use of money 
and property are accrued when their receipt occurs within sixty days after the end of the 
accounting period so as to be both measurable and available. Expenditures are generally 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
 
Cash: The Authority’s cash includes demand deposits. The Authority had no investments 
during the year ending December 31, 2019. 

 
The governing board has not formally adopted any deposit and investment policies that 
limits the Authority’s allowable deposits or investments and addresses the specific type 
of risk to which the Authority is exposed. 
 
Due from Other Governments: Amounts due from other governments represent amounts 
due from member agencies that has been earned but not received by the end of the period. 
 
As of December 31, 2019, the Authority has determined that all amounts are collectable 
and therefore, no doubtful account allowance was deemed necessary as of 
December 31, 2019. 

  



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2019  

 

14 

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

Capital Assets: The Authority defines capital assets as property, plant, equipment, and 
infrastructure assets with an initial individual cost of $5,000 and a useful life of three years 
or more. As of December 31, 2019, the Authority had no capital assets. 
 

Unearned Revenue: This represents amounts received from members that will be applied 
to future billings. 
 

Revenue: The Authority’s revenue is comprised of the following: 
 

General Fund – Authority Revenue 
 
Authority members pay an annual membership fee which is established by the Authority. 
The membership fee for 2019 was $55,000 per member. 
 
Special Revenue – Reservoir Fund 
 

Revenue is recognized according to the Project’s board-approved operating budget for 
each phase of the Project. The Project Agreement Members are billed in accordance with 
their pro-rata share of the budgeted costs for activities undertaken pursuant to the Project 
Agreement.  
 

To withdraw from this Project Agreement, a Project Agreement Member shall give the 
Authority and other Project Agreement Members written notice of such withdrawal not 
less than 30 days prior to the withdrawal date. As of the withdrawal date, all rights of 
participation in this Project Agreement shall cease for the withdrawing Project Agreement 
Member. The financial obligation as prescribed in the Bylaws’ Section 5.10 in effect on 
the withdrawal date, shall consist of the withdrawing Member’s share of the following 
costs: (a) payment of its share of all non-contract costs incurred prior to the date of the 
written notice of withdrawal, and (b) those contract costs associated with funds approved. 
 
Government-Wide Net Position:  
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Government-wide net position is reported in three components - net investment in capital 
assets, restricted, and unrestricted.  These classifications are defined as follows: 
 
Net investment in capital assets – This component consists of capital assets, including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
 
Restricted – This component consists of constraints placed on net position through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, 
contributors, or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2019  

 

15 

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 

Unrestricted – This component consists of all other net position that does not meet the 
definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets”, as defined above. 
 
Governmental Fund Balance: In the governmental fund financial statements, fund 
balances are classified as follows: 
 

Nonspendable – Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a 
nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 
 
Restricted – Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of state or 
federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 
 
Committed – Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by formal 
action of the Authority. 
 
Assigned – Amounts that are designated by the Authority to be used for specific 
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The board of directors has the 
authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. 
 
Unassigned – All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 

 
Estimates: The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Demand Deposits: The carrying amount and the bank balance of the Authority’s cash as 
of December 31, 2019, were $7,342,108 and $7,853,942, respectively. The Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insures deposits up to $250,000. As of 
December 31, 2019, $7,603,942 was in excess of the insurance coverage. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits 
may not be returned to it. The California Government Code and the Authority’s 
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements limiting exposure to 
custodial risk for deposits or investments. The California Government Code requires that 
a bank secures deposits made by state and local governmental units by pledging securities 
in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so 
waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the 
collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by public agencies. 
California law also allows financial institutions to secure the Authority’s deposits by 
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public 
deposits. 

 



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2019  

 

16 

NOTE 3: PROFESSIONAL FEES 
 

 Professional fees for the year ended December 31, 2019, consisted of the following: 
 

 
  

General Special
Fund - Revenue -

Authority Reservoir Total
Env/Biological Services -$              1,265,952$   1,265,952$   
Environmental/Project Operation -                326,300        326,300        
Bond Counsel 3,835            4,747            8,582            
Bus/Comm Manager -                236,373        236,373        
EPP Manager -                215,834        215,834        
Federal Government Affairs Supp 25,000          25,000          50,000          
General Legal Counsel 65,517          74,956          140,473        
Geotechnical Engineering -                193,371        193,371        
Legislative/Reg/Strategic 55,000          33,000          88,000          
Program Ops Manager -                349,666        349,666        
Project Controls -                1,331,250     1,331,250     
Project Delivery Advisor 2,970            1,035            4,005            
Project Integration -                2,378,561     2,378,561     
Communication 191,653        194,107        385,760        
Cost Development Model -                12,753          12,753          
Cultural Study -                19,024          19,024          
Engineering & Technical Service -                244,092        244,092        
Env Planning/Permits Manager -                391,160        391,160        
Public Outreach & Engagement 13,184          8,272            21,456          
Real Estate -                207,176        207,176        
Reservoir Operations -                25,574          25,574          
ROW/Land Management -                16,932          16,932          
Special Legal -                61,934          61,934          
Municipal Advisor -                176,709        176,709        
Operations/Simulation Modeling -                927,470        927,470        
Organizational Assessment 38,662          -                38,662          
Permitting & Agreements -                1,269,631     1,269,631     
Project Operations -                73,250          73,250          

395,821$      10,064,129$ 10,459,950$ 



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2019  

 

17 

NOTE 4: RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Authority is exposed to various risks and general liabilities. The Authority 
participates in a public entity risk pool as a member of Association of California Water 
Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA-JPIA). Each ACWA-JPIA member 
agency shares surpluses and deficits proportional to their participation. The Authority 
pays retrospectively rated annual premiums to ACWA-JPIA for its insurance coverage 
and has met all obligations since participation began. 
 

NOTE 5: PARTICIPANTS REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 
 

According to the Authority’s participants reimbursement policy, the participants who 
withdrew or decreased their participation in the project are entitled to a credit equal to the 
contribution they made up to the date of withdrawal or reduction.  That credit was applied 
toward future contribution requirements or booked as a liability on the Authority’s books 
to be paid when it is determined that such reimbursements will not have an adverse impact 
on the financial viability or overall implementation of the Project.  The amount due to 
participants under the reimbursement policy at December 31, 2019, was $6,064,653.  

  
NOTE 6: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 
by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may 
constitute a liability. The amount of expenditures, if any, which may be disallowed by the 
grantor, cannot be determined at this time although the Authority expects such amounts, 
if any, to be immaterial. 
 
The Authority has outstanding contracts related to EIR/EIS and feasibility study. The 
remaining commitments on these contracts as of December 31, 2019, were minimal as the 
contracts can be canceled with a thirty-day notice. 
 

NOTE 7: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 15, 2020, the date which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, except for 
the following, it was determined that no other subsequent events occurred that require 
recognition or additional disclosure in the financial statements. 
 
In January 2020, the virus SARS -CoC-2 was transmitted to the United States from 
overseas sources. This virus, responsible for the Coronavirus disease COVID-19, has 
proven to be extremely virulent with transmission rates as yet unknown.  The economic 
impact in the State of California as yet has not been determined and therefore any potential 
impact on the Authority is not yet known. 

 
 
 
  
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
  



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Membership Admin/Authority 515,000$        515,000$      506,294$      (8,706)$         

Interest revenue -                 -                12,900          12,900          

Total revenues 515,000          515,000        519,194        4,194            

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Accounting services 6,300              6,300            8,527            (2,227)           

Audit fees -                 -                -                -                

Administrative support 24,000            24,000          13,437          10,563          

General manager 71,640            71,640          50,532          21,108          

Insurance 3,250              3,250            200               3,050            

Office expenses 23,330            23,330          8,197            15,133          

Dues and Subscriptions 5,000              5,000            15,799          (10,799)         

Professional fees 315,222          315,222        395,821        (80,599)         

Reimbursements -                 -                -                -                

Website, computer support 6,000              6,000            2,182            3,818            

Miscellaneous 60,000            60,000          235               59,765          

Total expenditures 514,742          514,742        494,930        19,812          

Excess of revenues over expenditures 258$               258$             24,264$        24,006$        

See notes to required supplementary information.

18



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY

RESERVOIR FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Membership Water 16,111,534$   13,032,023$ 11,456,740$ (1,575,283)$  

Prop 1 funding 18,854,260     1,880,000     8,080,794     6,200,794     

Interest revenue -                 -                108,635        108,635        

Total revenues 34,965,794     14,912,023   19,646,169   4,734,146     

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Accounting services 35,692            46,800          34,111          12,689          

Audit fees -                 -                11,892          (11,892)         

Administrative support 24,000            43,200          53,749          (10,549)         

General manager 304,470          283,500        385,369        (101,869)       

Insurance -                 -                585               (585)              

Office expenses 8,198              3,240            4,509            (1,269)           

Rent expense 124,000          -                2,500            (2,500)           

Dues and Subscriptions 4,000              -                6,981            (6,981)           

Professional fees 32,368,676     13,020,319   10,064,129   2,956,190     

Reimbursements 2,067,094       1,472,023     4,660,713     (3,188,690)    

Website, computer support 10,182            5,760            8,729            (2,969)           

Miscellaneous -                 -                940               (940)              

Total expenditures 34,946,312     14,874,842   15,234,207   (359,365)       

Excess of revenues under expenditures 19,482$          37,181$        4,411,962$   4,374,781$   

See notes to required supplementary information.

19



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 
December 31, 2019  

 

20 
 

Note 1 -  Budgetary Basis of Accounting 
 

Budgets are prepared on the cash and expenditures or encumbrances basis.  Revenues are 
budgeted in the year receipt is expected; expenditures are budgeted in the year that the 
applicable warrant requisitions are expected to be issued.  The budget and actual financial 
statements are reported on the above basis, with no material differences between them. 
 
Annual budget requests are submitted by the Authority’s staff to the board of directors for 
preliminary review and approval.  After public hearing, a final budget is approved by the 
board of directors, with a resolution adopting said budget.  Copies of the approved budget 
are sent to all required agencies. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER REPORTS  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

21 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
To the Board of Directors 
Sites Project Authority 
Maxwell, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities and the General Fund of Sites Project Authority, as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 15, 2020. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 
 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



 

22 
 

 
To the Board of Directors 
Sites Project Authority 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Fechter & Company 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
 
 
 
Sacramento, California 
June 15, 2020 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 

MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
 

 DECEMBER 31, 2019 
 
 

 
 

MKivett
Text Box
2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,
Agenda Item 2.1 Attachment B




 

 

SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 

Management Report 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 
                   Page 
 
Introduction ...........................................................................................................................1 
 
Required communication .................................................................................................... 2-4 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

  
 
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors of the 
Sites Project Authority 
Maxwell, California 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Sites Project Authority for the 
year ended December 31, 2019, we considered the Authority’s internal control structure to determine 
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements and not 
to provide assurance on the internal control structure. 
 
Our consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal 
control that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants.  A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of 
one or more of the internal control components does not reduce, to a relatively low level, the risk that 
errors or irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the basic financial statements 
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions. 
 
We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement.  We will be pleased 
to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these 
matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations.  We thank the Authority’s staff for 
its cooperation on this audit. 
 
Fechter & Company, 
Certified Public Accountants 

 
June 15, 2020 
Sacramento, California 



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
Required Communications 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

 2

The Auditor’s Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
 
As stated in our engagement letter dated February 3, 2020, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  Because an audit is designed to 
provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance and because we did not perform a detailed 
examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be 
detected by us. 
  
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect 
on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit. 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application.  The significant accounting policies used 
by the Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  We noted no transactions 
entered into by the Authority during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of which, 
under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack 
of authoritative guidance or consensus. 
 
Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  Our audit did not disclose any sensitive 
estimates affecting the financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
Required Communications 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

 3

Audit Adjustments 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction 
of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our 
auditing procedures.  An audit adjustment may or may not indicate matters that could have a 
significant effect on the Authority’s financial reporting process (that is, cause future financial 
statements to be materially misstated).  The following audit adjustments, in our judgment, indicate 
matters that could have a significant effect on the Authority’s financial reporting process: 
 
Audit adjustments for the year ended December 31, 2019: 
 

 To record additional payables of $182,938 relating to 5 invoices that pertained to the year 
ended December 31, 2019. 

 To record a grant receivable of $1,957,712 for Prop 1 Funding received on May 14, 2020, 
which pertained to the year ended December 31, 2019. 

 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are 
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated June 15, 2020. 
 
Consultations with Other Independent Auditors 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 
 
Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our 
responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 



SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY 
Required Communications 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 
 
 

 4

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit. 
 
Other Matters 
 
During our audit, we became aware of the following deficiencies in internal control, other than 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, and other matters that are opportunities for 
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency:  
 

1. Recording Expense Accruals: In order to present a more accurate picture of the Authority’s 
operations, it is important to record revenues and expenditures in the period in which they 
were incurred, not necessarily when they were paid. During our audit of the Authority, we 
found 5 instances in which an expenditure had not been recorded in the proper period. We 
recommend that the Authority perform a more thorough review of transactions subsequent to 
year-end to accurately reflect revenues and expenditures in the correct period. 
 

2. Written Financial Policies and Procedures: Financial policies can provide a solid foundation 
for sound fiscal practices by a local agency. They should be in writing and adopted by the 
governing body.  As such, they provide: 
 

a. A means through which the governing body can communicate its policies and goals 
to staff, the public, and others; 

b. Direction to staff and standards against which current practices can be measured and 
changes in practices can be evaluated; and 

c. A way to optimize credit for borrowing. Ratings agencies who assess local agencies' 
credit for borrowing review their written financial policies. Well-documented policies 
can mean higher rating grades and lower borrowing costs. 
 

Board members and staff need to understand why they are doing the things they are doing 
and be committed to doing them correctly and completely. Written policies and procedures 
enhance this understanding. Specific policies will vary depending upon the nature and scope 
of a district's operations. Nevertheless, having a range of policies (from big picture to 
practical and operational) helps an agency chart a wise course financially and avoid 
operational missteps. 
 
During the audit, we became aware that the Authority does not have written policies and 
procedures. We recommend that the Authority prepare written financial policies and 
procedures and make these available to all parties that initiate, authorize, and record 
transactions for the Authority. 
 

Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the Sites 
Project Authority and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 



 
Top ic :  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 2.2 2020 July 16 

Subject:  Water Rights Attorney Procurement 

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: Joe Trapasso  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Si tes  Staf f  Repor t  QA/QC: Jer ry Brown  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Informat iona l  
Authority 

Agent: Al i  Fo rsy the  Ref/File #:  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  2 
 

Requested Action :   

 

Recommend approval of release of a Request for Qual i f icat ions to in i t iate the 

procurement of  legal services to support  the acquis i t ion of  the  water  r ights  

permits and approvals  needed to support  the project .  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background :  

 

As part  of  the Amendment 2 work plan ,  a team of technicians, engineers and an 

attorney are needed to secure the necessary permits  and approvals related to 

the water r ights  for the project.  Previously, the Authori ty competi t ively procured 

the services of the technicians and engineers  but has not yet secured an attorney  

of  the water r ights  team.   

Staff recommends i ssuing a Request for  Qual i f ications (RFQ)  to competi t ively  

procure a water r ights attorney  at this  t ime.  A short l i st  of special ized water  r ights 

attorneys  (see attached) known to have the qual i f ications to complete the 

assignment has been created and these f i rms wi l l  be invited to provide a 

statement of  qual i f ications .  Having a short  l i s t  does not preclude other 

statements of qual i f ications .  The RFQ wi l l  be publ icly  advert ised on the website.  

The objective wi l l  be to select the best qual i f ied f i rm for the assignment  and an 

individual that can work effectively  wi th the exist ing team. Also, s ince the number 

of qual i f ied attorneys practicing in this area within Cal i fornia i s l imited,  

consideration of  potential  confl icts  wi l l  be a key factor  for  selection.  A summary  

of  the scope, schedule, budget and the short l i st  of  f i rms i s  attached.  

The selection panel  wi l l  consi st of the Executive Di rector ,  the EPP Manager , and 

the Chairs of the Reservoir  Committee and Authori ty Board.  Other Reservoi r  

Committee members interested in  part icipating can do s o.   We would l ike to keep 

the panel manageable at 6 -8 part ic ipants .    

  

Pr ior  Action:  

 

None.  

 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source : 

 

The Amendment 2 work plan includes approximately $200,000 for  legal services 

associated water  r ights acquis i t ion dur ing this  in i t ial  phase of planning and 

preparation of an administ rat ive draft water r ights appl ication by the end of  

2021.  Subject to acceptable performance, the services would be continued 

through acquis i t ion of  al l  water  r ights  permits  and approvals  expected to occur 

by 2024.  

 



 

 Page 2  of  2  

Staf f Contact :  

 

Jer ry Brown/Al i  Forsythe 

 

At tachments :  

 

Attachment A:  Summary of  the scope, schedule, budget and short l i s t  of f i rms .  



   
 

Water Right Legal Services  

For the Sites Project authority  
 

Scope:  To assist the Authority in securing all necessary water rights for the Sites 

Reservoir Project.  This initial stage of work involves working with the water right 

team to complete the water right strategy, ensuring water right matters are 

properly analyzed in the revised and recirculated Draft EIR/EIS, and lead the 

preparation of a water right application to the State Water Resources Control 

Board to be submitted in early 2022.  Depending upon performance, future stages 

of work may involve serving as legal representative for the Authority to the State 

Water Resources Control Board in their proceedings to issue a water right permit 

and approvals for the Project which is expected no later than Spring 2024.   

 

The current primary water right team members consist of the following firms:  MBK 

Engineers, ICF International, CH2MHill/Jacobs Engineering and Authority Agents.  

 

Schedule: 

 
Activity Date (2020) 

Release of RFQ July 22 

Submission of Written RFQ Questions July 28 Noon 

Response to Written Questions Emailed to Respondents July 31 

Proposals Due to Authority August 20 Noon 

Authority Review of Qualifications/Firms Selected for 
Interview 

August 23 

Notification of Interviews, if Appropriate August 28 

Interviews, at Authority’s Discretion September 3-4 

Reservoir Committee Reviews and Recommends Approval 
to the Authority Board 

September 17 

Authority Board Reviews and Approves Contract 

Award 

September 23 

Execution of Contract Completed September 30 

 

 

Budget:  There is $200,000 for water right legal services in the current Amendment 

2 Work Plan which is intended to cover the initial stage of work.  However, the 

proposer is encouraged to identify any other work products and budget needs 

they feel would be advantageous to the Project in regard to acquisition of water 

2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee, 

Agenda Item 2.2 Attachment A 

 



   
 

rights.  Future stages of work will include sufficient funds and the provider will assist 

in developing the scope and budget.  

 

The selection panel will involve the Executive Director, and 4-6 members of the 

Reservoir Committee and Authority Board Coordinating Committees.  The 

selection criteria will generally involve the following elements: 

• Results of the proposers comprehensive conflict check must reasonably 

demonstrate the attorney and the firm are sufficiently cleared of material 

conflicts with any Reservoir Committee and Authority Board participating 

member agencies, or conflicts with any other parties that may be 

interested in the Sites Reservoir Project water right process. 

• Level of demonstrated experience (attorney and firm) providing similar 

legal services and successfully completing a water right proceeding of a 

nature and magnitude similar to that of the Sites Reservoir Project. 

• Capability to work effectively with the water right team and deliver an end 

product meeting the requirements of the Authority.  

 

Invited Firms:  The following list of firms will be invited to propose for the water right 

legal services: 

 

Bartkiewicz, Kronick & Shanahan 

1011 22nd Street, Sacramento, CA 95816  

 

Best, Best & Krieger 

500 Capitol Mall, Sacramento, CA 95814 

 

Downey Brand LLP 

621 Capital Mall 18th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

 

Ellison Schneider Harris & Donlan LLP 

2600 Capital Ave, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95816 

 

Kronick Moskovitz Tiedemann & Girard 

400 Capital Mall, 27th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 

 

Somach Simmons & Dunn 

500 Capital Mall, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814 

 



 
Top ic:  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 3.1 2020 July 16 

Subject :  Review Approved Water Storage Policy  

 

Status: D ra f t  Preparer: H e yd i n ge r  Phase: 2 

Version

: A  

Purpose: S t a f f  Re p o r t  QA/QC: B ro w n  Date: 20 2 0  Ju l y  1 6  

Caveat: De c i s i o n  

Authority 

Agent: Fo r s y t he  

Ref/File 

#:  

Notes:  Page: 1  o f  2  

 

Requested Action :  

 

Review and comment on the condit ional ly approved August  2019 Water  Storage 

Pol icy  and consideration of  updates to a l ign with Value Planning.   Recognize the 

storage pol icy serves as the foundational document to  2021 key mi lestones of  

creating a Plan of  Finance and Operations Plan and refer  consideration of 

updates to the ad hoc Engineering and Operations Workgroup . 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background : 

In August 2019, the Reservoi r  Committee condit ional ly approved the attached 

Water  Storage Pol icy (Pol icy)  that broadly descr ibes  al location of  Project 

benefits  and costs  including how the Reservoi r  Committee and each Sites 

part icipant would be able to manage water  divers ions to,  storage in,  and 

releases f rom Sites Reservoir .   The Pol icy highl ights the fundamental concept that 

Si tes part icipants are purchasing storage space in a reservoir  that can be used 

with discretion, subject to permitt ing and operating constraints .  The Pol icy also 

identi f ies  that the Si tes part icipants are seeking to secure a source of  supply  that 

would be equitably a l located to part icipants.  I t  broadly  outl ines how storage and 

releases are scheduled,  the sharing and leasing of storage s pace, and the 

al location of  operations and maintenance costs.   

 

The establ i shment of the Pol icy in 2019 was an important step in providing  greater  

certainty for Si tes part icipants  related to reservoir  storage, but the Pol icy has not 

been updated since the Value Planning effort.  General ly,  the Value Planning 

highl ighted individual part icipant constraints  and needs which the Reservoi r  

Committee may wish to consider  in  the Pol icy .  State and Federal  involvement i s  

another consideration.  Also, there are technical changes that have occurred 

requir ing changes in  the Pol icy.  For  example, the Pol icy identi f ies  the reservoi r  

s ize as 1.81 mi l l ion acre-feet and includes the possibi l i ty of power generation and 

pump-back storage.   

 

Thi s  i s  the r ight t ime to consider  Storage Pol icy  updates s ince the Pol icy i s  a 

foundational  bui lding block to accompli shing key 2021  mi lestones.  The Storage 

Pol icy wi l l  in form the benefit/cost  mechanics and detai led technical  operating 

aspects to be included in the Plan of Finance and Operations Plan respectively .  

Both of these documents , along with updates to the Storage Pol icy,  wi l l  be 

developed during the Amendment 2 Work Plan . Staff recommends the Reservoir  

Committee refer the Storage Pol icy  updating process to  the ad hoc Operations 

and Engineering Workgroup for  consideration of  updates .  



 

 Page 2  of  2  

Prior  Reservoir  Commit tee Action:  

August 26, 2019: A draft was provided at the Reservoir  Project Committee 

meeting and was adopted at that t ime, pending minor modif ications included in 

Attachment A and pending home board legal  review.  

August 15,  2019: Draft  Storage Pol icy presented and discussed at the Joint  

Workshop. 

July 19 & 22,  2019: Draft  Storage Pol icy was provided to for  review to the Reservoi r  

Committee and Authori ty Board meetings to al low al l  S i tes Part icipants  to review, 

discuss and comment.  

Fiscal  Impact/Funding Source:  

None.  

Staf f Contact:  

Ali  Forsythe 

Attachments :  

Attachment A -  Storage Pol icy by the Sites Project Authori ty .  

 



The Storage Policy was adopted by the Reservoir Project Committee on August 22, 2019 

and by the Sites Project Authority on August 26, 2019.  The attached Policy reflects the 

revisions ‘as amended’ referenced in the Reservoir Project Committee Minutes of August 

22, 2019, to wit: 

 

         “Consider approval of a recommendation the Reservoir Committee approve the Water 

Storage policy and then recommend the Sites Project Authority consider adoption of the 

Water Storage Policy in conjunction with the development of future participation agreements. 

(Attachment 7-1A) 

 

 Action: It was moved by Ruiz, seconded by Davis to adopt the Water Storage Policy as 

amended and pending home board legal review. Further, recommend the Sites Project 

Authority also consider adoption of the Water Storage Policy in conjunction with the 

development of future participation agreement and further legal review of the Policy by 

Counsel. The motion carried unanimously.” 

 

Please also note the findings described in the August 22, 2019 memorandum to the 

Reservoir Project Committee “Topic: Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 7-1, Subject: 

Operations Workgroup - Draft Water Storage Policy”, to wit: 

 

      “It is noted such approval of this policy does not result in the implementation of any 

Project operation or action resulting in a significant effect on the environment nor does it 

preclude future changes to the Water Storage Policy which are likely to be necessary as the 

Project proceeds.”  

MKivett
Text Box
2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,
Agenda Item 3.1 Attachment A




 

8/31/19 

 

 1 

Storage policy  
BY  

THE SITES PROJECT AUTHORITY  

 

(1)  This Storage Policy was adopted by the Sites Authority on 26th day of August 2019, to assist 

in the development and operation of the Sites Reservoir Project (Project) by the Sites Project 

Authority and the Sites Storage Partners listed in Attachment 1. 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

(2)  The Sites Project Authority (Authority) will apply for and expects to hold the water rights and 

be responsible for the operation of the Sites Reservoir Project with the Reservoir Committee being 

responsible for the planning, permitting and real-time operations implementation.   There are 

numerous financial participants in the Sites Reservoir Project.  These participants will receive water 

supply benefits, water supply related environmental benefits and other benefits from Sites 

Reservoir operation.  These participants include the (1) State of California, (2) United States Bureau 

of Reclamation, (3) Northern California agencies and organizations, and (4) water agencies both 

west and south of the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta.  The participants in the Sites Reservoir 

Project who receive (a) water supply related benefits or (b) water supply related environmental 

benefits are considered Sites Storage Partners.  The Sites Storage Partners will enter into 

agreements with the Authority for the funding of the Project and the benefits derived from the 

Project and may specify each Sites Storage Partner’s storage space in Sites Reservoir. To the extent 

allowed by natural conditions, permit requirements and physical capabilities of the Project, each 

of these Sites Storage Partners will have control over the use of their storage allocation space 

based on the conditions set forth in this policy.  The water supply related benefits derived from 

these storage allocation spaces will depend in large part on how the each Sites Storage Partner 

manages the water stored and released from their allocated storage space.   The Reservoir 

Committee is responsible for accounting for all the water placed into each Sites Storage Partner’s 

allocated storage space, water released from that storage space and any losses on a daily basis.   

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

(3)  Sites Participants – Government Agencies, Water Organizations and others who financially 

contribute to the planning and construction of the Sites Reservoir Project. 

 

(4)  Sites Storage Partners – The Sites Participants who have funded and receive water supply or 

water supply related environmental benefits from the Sites Reservoir Project (see Attachment 1 for 

the list of Sites Storage Partners). 

 

(5)  Active Storage – That portion of Sites Reservoir above dead pool that can be exercised to 

create water supply related benefits.  The total maximum storage in Sites Reservoir is expected to 

be 1.81 MAF.  Firm dead pool storage is expected to be about 60 TAF.  However, operationally 

another 60 TAF will likely be needed to prevent water quality issues in the storage releases.  

Therefore, the operational dead pool is considered to be 120 TAF.  For this Policy the Active 

Storage for Sites Reservoir is considered to be about 1.69 MAF.  These values are approximate and 

subject to change in the future.  

 

(6)  Water Year  -  The California Water Year is from October 1 through September 30.   

 

(7)  Operation and Maintenance and Replacement-  (O&M) or (O&M&R).  Those costs associated 

with the operations of the Sites Reservoir Project.  These can be broken down into:  



 

8/31/19 

 

 2 

(a) Fixed operations and maintenance and replacement costs that are more stable year-

to-year and that are not significantly influenced by varying diversions or releases of water, and   

(b) variable operations and maintenance costs that reflect annual operations and 

maintenance costs that vary based on actual operations each year.  

  

ROLES 

 

(8)  Sites Project Authority (Authority) - The Authority will apply for and expects to hold the water 

rights for the Sites Reservoir Project and be responsible for its operation. 

 

(9)  Reservoir Committee -  The Reservoir Committee is a standing committee of the Authority and 

oversees the planning, permitting, and day-to-day operations and accounting of Sites Reservoir 

storage, releases and losses and related activities including coordination with each of the Sites 

Storage Partners.  This will be done in a way that is open and transparent to all the Sites Storage 

Partners.   

 

 (10)  State and Federal Agencies: 

 

(a) The State of California - As described in Proposition 1 (2014) and associated regulations, the 

Sites Authority expects that the State of California will work though the California Water 

Commission and the Resources Agency to manage, at their request, the water held in the Sites 

storage allocation space obtained by the Water Commission for environmental purposes.  In 

addition, the State of California will cooperate with the Reservoir Committee's operation of Sites 

Reservoir and that of the State Water Project (and if appropriate the Central Valley Project) to 

maximize the water supply and water supply related benefits of Sites Reservoir. 

 

(b) The United States – To be provided. 

 

STORAGE OF WATER 

 

(11)  Water Storage by the Appropriation of Water:  The Authority will be responsible for compliance 

with water right provisions and other conditions that control the appropriation of water into 

storage in Sites Reservoir.  The Authority through the Reservoir Committee will take all actions 

necessary to maximize the appropriation of water into storage consistent with regulatory 

requirements, physical constraints and hydrologic conditions.  Water appropriated will be placed 

into Sites Reservoir and then allocated into each Sites Storage Partners contractual storage space 

proportional to their acquired storage space amount.1 

 

Based on the water accounting system approved by the Reservoir Committee, if a Sites Storage 

Partner’s storage volume is not available (whether due to being completely filled, filled up to the 

requested amount by a Storage Partner, or any other reason), the  available water will be 

allocated to the remaining Sites Storage Partners who still have available storage allocation space 

and the water will be used to fill the other Sites Storage Partner’s storage allocation spaces (based 

on their storage space allocation) until all Sites Storage Partners storage allocation spaces are 

filled up to each Partner’s requested amount of fill within that Partner’s space.  Each Sites Storage 

Partner will be responsible for the Operation and Maintenance (O&M) costs associated with the 

 
1 For example, if only 340 TAF of water is able to be appropriated into Sites Reservoir in any one 

year, this represents 20% of the total allocated storage of Sites Reservoir (340/1.69 MAF)  = 20%).  In 

that year each Sites Storage Partner will receive an amount of water equal to 20% of their 

allocated storage space amount. 

 



 

8/31/19 

 

 3 

use of their storage allocation space as set forth below.  However, a Sites Storage Partner may opt 

out of having water appropriated into their storage space and avoid the variable O&M costs if 

they so inform the Reservoir Committee at the beginning of the Water Year or as otherwise 

established by the Reservoir Committee.  The appropriation of water into storage will take priority 

over the release of stored water.  If needed, a dispute resolution process will be developed. 

 

(12)  Water Storage from Other Sources:  There are opportunities for the Sites Storage Partners to 

request that the Reservoir Committee place water from sources other than that by appropriation 

by the Project into their storage allocation space.  These other sources could include among other 

things: the re-diversion of previously stored water, water transfers, exchanges between Sites 

Storage Partners, exchanges with other entities, etc.  The Reservoir Committee will take all 

reasonable steps to help facilitate these requests.  The Sites Storage Partners will be responsible for 

the costs of obtaining/storing these other sources of water including any costs associated with 

water right changes, environmental compliance, and Reservoir Committee costs associated with 

reviews.  Also, the Sites Storage Partner is responsible for all O&M costs of placing this water into 

their storage allocation space as set forth below.   Placing water into storage from other sources 

shall not impact the ability of the Reservoir Committee to appropriate water or release water from 

Sites Reservoir. 

 

(13)  Storage/Release Conflict Resolution:  If there is a conflict between placing water into storage 

in Sites Reservoir from other sources of water and the release of water from Sites Reservoir at the 

same time, an “in lieu storage” option may be used by the parties involved provided the water 

rights issues are addressed on a case-by-case basis. 

 

ACCOUNTING FOR LOSSES 

 

(14)  Allocation of Losses:  Losses of water held in Sites Reservoir storage including evaporation 

and seepage will be accounted for on a daily basis.  These losses will be allocated to each Sites 

Storage Partner based proportionally on the amount of their water in storage that day.  

 

SHARING OR LEASING OF STORAGE SPACE 

 

(15)  Sharing or Leasing of Storage Allocation Space:  The Sites Storage Partners are allowed to 

share or lease their storage allocation space with other Sites Storage Partners or other entities.  This 

sharing or leasing could span multiple years and will be subject to several conditions set forth 

below.    

 

• Any sharing or leasing of storage allocation space shall be coordinated with the Reservoir 

Committee so that proper water accounting can be maintained. 

• If the Sites Storage Partner’s allocated storage space fills, then any shared or leased water 

held in that storage space that day will stay in the shared or leased space unless the 

Reservoir Committee receives written instructions otherwise from the Sites Storage Partner.  

• The responsibility for collecting payment for the use of a Sites Storage Partners shared 

storage space will be the responsibility of the Sites Storage Partner and not that of the 

Reservoir Committee. 

• The Sites Storage Partner maintains the responsibility to the Reservoir Committee for all the 

O&M costs of placing water of any source into its storage allocation space.  However, the 

Sites Storage Partner will likely collect costs of placing water into any shared storage space 

from the party making use of that shared space.  

 

RELEASES OF WATER FROM STORAGE 

 



 

8/31/19 

 

 4 

(16)  Water Released From Storage:   The Sites Storage Partners have total discretion on the amount 

of water held in their storage allocation space that they wish to be scheduled for release in any 

calendar year for their use.  These requested stored water releases and their schedule for release 

shall be coordinated with the Reservoir Committee so the Reservoir Committee can coordinate 

this request with the other Sites Storage Partners, State Water Project, Central Valley Project and 

any regulations related to the release of water from Sites Reservoir.   

 

The Reservoir Committee will work with the Department of Water Resources and the U. S. Bureau 

of Reclamation to manage these releases with those of the State Water Project and Central Valley 

Project to maximize the benefits to the above parties when possible.  

 

It is anticipated water will be released from storage for environmental/public benefits (e.g. on 

behalf of the State of California per their WSIP funding investment; e.g. on behalf of the United 

States per WIIN Act funding investment).  The Authority's intent is that the non-consumptive use 

of water for environmental/ public benefits will remain under the control of the Sites Authority and 

its Storage Partners for further allocation to another in-basin or out-of-basin uses. 

 

(17)  Scheduling Stored Water Releases:  No later than February 20th of each water year, the 

Reservoir Committee will make a water storage forecast for each Sites Storage Partner for that 

water year based on each Sites Storage Partner physical storage to date and several examples 

of projected hydrologic conditions ranging from critically dry to far above normal.  These forecasts 

will be updated each month by the 20th of every month until April 20th.   Each Sites Storage Partner 

will provide the Reservoir Committee the monthly schedule and amounts of the water they wish 

to be released that calendar year based upon each of these forecasts 15 days after the receipt 

of these forecasts.  These schedules will be updated monthly as needed until June and changes 

after that will be accommodated to the extent it does not conflict with those of other Sites Storage 

Partners.  Any water held in a shared/leased allocation space will be the responsibility of the Sites 

Storage Partner to communicate the requested release of that water to the Reservoir Committee 

unless other arrangements are provided to the Reservoir Committee in writing.   

 

The Reservoir Committee will work with each Sites Storage Partner, the State Water Project, Central 

Valley Project and regulatory agencies and make all reasonable efforts to satisfy the water release 

schedules requested by each Sites Storage Partner. If there is a Sites Reservoir release constraint 

affecting the ability of meeting the requested water release schedules from Sites Reservoir, the 

Reservoir Committee will first work with those conflicted Sites Storage Partners to see if 

accommodations can be made.  If the conflict cannot be resolved, the priority for the releases 

will be in proportion to the Storage Allocation space as divided among the conflicted Sites 

Storage Partners.   

 

 

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT 

 

(18)  Operation and Maintenance Cost Allocations:   Operation and Maintenance (O&M) costs 

will be divided into fixed O&M&R and variable O&M.  Fixed O&M&R will cover those O&M&R costs 

that are generally stable from year to year like monitoring costs, routine maintenance, Reservoir 

Committee staff costs, repair funds, replacement of equipment funds etc.  These costs will be 

calculated by the Reservoir Committee and paid by the Sites Storage Partners for the coming 

Water Year in advance.  They will be allocated to all the Sites Storage Partners in the same manner 

as the capital costs.  

 

Annual variable O&M costs include pumping costs to appropriate water into storage, pumping 

water from other sources into storage, other costs related to the placement of water into storage 



 

8/31/19 

 

 5 

and the costs, if any, of releasing water from storage.  These costs will be assessed to each Sites 

Storage Partner based on the amount of water placed into their storage allocation that year.  An 

estimate of these costs will be made by the Reservoir Committee.  These costs will be assessed to 

each Sites Storage Partner and paid for the coming Water Year in advance.  However, a Sites 

Storage Partner may opt out of having water appropriated into their storage space and avoid 

the variable O&M costs if they so inform the Reservoir Committee at the beginning of the Water 

Year.  At the end of each Water Year any revenue received in excess of costs will be returned to 

the Sites Storage Partners or applied as a credit to the next year’s variable O&M costs.  However, 

the Reservoir Committee will retain a reasonable reserve fund to cover any unforeseen variable 

O&M costs that may come up in any year. 

 

(19)  Power Revenue.  It is recognized that the Sites Reservoir Project could generate power 

revenues.  The use of these revenues is not part of this Storage Policy at this time.  

 

FUTURE STORAGE POLICY CHANGES 

 

(20)  Future Storage Policy Changes - This policy is intended, at this time, for use in the Sites 

Participation Agreements that will be developed in the near future.  This policy will likely evolve 

and change as the Sites Reservoir Project develops.  This policy may be modified in the future by 

the Authority with approval by the Reservoir Committee.  Under the current Bylaws, such Reservoir 

Committee approval requires a 75% affirmative vote.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE 

 

August 26, 2019______________________________  



 

8/31/19 

 

 6 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 

SITES STORAGE PARTNERS 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL   

 

WSIP - California Water Commission 

 

WIIN- United States Bureau of Reclamation 

 

WATER USERS  

 

America Canyon, City of 

Antelope Valley-East Kern WA 

Carter Mutual Water Company 

Coachella Valley Water District 

Colusa County 

Colusa County Water District 

Desert Water Agency 

Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District 

MWD of So. California 

Reclamation District 108 

San Bernardino Valley MWD 

San Gorgonio Pass WA 

Santa Clara Valley WD 

Santa Clarita Valley WA 

TC-4 Cortina Water District 

TC-4 Davis Water District 

TC-4 Dunnigan Water District 

TC-4 LaGrange Water District 

Westside Water District 

Wheeler Ridge-Maricopa WSD 

Zone 7 Water Agency  

 



 
Top ic :  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 3.2 2020 July 16 

Subject:  Key Operational Analysis Factors  - Baseline 

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: Er in Heyd inger  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Si tes  Staf f  Repor t  QA/QC:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Informat iona l  
Authority 

Agent: Al i  Fo rsy the  
Ref/File 

#:  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  3 
 

Requested Action :   

 

Review and comment on the approach being taken for the model ing basel ine 

for the EIR/EIS analys is.  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background : 

 

OVERVIEW 

As work progresses on the analysi s for the Revised Draft E IR/EIS,  the operations 

team is developing model ing parameters and cr i ter ia  required for assessing the 

alternatives in the Revised EIR/EIS .  One of  the foundational decis ions related to 

the operations model ing for the EIR/EIS analysi s i s  the descr ipt ion of the model ing 

basel ine. An adequate descr ipt ion of the basel ine i s  cr i t ical  to the CEQA/NEPA 

evaluation and to descr ibe the  of project’s  benefi ts .    

 

I ssuance of the U.S.  F i sh and Wi ldl i fe Service and National  Marine Fisher ies Service 

Biological Opinions for the Reini t iat ion of  Consul tation on the Coordinated 

Operations of  the Central  Val ley Project (CVP) and State Water Project (ROC on 

LTO BiOps) and the issuance of the Incidental  Take Permit for Long-Term 

Operations of  the State Water  Project (SWP) in  the Sacramento-San Joaquin Del ta 

(SWP ITP)  has modif ied basel ine condit ions for the CVP-SWP system from the 

previous BiOp and ITP .  The ROC on LTO BiOps and the SWP ITP are also subject 

to pending l i t igation by a number of part ies.   There i s di sagreement regarding 

the implementation of the ROC on LTO BiOps and the SWP ITP between water  

users ,  environmental stakeholders ,  and the federal  and state water  management 

and permitt ing agencies.  This  disagreement wi l l  l ikely  pers is t  throughout  the Si tes 

Project planning and permitt ing process .  As the CEQA Lead Agency, we need to 

balance al l  of  the external  and internal  constraints,  demands and needs and 

identi fy  what would provide the publ ic and our members with the highest qual i ty 

information for evaluating the project .  

 

After careful  consideration, Staff i s  in i t ial ly  proceeding with  model development 

with the ROC on LTO BiOps basel ine and incorporate the SWP ITP actions after 

release of DCR2019 joint model implementation  as the best  course at the present 

t ime.  Th is  approach provides:  

 

1.  The most defined and expedient start ing point  for  analysis  of  Si tes Project 

operations whi le accompli shing a high-qual i ty analysi s  that meets 

adequacy tests under  CEQA/NEPA and provides the publ ic with a  

reasonable evaluation of effects f rom the Project .  

2.  Best represents Shasta Lake t iered cold water pool management  which i s  

a key operating feature to be considered when evaluat ing possible 

exchanges and coordinated operations  with Si tes Reservoi r .  



 Page 2  of  3  

3.  Use of the merged Si tes vers ion of  the model developed for the 

Reclamation Feasibi l i ty Report wi l l  expedite model development to meet 

the required schedule.  

 

Operations cr i ter ia for the SWP ITP actions wi l l  be incorporated  based on DCR2019  

i f  i t  avai lable in t ime to meet the Project’s  schedule .   In  addit ion,  the team wi l l  

be performing addit ional  gap and sensi t iv i ty analyses to evaluate addit ional 

operations that are needed to support the Si tes Project planning and permitt i ng 

process.    

 

As more detai led analysi s i s  completed, staff wi l l  continue to evaluate the 

basel ine approach and may make modif ications to the approach to meet the 

requirements of  CEQA/NEPA and provide the publ ic wi th a reasonable evaluation 

of  effects  f rom the Project .  

 

ALTERNATIVE APPROACHES CONSIDERED 

 

Given the uncertaint ies sur rounding operations of the SWP and CVP, staff  has 

identi f ied three possible model ing basel ine options , each having thei r  own pros 

and cons:  

1.  Use of ROC on LTO Al ternative 1/Proposed Action  only –  This basel ine would 

be based on the ROC on LTO Proposed Action Cals im I I  model  released by 

the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation)  in December 2019.  

a.  Pros:  

i .  Most recent representation of Shasta Lake t iered cold water  

pool management .  

i i .  Expedited development of the modeled basel ine  using 

exi st ing Si tes model  developed for Reclamation Feasibi l i ty  

Report .  

b.  Cons:   

i .  Excludes addit ional actions that are included in the SWP ITP.  

i i .  Potential  lack of  acceptance by the State s ince the model 

does not include the  SWP ITP.  

 

2.  Use of  SWP ITP Al ternative 2b/Proposed Project  only  –  Thi s  basel ine would 

be based on the SWP ITP Cals im I I  model  released by the Department of  

Water Resources (DWR) in March 2020.   

a.  Pros:  

i .  Use of a model represent ing the SWP ITP in the basel ine for  

analysi s  in the Sites I TP appl ication.  

b.  Cons:   

i .  May requi re addit ional updates to include al l  of  the actions 

descr ibed in the SWP ITP.  

i i .  Excludes changes made in the updated f inal  ROC on LTO 

Al ternative 1/Proposed Action publ i shed in December 2019 .  

i i i .  Potential  lack of  acceptance by Reclamation s ince the mode l 

does not include ROC on LTO. 

 

3.  Combination of  2019 State Water  Project Del ivery Capabi l i ty  Report  

(DCR2019) /  ROC on LTO / SWP ITP –  DWR i s currently working on a joint  

representation of the ROC on LTO BiOps and the SWP ITP as part of  

DCR2019, which would include the potential  future combined CVP/SWP 

operations.  This  i s  expected to be released in July  2020.    



 Page 3  of  3  

a.  Pros:  

i .  Comprehensive representation of  basel ine operations 

currently  in development.  

i i .  Allow for the possib i l i ty of greater acceptance to a wider 

range of agencies and stakeholders .  

i i i .  Provide a State/Federal  supported basel ine .  

b.  Cons:   

i .  Schedule for re lease of  DCR2019 has been and may continue 

to be delayed (DWR or iginal ly  tentatively planning for a June 

release).  

i i .  Delays associated with developing Si tes Project I TP 

implementation based on DCR2019  (at least four week) .  

 

Prior  Action:  

 

None 

 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source : 

 

Model development is  part of  the Amendment 2 work plan and i s a key 

component to other 2021 mi lestones within the work plan.   There i s  suf f icient 

funding to conduct eff icient model ing  whereby the basel ine approach i s 

establ i shed,  and the model ing resul ts are used to inform the EIR/E IS  analysis .   

Mul t iple revis ions of  the model ing basel ine or  excessive i terations would be 

addit ional cost and t ime delay to the project.  

 

 

Staf f Contact :  

 

Al i  Forsythe 

 

At tachments :  

 

None 



 
Top ic :  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 3.3 2020 July 16 

Subject:  Funding Credit and Reimbursement Policy 
Implementation 

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: Joe Trapasso  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Si tes  Staf f  Repor t  QA/QC:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Informat iona l  
Authority 

Agent: Joe Trapasso  Ref/File #:  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  2 
 

Requested Action :   

 

Review and comment on the Draft Funding Credit and Reimbursement Pol icy  

(Pol icy) Revis ions.  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background : 

 

When the Reservoir  Committee was formed, one of  the requi rements included 

the development of this  Pol icy to ensure equity  among part ic ipants  and be an 

important component to the rebalancing process .   The in i t ial  Pol icy went through 

a thorough development and review process and was approved by the Authori ty 

in August  2018.   A revised Pol icy is  now required as the Authori ty  continues to 

progress into new phases of the project.    

 

A subgroup of the Joint Budget and Finance Committee was convened to review 

the current Pol icy and develop draft  revis ions as needed to ref lect the status of  

the current Si tes Project.   The Subgroup developed a draft  revised Pol icy and 

examples of apply ing the draft Pol icy which were reviewed and commented on 

by the Joint Budget and Finance Committee  during thei r  July  10,  2020 meeting . 

A revised draft  has been prepared based on the comments received 

(Attachments 1 and 2) .   

 

The Joint  Budget and Finance Committee i s  request ing comments to the draft  

revised Pol icy  f rom the Reservoi r  Committee and Authori ty Board during their  July  

meetings.  Comments f rom these meetings wi l l  be incorporated into a revised 

draft  which wi l l  be reviewed by Authori ty General  Counsel ,  and then brought to 

the Joint  Budget and Finance Committee,  Reservoir  Committee,  and Author i ty  

Board at their  August 2020 meetings for approval .  

 

The most s igni f icant changes being proposed  in  the draft  revised Pol icy are:  

•  Revis ions to Section 6 “Part icipation Pr ior i ty” include the addit ion of two 

new prior i ty  rounds .  A revis ion was also made to clar i fy the appl ication of 

“Last in  /  F i r st  Out” approach should the avai lable part icipation be 

reduced below the amount of  part icipation by Project Agreement 

Members.  

•  Revis ions to Section 10.3  “Limitation on Reimbursements”  provides 

addit ional clar i ty to when the Author i ty would make reimbursement 

payments.  

•  The new Section 14 “Provis ion for Buy - in After  Phase 1” was added to 

specify  the requi rement that addit ional or  new part icipation pay the 

equivalent funding of pr ior phases upon executing the Project Agreement.  

•   



 Page 2  of  2  

•  The new Section 15 “Provis ion for  Phase 2 Rebalancing and True -up 

Process” was added to provide a process for Project Agreement Members  

to change thei r  level  of part icipation at the conclusion of  each  

incremental  Phase 2 Project Agreement.   The provis ion is  s imi lar  to the 

Phase 1 True-up with the exception of Class 2 Water conversion.  

 

Addit ional revis ions were made to expand the appl ication of the pol icy to Phase 

2, provide f lexibi l i ty for  al lowing incremental Project Agreements and associated 

part icipation changes, and clar i fy/speci fy previous provis ions and requirements.  

 

Pr ior  Action:  

 

At the August  16,  2018 Reservoi r  Committee,  the Credit Reimbursement Pol icy 

was approved.  

 

At the June 25,  2018 Reservoi r  Committee meeting,  the status was discussed with 

direction provided to the Ad Hoc Finance and Economics Work Group.  

 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source : 

 

The Pol icy’s requi rement to reimburse Project Agreement Members for  part ial  or  

complete withdrawal from the Project would be funded by new revenue for the 

“Buy - in” payments received from an exi st ing Project Agreement Members that 

increase their  amount part icipation or  f rom new/returning Project Agreement 

Members in i t iat ing part icipation.  Reimbursement payments would only be made 

once the Reservoi r  Committee and Authori ty  Board determine that funds are 

avai lable to make such payments wi thout impacting the i mplementation of the 

Project.   

 

Staf f Contact :  

 

Joe Trapasso 

 

At tachments :  

 

Attachment A: Work ing Draft Funding Credit and Reimbursement Pol icy  (with 

redl ine str ikeout of proposed changes) .  

 

Attachment B : Examples of  Apply ing Draft Pol icy .  



2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee, 
Agenda Item 3.3 Attachment A 
  2020 July 10 

 

Sites Reservoir Project, Phases 1 and 2 

Funding Credit and Reimbursement Policy 

Status: Adopted  by  Author i ty  Preparer: Scott  B rown Phase: 1 Version: 1D2 

Purpose: Phase  2  Rev is ions  Checker:  Date: 2020  Ju ly  10  

Caveat:  QA/QC:  Ref/File #: 10.790-112.210.2 

Notes:  Page: 1  o f  14 

 

 

Table of Contents 

1. PURPOSE OF POLICY .................................................................................................................................... 2 

2. ADMINISTRATIVE ......................................................................................................................................... 2 

3. DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................................................................ 3 

4. PROJECT PHASES ......................................................................................................................................... 5 

5. UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIONS ....................................................................................................................... 5 

6. PARTICIPATION PRIORITY ............................................................................................................................ 6 

7. PROVISION FOR ENCOURAGING NORTHERN CALIFORNIA PARTICIPATION ............................................... 8 

8. CREDITING POLICY FOR ADVANCE FUNDING .............................................................................................. 8 

9. USE OF CONTRIBUTION CREDIT .................................................................................................................. 8 

10. REIMBURSEMENT POLICY FOR CONTRIBUTION CREDIT ............................................................................. 9 

11. PROVISIONS FOR WITHDRAWAL FROM PROJECT ..................................................................................... 10 

12. PROVISION FOR CLASS 2 CONVERSION TO CLASS 1 PRIOR TO THE TRUE-UP PROCESS ........................... 10 

13. PROVISION FOR REBALANCING PHASE 1 PARTICIPATION AND TRUE-UP OF THE CLASS 1 COST BASIS ... 10 

14. PROVISION FOR BUY-IN AFTER PHASE 1 ................................................................................................... 11 

15. PROVISION FOR PHASE 2 REBALANCING AND TRUE-UP PROCESS ........................................................... 12 

16. FAIR SHARE FUNDING STUDY .................................................................................................................... 13 

 

APPENDIX A – Participating Members and Respective Priority  

 

 

 

 

  



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 2 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

1. PURPOSE OF POLICY 

The Sites Project Authority (Authority) has adopted bylaws1 that establish use of a Cost Development 

Model to track each participating agency’s funding contributions and anticipated funding requirements as 

the Sites Reservoir Project (Project) is developed. 

The purpose of this Funding Credit and Reimbursement Policy (Policy) is to establish the rules and 

procedures for contributing funds for the Project that will be used to inform the Cost Development Model 

that will be used as part of the Phase 1 rebalancing process2.as the project advances.  The specific 

objectives of the Policy are to define the provisions and terms for: 

• Defining contribution credit to participating agencies (Project Agreement Members, see Section 3.8) 

for having contributed funds to advance the Project; 

• Defining allowable conditions for the use and/or reimbursement of credit; 

• Providing an equitable exchange in participation levels between Project Agreement Members; and  

• Defining the process for recalculating the equivalent cost basis among Phase 1 Project Agreement 

Members for Class 1 and Class 2 water3; and. 

• Defining the process for recalculating the equivalent cost basis for future phases of the project that 

are funded on a “cash call” basis.  

It is the intent of this Policy to ensure that all Project Agreement Members proceeding into Phase 2 will 

each have paid the same amount on an equivalent cost basis as the Project advances. 

2. ADMINISTRATIVE 

2.1 Role of the Authority and Reservoir Committee 

Through its Bylaws, the Authority considers this process to be a foundational part of advancing 

the Project.  Development of the requirements has been delegated to the participants in each 

phase of the Phase 1 Reservoir Project AgreementAgreements (Reservoir Committee).  

Acceptance of this document by the Authority is required before it’sits requirements can be 

implemented. 

  

 
1  November 21, 2016 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Sites Project Authority for Phase 1 of the Sites 

Reservoir Project, Section 3.9.  

2  For use in subsequent phases, this document will be amended to incorporate additional information gained 
during Phase 2. 

3  Participation in voting and funding is based on a Members’ participation as measured in acre-feet that is used to 
apportion the project’s development costs. Until the completion of Phase 2, the annualized volumes of water that 
could be released from storage can’t be finalized until the Project has acquired the prerequisite permits needed 
for construction and operations and both state and federal agencies have committed to fund their equitable 
share in the Project. 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 3 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

2.2 Amendments to this Policy 

It is the Authority’s intent that this policy be updated as needed (i.e. is a “living” document) to 

ensure the Project is implemented equitably, efficiently and cost-effectively. The Authority may 

amend this Policy to reflect changes to the funding structure for the Project (e.g. separate 

participation in water storage versus water supply).  Any amendment to this Policy will not 

reduce or increase any participant’s contribution credit (as defined below) for having contributed 

funds to advance the Project. 

2.3 Precedence of Documents 

This document is subordinate to both the Authority’s and Reservoir Committee’s governance 

documents. Should a conflict exist, the Authority’s Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement - including 

the Bylaws - shall take precedence, followed by the Reservoir Committee’s Phase 1sequential 

Reservoir Project Agreement - including Exhibit for each phase of the Project (Requirements).  

Further and in keeping with the Mission and Project’s Primary Goals established in Phase 14, 

should a conflict exist between this document and the Phase 2any Reservoir Project Agreement, 

which willmay include the terms and conditions for the interim finance plan, the Phase 2 

Reservoir Project AgreementAgreements shall control, and this document shall be amended to 

remove the conflict. 

2.4 Document Revision History 

A record of approved changes to this document shall be recorded in this section, starting with its 

original approval for use, which is revision 0. 

Rev. Effective Date  Status of Authorizing Action  

0 August 20, 2018 Approved by Reservoir Committee and adopted by the Authority. 

1 TBD Revised to include Phase 2 considerations. 

 

3. DEFINITIONS 

The following definitions are used in this Policy: 

3.1. “Class 1 Water” Water supply reserved for Project Agreement Members based 

on 50% of the total average annualized volume of water 

released from storage (250 TAFTAF5). 

3.2. “Class 2 Water” Additional 170 TAF5 of water supply that may be available to 

Project Agreement Members, of which the State of California 

and/or the United States Government will be given the first 

 
4  Refer to Exhibit B of the Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement, General Requirements. 
 
5 These acre footage values are based on original project yield projection at the onset of Phase 1 in 2016 and are 
subject to change throughout the duration of the project. 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 4 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

right to acquire for ecosystem and water quality “public” 

benefit(s). 

3.3. “Contribution Credit” The accumulated funding provided by a Project Agreement 

Member for both Class 1 and Class 2.   

3.4. “Equivalent Cost Basis” The equivalent cost per acre-foot for Class 1 water established 

by the Reservoir Committee.  

 

3.5. “Equivalent Required Funding” The amount of funding required by each Project Agreement 

Member at the Phase 1 True-up event (Section 1213) equal to 

the Equivalent Cost Basis times the Project Agreement 

Member’s participation in Class 1 water. 

3.6. “Fully Subscribed Project” Full participation in the total amount of Class 1 water available.  

The associated amount may change between the end of Phase 

1 and end of Phase 2. Further, it is contemplated that in Phase 

2, consideration will be given to shift from the current delivery-

based method (FOB Holthouse Reservoir) to a storage-based 

method. 

3.7.  “Funding Obligation” A Project Agreement Member’s semi-annual pro-rata share of 

funding required.  The Authority may elect to waive any 

Project Agreement Member from a semi-annual obligation by 

excluding that particular Project Agreement Member’s 

participation in the Project when determining the basis for the 

pro-rata share of the remaining Project Agreement Members. 

3.8. “Project Agreement Member” Any agency or entity that has executed the Phase 1a Project 

Agreement and not withdrawn from the project. 6 

3.9.  “Good Standing” Meeting the requirements to actively participate in the Project 

according to Section 8.1 of Authority’s Bylaws. 

3.10. “Participation” A Project Agreement Member’s elected participation rate 

expressed in terms of acre-feet of average annual water 

supply, or other metric utilized to determine the pro-rata share 

of funding required from each Member. 

  

 
6  Ibid, Section 7.3 for membership types. A list of current Project Agreement Members is provided in Exhibit A1 of 

the Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement. 

 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 5 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

3.11. “Priority” The ranking of participation in the Project, Class 1 and/or 

Class  2, used to determine the order in which participation 

changes take effect.  Highest priority is associated with earliest 

date the Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement was executed 

(i.e. Round 1). Lowest priority is the latest date this agreement 

was executed (Round 4).  

4. PROJECT PHASES 

The Project is being advanced by Project Agreement Members on a workplan based phased approach.  The 

phases of the project associated with each Project Agreement are defined as: 

• Phase 1: Phase 1 Project Agreement, November 2016 through March 31, 2019 

• Phase 2A: Phase 2 Project Agreement plus Amendments 1A/1B, April 1, 2019 through August 31, 2020 

• Phase 2B: Phase 2 Project Amendment 2, September 2020 through December 31, 2021 

 

4.5. UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIONS 

The following underlying assumptions predicate the establishment of credits and reimbursements: 

4.1 As of August 1, 2015, funding provided by Members of the Authority has been divided into two 

separate categories: 1) Authority administration, and 2) Implementation of the Project.   

4.2 Funding provided for Authority administration is not eligible for Credit, whereas funding for 

implementation of the Project is eligible. 

4.3 Funding provided between January 1 and July 31, 2015 was applied first to Administration 

requirements in 2015 and the balance was applied to Project funding as of August 1, 2015. 

4.4 All other funding received before December 31, 2014 was provided for advocacy of the Project 

and is not eligible for credit. 

4.5 Prior to starting Phase 2 and after the California Water Commission has made its “Maximum 

Conditional Eligibility Determination (MCED)”7, a formal process will be conducted to enable 

Project Agreement Members to change their participation. These changes will become the basis 

for the Phase 1 True-Up and the Phase 2 Reservoir Project Agreement. 

 4.6 As the Project advances, each additional phase of the project will require Project Agreement 

Members commit funding through execution of a new Project Agreement.  Changes in 

participation may be allowed at the conclusion of each phase, subject to the credit and 

reimbursement conditions established by this policy. 

 

 
7  Refer to California Code of Regulations, Tile 23, Division 7, Chapter 1. Section 6011.7  See Ibid, Section 7.3 

for membership types.  



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 6 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

5.  

6. PARTICIPATION PRIORITY 

As more or less Class 1 water becomes available, each Project Agreement Member’s allocation of Class 1 

and/or Class 2 water may be impacted based on the priority assigned to their participation.  Should the 

level of participation need to be reduced, participation will be eliminated on a “last in / first out” basis.  

Each Project Agreement Member will be assigned a priority based on the following criteria: 

Round 1 Priority: Founding members of the Authority who also elected to execute the Phase 1 

Reservoir Project Agreement.  Project Agreement Members in this round 

received Class 1 water. 

Round 2 Priority: New members of the Authority seated prior to the 2016 on-boarding process 

who elected to execute the Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement.  Project 

Agreement Members in this round received Class 1 water. 

Priority 2.1: Existing members of the Authority seated prior to the 2016 on-boarding 

process, who had executed the Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement, and who 

elected to change their participation quantities in advance of the August 1, 

2016 deadline that closed the On-boarding process. These changes were 

approved by the Authority on June 13, 2016. 

Round 3 Priority: Additional participation beginning with the 2016 On-Boarding process and 

extending through execution of a funding agreement with the State 

(anticipated by December 2018).. Project Agreement Members in this round 

receive either: 

1) For Public Water Agencies: A combination of Class 1 and/or Class 2 water 

dependent upon the availability of Class 1 water; or 

   

2) For Non-Member Participating Parties: Mutual Water Companies who 

submitted a request to participate as part of the 2016 On-Boarding process 

received Class 2 water. 

 

Note that a rounding error in the original allocation of Class 1 and Class 2 water was found 

November 2017.  The correction to the rounding error was applied retroactively to Priority 3 

participants. 

The following sub-priority within Round 3 will be based on the date that additional participation is 

established, which is the date the Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement was authorized to be executed 

by the Project Agreement Member. 

Priority 3.1 Prior to executing the Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement, 10,000 acre-feet of 

Class 1 water became available and was allocated to those Project Agreement 

Members who had initially agreed to accept fractional shares of Class 1 and 

Class 2 totaling the amount requested in their On-boarding letter of intent. For 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 7 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

each of these Project Agreement Members, the result was a reduction in Class 2 

water and a corresponding increase in Class 1 water. 

Priority 3.2 Prior to executing the Phase 1 Reservoir Project Agreement, Project Agreement 

Members who requested to increase their participation received Class 2 water. 

Priority 3.3 California Water Service request during the 2016 On-Boarding process 

requiring CPUC approval before executing the Reservoir Project Agreement. 

Priority 3.4 Metropolitan Water District of Southern California elected to not specify an 

acre-ft as the basis of their participation in the 2016 On-Boarding process, but 

subsequently requested to participate in Class 2 water through execution of 

the Reservoir Project Agreement. 

Priority 3.5 After Project Agreement Members had executed the Phase 1 Reservoir Project 

Agreement, 6,285 acre-feet of Class 1 water became available after April 28, 

2017 that was allocated to those Project Agreement Members who had initially 

agreed to accept fractional shares of Class 1 and Class 2 totaling their 

participation amount (Priority 3). Project Agreement Member’s in this priority 

received a pro-rata share of the Class 1 water and a corresponding decrease in 

their Class 2 water.  

Priority 3.6 After Project Agreement Members had executed the Phase 1 Reservoir Project 

Agreement, an additional 6,285 acre-feet of Class 1 water became available 

after May 31, 2017 that was allocated to those Project Agreement Members 

who had initially agreed to accept fractional shares of Class 1 and Class 2 

totaling their participation amount (Priority 3.0). Project Agreement Member’s 

in this priority received a pro-rata share of the Class 1 water and a 

corresponding decrease in their Class 2 water. 

Round 4 Priority: Additional Phase 1 participation following execution of the funding agreement 

with the State (anticipated by December 2018)..  Project Agreement Members 

in this round would only receive Class 2 water unless participation changes 

result in the availability of Class 1 water.   

This round of will also include additional Class 1 water required to maintain the 

minimum participation threshold from water agencies located in the 

Sacramento River Hydrologic Region (see Section 67). 

Note that there no participation changes or new participation occurred during Phase 2A.  All Project 

Agreement Members that signed the Phase 2 Project Agreement in April 2019 continued their level of 

participation through August 2020. 

 

Round 5 Priority: This round includes additional participation from existing or new Project 

Agreement Members following the completion of Phase 2A and prior to 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 8 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

execution of the Phase 3 Project Agreement.  Sub-priority within this round will 

be established as follows: 

Priority 5.1 Additional or new participation from agencies in the Sacramento River 

Hydrologic Region. This priority was established to encourage Northern 

California participation (Section 7). 

Priority 5.2 Additional participation from existing Project Agreement Members. 

Priority 5.3 New participation from prior Project Agreement Members that completely 

withdrew during a prior phase of the Project. 

Priority 5.4 New participation from agencies that have not participated in prior phases of 

the Project. 

Round 6 Priority: New or additional participation just prior to execution of the Phase 3 Project 

Agreement.     

Any established priority will be forfeited commensurate with a reduction in participation.  Priority is only 

valid for the participation commitment under the active Project Agreement, less any amount subtracted by 

a reduction in participation or project withdrawal.   

Additional rounds may be established by the Authority Board as the Project develops.  The current list of 

priority participation is included in Appendix A.  

6.7. PROVISION FOR ENCOURAGING NORTHERN CALIFORNIA PARTICIPATION 

The Authority desires to maintain a minimum threshold for participation by agencies within the 

Sacramento River Hydrologic Region equal to approximately 25% of the total water supply.  Should the 

participation from Project Agreement Members in this region drop below the threshold, the Authority may 

solicit additional interest from Project Agreement Members or agencies that are not currently participating 

in the Project, both of which are located in the Sacramento River Hydrologic Region.  The additional Class 1 

participation will be established within Priority 4.the current round of priority at the time the Project 

Agreement is executed (Section 6). 

7.8. CREDITING POLICY FOR ADVANCE FUNDING 

The Crediting Policy describes the process of how Contribution Credit is earned by each Project Agreement 

Member by fulfilling its funding obligations. Funding obligations will be established through the Authority’s 

annual budgeting process and will be apportioned to Project Agreement Members based on their 

respective participation.  Each Project Agreement Member will accumulate Contribution Credit equal to its 

cumulative funding for both Class 1 and Class 2 participation throughout all phases of the project. 

8.9. USE OF CONTRIBUTION CREDIT 

Contribution Credit will be utilized to determine any payment or reimbursement due as result of the 

following events: 

• Withdrawal fromor reduction in Project participation in the Project, as further described in Section 

1011; or 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 9 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

• True-up of Class 1 Cost Basis and Retirement of Class 2 participation, as further described in 

Section 1213 and Section 15. 

 

9.10. REIMBURSEMENT POLICY FOR CONTRIBUTION CREDIT 

The Authority will provide reimbursements8 under the following conditions.   

9.1.10.1. Reimbursements from Rebalancing Process 

Based on the Rebalancing Process (Section 1213 or Section 15) results, Thethe Authority will 

reimburse certain Project Agreement Members for excess Contribution Credit.  The Authority will 

only reimburse such members once all payments have been received from Project Agreement 

Members that owe additional funds as thea result of the Rebalancing Process.    

9.2.10.2. Reimbursements from Withdrawal from Participation 

A Project Agreement Member partially or completely withdrawing their participation in the Project 

will be reimbursed for its accumulated Contribution Credit based on the Provision for Withdrawal 

(Section 1011).  The Authority will provide such reimbursement once all payments have been 

received from Project Agreement Members electing to increase its participation to offset the 

withdrawn participation.   

10.3. Reimbursements fromLimitation on Reimbursements 

The Authority is not required to provide any reimbursement payment until the Authority determines 

that such payment will not have an adverse impact on the financial viability or overall 

implementation of the Project.  Partial reimbursement payments may be made based on available 

funding with the remaining amount maintained as a liability for the Authority to pay at such time 

sufficient funding exists. As funding from new participation (Section 14) becomes available, the 

Authority may pay down the liabilities on a pro-rata basis following the order in which the liabilities 

occurred (e.g. Phase 1 liabilities are paid prior to Phase 2A liabilities). 

9.3.10.4. Reimbursements due to Project Termination 

In the event that the Project cannot be completed or in the event the Authority has 

terminatedterminates the Phase 1then active Reservoir Project Agreement, the Authority will 

disperse any available Project funds according to the participation percentages as defined in the 

current version of Exhibit A1 of the then active Reservoir Project Agreement.  Note that this exhibit is 

a “living document” that has been updated as participation changes have occurred throughout 

PhasePhases 1 and 2. 

9.4.1.1. Limitation on Reimbursements 

 
8  Under no circumstances will the Authority finance any portion of any amounts that may be reimbursed. 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 10 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

The Authority is not required to provide any reimbursements of any kind until the Authority 

determines that such reimbursements will not have an adverse impact on the financial viability or 

overall implementation of the Project. 

 

11. PROVISIONS FOR WITHDRAWAL FROM PROJECT BEFORE THE START OF PHASE 

9.5.11.1. Withdrawal or Reduction Before the Start of Phase 2 OBLIGATIONSObligations 

A Project Agreement Member may reduce or completely withdraw their participation in Class 1 

and/or Class 2 within the window associated with Assumption 4.5 and the Phase 22A Reservoir 

Project Agreement. (Dated April 1, 2019).  In order to maintain equity among all Members, all 

changes in project participation will be accommodated through the provisions of the Phase 1 True-Up 

Process (Section 1213). 

11.2. Withdrawal Before the Start of Phase 3 Obligations 

 

Following Phase 2, project funding will most likely involve debt issuance and require full financial 

commitment by Project Agreement Members for Phase 3 and Phase 4. Consequently, the last 

opportunity for a Project Agreement Member to withdraw or reduce participation under this policy 

will be prior to execution of the Phase 3 Reservoir Project Agreement.  In order to establish equity 

prior to debt issuance, all final changes in project participation will be accommodated through the 

provision of the Phase 2 True-Up Process (Section 15).    

 

10.12. PROVISION FOR CLASS 2 CONVERSION TO CLASS 1 PRIOR TO THE TRUE-UP PROCESS 

Prior to the Phase 1 True-up Process (Section 1213), the conversion of Class 2 water will occur only when 

additional Class 1 water becomes available.  Project Agreement Members with Class 2 participation will be 

allowed to convert their Class 2 water in order of highest to lowest priority.   

The cost for each Project Agreement Member to convert its Class 2 to Class 1 will be equal to the difference 

between the Class 1 and Class 2 funding obligations on a per acre-foot basis, multiplied by the quantity 

(acre-feet) of Class 2 being converted to Class 1.   

 

11.13. PROVISION FOR REBALANCING PHASE 1 PARTICIPATION AND TRUE-UP OF THE CLASS 1 COST 

BASIS 

At the conclusion of the Phase 1 Rebalancing Process, the Authority will establish the final amount of Class 

1 available for participation and establish an equivalent cost basis per acre-foot (the True-Up Process). The 

final Phase 1 participation will be established as follows: 

• The minimum threshold for participation from agencies in the Sacramento River Hydrologic Region 

(Section 67) will be considered prior to the conversion of Class 2. 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 11 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

• Any voluntary change in participation shall be fully recognized prior to the calculation of 

conversion of Class 2 to Class 1. 

• Class 2 will be converted to Class 1 in order of highest to lowest priority until the final amount of 

Class 1 participation is fulfilled.  The cost to convert Class 2 water shall be paid by each member 

separate from the determination of the Equivalent Required Funding for Phase 1.  Funding 

associated with Class 2 conversion will be included in the Project Agreement Member’s cumulative 

Contribution Credit. 

• Any remaining Class 2 participation will be retired.  Project Agreement Members with retired Class 

2 water will be placed on a stand-by list for future participation based on their original priority. 

• Should the total amount of Class 1 participation be less than the amount available, the Authority 

will solicit interest from current Project Agreement Members for additional participation.  If the 

additional Class 1 participation is still available, the Authority will solicit interest from other non-

participating agencies. 

An equivalent cost basis per acre-foot will be established for all Project Agreement Members at the 

conclusion of Phase 1 as follows: 

• The Equivalent Cost Basis for Class 1 participation has been established by the Project Reservoir 

Committee as $48.50 per acre-foot. 

• The Equivalent Required Funding for each Project Agreement Member will be the Equivalent Cost 

Basis multiplied by the Project Agreement Member’s Class 1 participation at the end of Phase 1. 

• If the Equivalent Required Funding is greater than the Project Agreement Member’s cumulative 

Contribution Credit, a true-up payment will be due from the Project Agreement Member to the 

Authority equal to the Equivalent Required Funding minus the Member’s cumulative Contribution 

Credit.   

• If the Equivalent Required Funding is less than the Project Agreement Member’s cumulative 

Funding Obligation, a reimbursement will be due from the Authority to the Project Agreement 

Member equal to the Project Agreement Member’s cumulative Contribution Credit minus its 

Equivalent Required Funding.   

 

14. PROVISION FOR BUY-IN AFTER PHASE 1 

During Phase 2, if Class 1 water is available, existing or new Project Agreement Members may increase their 

participation.  In order the maintain equity among Project Agreement Members, additional participation 

carries a “buy-in” cost equal to the equivalent cost basis at the time that new or additional participation is 

requested.  The equivalent cost basis has been established by the Reservoir Committee as: 

Phase 1: $48.50 per acre-foot 

Phase 2A: $60.00 per acre-foot 

Total: $108.50 per acre-foot 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 12 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

Additional increments may be added as the project progresses through Phase 2.   

The buy-in cost for additional/new participation is equal to the Equivalent Cost Basis per acre-foot 

multiplied by the amount of additional/new participation requested less any reimbursement liability due 

from the Authority from prior withdrawal/reduction in participation.  The buy-in payment will be invoiced 

upon execution of the Reservoir Project Agreement. 

The additional/new participation will be assigned the current round of priority at the time the Reservoir 

Project Agreement is executed (Section 6). 

The Authority may utilize the buy-in payments to reduce any outstanding reimbursement liabilities from 

prior phases. 

 

15. PROVISION FOR PHASE 2 REBALANCING AND TRUE-UP PROCESS 

At the conclusion of each incremental Phase 2 agreement, the Authority will declare any change to the 

Fully Subscribed Project and Project Agreement Members will identify their preferred Participation moving 

forward in the Project. 

With respect to the Fully Subscribed Project, any available Class 1 water will be offered according to the 

Round 5 sub-priorities (Section 6). Project Agreement Members that increase their participation and new 

Project Agreement Members must “buy-in” to the Project at the current Equivalent Cost Basis (Section 14). 

With respect to the Fully Subscribed Project, if the total preferred Participation exceeds the Fully 

Subscribed Project, Project Agreement Members with a proposed participation increase will only receive a 

pro-rata share of their proposed increase.  If the total preferred Participation still exceeds the Fully 

Subscribed Project, the Participation of Existing Project Agreement Members will be reduced on a “last in / 

first out” basis according to the participation priorities (Section 6) and on a pro-rata basis within the same 

priority or sub-priority. 

Once the final participation is established for each incremental Phase 2 Project Agreement, true-up 

payments and reimbursements will be determined for each Project Agreement Member: 

• The Equivalent Required Funding at the completion of each incremental Phase 2 Project Agreement 

will be the Equivalent Cost Basis multiplied by the Project Agreement Member’s participation. 

 

• If the Equivalent Required Funding is greater than the Project Agreement Member’s cumulative 

Contribution Credit, a true-up payment will be due from the Project Agreement Member to the 

Authority equal to the Equivalent Required Funding minus the Member’s cumulative Contribution 

Credit. 

 

• If the Equivalent Required Funding is less than the Project Agreement Member’s cumulative 

Funding Obligation, a reimbursement will be due from the Authority to the Project Agreement 

Member equal to the Project Agreement Member’s cumulative Contribution Credit minus its 

Equivalent Required Funding.   

 



  Sites Reservoir Project 
  Funding Credit & Reimbursement Policy 
  2020 July 10 
 

 13 

  03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
 

12.16. FAIR SHARE FUNDING STUDY 

The Authority will prepare a funding study upon completion of Phase 1 to document each Project 

Agreement Member’s funding contributions, equivalent cost basis and Contribution Credit.  The “Phase 

1 Fair Share Funding Study” will summarize the conversion and/or retirement of Class 2 water and the 

true-up of the Class 1 cost basis at the end of Phase 1. 

 

The Fair Share Funding Study will be updated to document changes in Participation, Priority and 

Equivalent Cost Basis for each Project Agreement Member through completion of Phase 2.  



 

  
Prepared by Larsen Wurzel & Associates 03-03A Credit  Reimbursement Policy - Redline 
Solely for the Sites Project Authority’s Consideration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A – Participating Members and Respective Priority 



Sites Reservoir Project
Credit & Reimbursement Policy - Phase 2

Hypothetical Examples

Phase 2A 
Participation

(AF)

Phase 1 
Contribution 

Credit 
($48.50/AF)

Phase 1 
Reimbursement 

Liability

Phase 2A 
Contribution Credit 

($60/AF)
Participation

(AF)

Buy-in 
Cost

($108.50/AF)

Phase 2B 
Contribution 

Credit 
($100/AF)

Phase 2A 
Reimbursement 

Liability

Contribution 
Credit 

($208.50/AF)

Outstanding 
Reimbursement 

Liability

Example 1 - No Change in Phase 2B Participation
District 1A 5,000 $242,500 - $300,000 5,000 - $500,000 - $1,042,500 -
District 1B 5,000 $242,500 $(187,500) $300,000 5,000 - $500,000 - $1,042,500 $(187,500)

Example 2 - Increase in Phase 2B Participation
District 2A 5,000 $242,500 - $300,000 6,000 $108,500 $600,000 - $1,251,000 -
District 2B 5,000 $242,500 $(187,500) $300,000 6,000 - $600,000 - $1,251,000 $(79,000)

Example 3 - Reduction in Phase 2B Participation
District 3A 5,000 $242,500 - $300,000 4,000 - $400,000 $(108,500) $834,000 $(108,500)
District 3B 5,000 $242,500 $(187,500) $300,000 4,000 - $400,000 $(108,500) $834,000 $(296,000)

Example 4 - New Participation
District 4A 0 - - - 5,000 $542,500 $500,000 - $1,042,500 -
District 4B 0 - $(187,500) - 5,000 $355,000 $500,000 - $1,042,500 -

Phase 1 & Phase 2A Cummulative TotalsPhase 2B

MKivett
Text Box
2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,
Agenda Item 3.3 Attachment B




 
Top ic:  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 3.4 2020 July 16  

Subject :  Preliminary Participation Levels  

 

Status: Dra f t  Preparer: Robine t te  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Sta f f  Repor t  QA/QC: Brown Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Informat iona l  
Authority 

Agent: Brown Ref/File #: 12.221 

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  3 
 

Requested Action :  

 

Receive status update on prel iminary part icipation levels ,  outreach efforts  

related to maintain ing project subscr ipt ion in Second Amendment to  2019 

Reservoi r  Project Agreement (Amendment 2)  and the process of rebalancing 

part icipation.  

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background:  

 

Prel iminary Part icipation Levels :  

Soft cal l  results and part icipation agreement status  have been updated and are 

included in Attachment A. In summary:  

•  Based on in i t ial  resul ts ,  ful l  subscr ipt ion can be achieved.  

•  Based on projected, reduced part icipation f rom Sacramento Val ley ,  

approximately  13,000 AF may be avai lable.   The Reservoir  Committee and 

Authori ty Board in May 2020 requested that outreach be conducted to try  

to achieve the 25% goal  for  Sacramento Val ley part icipation.  

• Outside of  the Sacramento Val ley,  current part icipants identi f ied interest 

in 5,000 AF and pr ior  part icipants expressed interest in  10,000 AF of  

addit ional capacity ,  i f  avai lable.  
 

Outreach and Rebalancing:  

 

Staff has in i t iated outreach to exist ing, pr ior ,  and new part icipants in  the 

Sacramento Val ley to determine interest in addit ional capacity.  Exi st ing members 

Colusa County Water Dist r ict  and Wests ide Water Distr ict  are in the process of 

pol l ing for increased part icipation interest .   No pr ior or new interested part ies 

have stepped forward with in the Sacramento Val ley at thi s  t ime. Staff i s  moving 

to pr ior i ty  two and three of  outreach and wi l l  provide an update at the August 

meeting.  As a reminder, new and returning part icipants must  be approved for 

admiss ion according to Section 10 of  the Part icipation Agreement,  which 

includes a 75% weighted approval  at  the Reservoir  Committee and 75% of 

Authori ty Board director  approval  as wel l  as other  requirements.  

 

For reference, the approved pr ior i ty system i s  as fol lows:  

 

1.  The goal  i s  total  Sacramento Val ley part icipation of ~25%. Pr ior i ty  i s  given 

to current, pr ior and new Sacramento Val ley part icipants in  that order.  

2.  Exist ing Reservoi r  Committee part icipating members (with sub -pr ior i t ies by 

senior i ty)  

3.  Prior  Reservoi r  Commit tee part icipat ing members (wi th sub-pr ior i t ies  by exi t  

date)  



   

 

 Page 2  of  3  

4.  Nonpart icipants .  Pr ior i ty  for new part icipants outs ide of  Sac ramento 

Val ley.  

 

The process for a part icipant securing a posi t ion in the part icipation queue  

involves the fol lowing steps:  

•  Part icipants submit a letter of intent for  new or  increased part icipation 

pr ior to September 10, 2020 to secure a posit ion in  the queue. The letter 

should acknowledge the potential  f inancial  commitment. Attachment A 

shows the remaining contr ibuted credit  that part icipants can apply to pr ior  

part icipant payments .  

•  Staff pr ior i t i zes requests  based on the approved rebalancing pr ior i ty  

system.  

•  At the September meetings, the Reservoi r  Committee and Authori ty Board 

direct staff  to offer  capacity to part icipants in the queue .  

 

Schedule:  

 

The fol lowing i tems wi l l  be considered at the Reservoi r  Committee and Authori ty  

Board at their  month ly meetings:  

•  August:  Outreach update.  

•  September: F inal  part icipation levels  for  current  members  (executed 

agreements) ,  approval of part icipation queue, vote to onboard new 

part icipants.  

•  October:  F inal  part icipation levels  for  new members (executed 

agreements),  approval of the f inal  Exhibit  A to the Part icipation 

Agreement, invoices sent for payment .  

 

Prior  Action:  

 

June 18,  2020:  The Reservoir  Committee received a status update on prel iminary 

part icipation levels,  outreach efforts related to maintaining project subscr ipt ion 

in Second Amendment to 2019 Reservoir  Project Agreement (Amendment 2) and 

the process of rebalancing part ici pation. 

 

May 21, 2020: The Reservoi r  Committee accepted Exhibi t  B (2020 and 2021 

budget) to the Second Amendment to 2019 Reservoir  Project Agreement and 

directed staff to begin outreach to potent ial  part icipants based on the proposed 

pr ior i ty  system to explore interest in  Si tes capacity , i f  avai lable.   

 

May 5, 2020: At a Reservoir  Committee workshop, staff provided information on  

changes to the cash cal l  process and schedule in  l ight of  potential  economic 

impacts of  the COVID-19 natural  disaster  on part icipa ting member agencies.  A 

two-step cash cal l  process including a “Soft Cal l”  and a “Hard Cal l”  wi l l  be used 

to better plan for changes in part icipatio n. The due date of the f i r st  cash cal l  of 

$60/AF wi l l  be moved two months  out to November 1,  2020. The due date of  the 

second cash cal l  wi l l  be moved two months  out to Apri l  1 ,  2021 and wi l l  be up to 

$40/AF.  The Amendment 2  work wi l l  st i l l  begin on September 1, 2020.  

Apri l  17,  2020:  The Reservoir  Committee approved the Amendment 2 Work Plan 

for the purposes of  planning cash cal ls for part icipants  total ing $100/AF, 



   

 

 Page 3  of  3  

producing a draft  budget exhibit  to the part icipation agreement,  and 

developing consul tant task orders.  

March 30,  2020:  At a joint workshop, staff  provided  information that included a 

process overview of task order development ; an updated project schedule ; cash 

f lows for Reservoi r  Committee and Authori ty Board ; and prel iminary task budgets 

including assigned resources .   

March 19, 2020: Staff provided information on the goals,  schedule, cash f low, 

and prel iminary budget al location by subject assuming a cash cal l  of  $100/AF .  

Staff provided a prel iminary cash cal l  schedule of $60/AF due September 1, 2020 

and $40 due February 1,  2021.  

February 21, 2020:  Staff  provided information on three possible revenue scenarios 

and a task l i st  for Amendment 2 ( September 1, 2020 and ending December 31,  

2021) . Staff received di rection to continue to develop the $100/AF revenue 

scenario.  

January 17, 2020 : Staff  provided information regarding the proposed process for  

developing a work plan.  This  work plan proposes to focus on improving certainty 

related to project operations,  permitt ing, and affordabi l i ty ,  and to meeting the 

January 1, 2022 Prop 1 (WSIP) mi lestone to remain el igible to receive funding.  

Fiscal  Impact/Funding Source:  

 

The total  cash cal l  remains unchanged f rom the approved Amendment 2 work 

plan in the total  amount of  $100/ AF. With the Amendment  1B carryover funds i t  

may be possible to reduce the total  cash cal l .  However,  Staff proposes to keep 

the f i r s t  cal l  at  $60/AF and reassess the second cal l  currently projected at $40/ AF 

midway through the Amendment 2  work. At that t ime, any adjustments to the 

second cal l  can be considered based on the then current projections. 

Part icipating members can consider the second cal l  to be an “up to” amount 

s ince the Amendment 1B carryover represents previously unant icipated funds for 

the Amendment 2 work plan.  

Staf f Contact:  

Jerry Brown 

Attachments :  

Attachment A –  Prel iminary Amendment 2 Part icipation Table . 



Preliminary Amendment 2 Participation Table

Reservoir Committee
Based on preliminary soft call survey results as of 12pm Wednesday, 7/1/2020

Working Draft, Subject to Change

Participant

Amendment 2 

Agreement 

Status

Phase 2 (2019) 

Participation 

Level (Ref, AF)

Participation Level 

(AF) Staff 

Recommendation Variance (AF)

Participation 

Increase 

Interest (AF)

Antelope Valley East Kern WA 500  500 0

Carter Mutual Water Company 300 300 0

City of American Canyon 4,000 4,000 0

Coachella Valley Water District 10,000 10,000 0

Colusa County Approved 10,000 10,000 0

Colusa County WD** 11,975 11,000 -975 Possibly

Cortina WD 450  450 0

Davis Water District 2,000 2,000 0

Dunnigan WD 2,717 2,717 0

Desert WA 6,500  6,500 0

Glenn Colusa Irrigation District 5,000 5,000 0

LaGrande water district 1,000 1,000 0

Metropolitan Water District of 

Southern California

50,000 50,000 0

RD-108 4,000 4,000 0

San Bernardino Valley Municipal 

Water District

Approved 21,400 21,400 0

San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 14,000 14,000 0

Santa Clara Valley WD*** 16,000  16,000 0

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 5,000 5,000 0 5,000

Westside W.D.** 15,000 2,000 -13,000

Zone 7 Water Agency 10,000 10,000 0

Wheeler Ridge-Maricopa WSD 3,050 3,050 0

Pacific Resources MWC* 0 0 0 10,000

Total 192,392 178,417 -13,975 15,000

*Phase 1 participant, no survey response received. Interest expressed by a responding Phase 2 participant.

**Indicated possibility for higher participation, lower projected participation level shown

***Response is pending, full participation assumed by Sites staff

Page 1 of 1

MKivett
Text Box
2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,
Agenda Item 3.4 Attachment A




 
Top ic :  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 3.5 2020 July 16 

Subject:  Organizational Assessment Quarterly Update 

 

Status: F ina l  
Preparer

: Al i  Forsythe  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: S i tes  Staf f  Report  QA/QC: Jer ry  B rown  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: In format ional  
Authorit

y Agent: Al i  Forsythe  Ref/File #:  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  2 

 

Requested Action :   

 

Review and comment on the July  2020 Quarter ly  Update of the plan and schedule 

for  addressing the Organizational  Assessment (OA) f indings and 

recommendations.   

 

Detai led Descr ipt ion/Background :  

 

The approved OA Report  includes f indings and recommendations a imed at 

improving the overal l  effect iveness of  the organization. The Authori ty Board 

directed Staff to provide a plan and schedule for addressing the report f indings.  

Staff recommended a plan and schedule, including quarter ly progress updates  

to the Reservoir  Committee (RC) and Authori ty Board (AB).  The RC and AB 

accepted the recommendation at thei r  respective Apri l  2020 meeting s.   Thi s  

provides the f i rs t  quarter ly update to the plan and schedul e.   

 

Staff reviewed al l  i tems in  the plan and schedule and general ly  made the 

fol lowing adjustments to ref lect current ci rcumstances :  

1.  Status column has been completed to ref lect the current status for  each 

action.  

2.  “Target Board I tem Date” has been review ed and updated for some action 

based on the detai led Project schedule and status of project activi t ies .    

Staff  continues to work di l igently  to address the Organizational  Assessment 

f indings and recommendations.  As ref lected in the attached July 2020 update 

to the plan and schedule,  of  the 43 total  actions,  9  have been completed, 3 are 

completed and in on-going tacking status, 2 are part ial ly completed, 12 are in 

progress,  8  wi l l  be start ing short ly ,  and 9 are i tems that have been assigned to  

the RC and AB to complete (most of  these wi l l  be accomplished in  the Strategic 

Planning effort) .     

 

The next Quarter ly Update is  scheduled for  October 2020.   For the October  

update,  staff wi l l  be consol idat ing the matr ix  to continue t racking only  those 

i tems that have not been completed and group i tems by major category  to al ign 

with 2021 key mi lestones ( i .e. ,  Plan of Finance, St rategic Plan,  Permit Discussions,  

Revised EIR,  and Federal/State Involvement).    

 

Prior  Action:  

 

Apri l  17,  2020:  Accepted plan and schedule for  addressing the Organizational 

Assessment f indings and recommendations.    

 



 Page 2  of  2  

November 21,  2019: Darl ing H20 Consult ing,  Inc. presented the draft  

Organizational Assessment.  

 

August 26, 2019 : Approved a budget real location for  th e organizational  

assessment and execution of a sole -source professional services agreement with 

Darl ing H2O to perform an organizational  assessment.  

 

July 22,  2019:  Discussed working on an organizational  assessment plan to 

evaluate the st ructure of  the Si tes Project’s program management team, 

Reservoi r  Committee and the Authori ty.  

 

F iscal  Impact/Funding Source : 

 

Efforts to address the f indings and recommendations are being made within the 

Amendment 1B and Amendment 2 work plans.  No addit ional  funds are needed 

to support these efforts at thi s t ime.  

 

Staf f Contact :  

 

Al i  Forsythe 

 

At tachments :  

 

Attachment A:  Organizational  Assessment Matr ix  –  July 2020 Quarter ly  Update .  



2 0 2 0  J u l y  1 6  R e s e r v o i r  C o m m i t t e e ,  

A g e n d a  I t e m  3 . 5  A t t a c h m e n t  A  

 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 1  of  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

1.1  F Prepare an analys is  of  the major regulatory 
dec is ions be ing made regarding f low in  the  
Sacramento R iver and Delta  and determine f low -
re lated permit t ing st rategy w ith  ident i f icat ion of  
r isks .  

Permit t ing strategy memo 
was prepared by ICF in  May 
2019 and updated through 
CDFW meet ings in  
fa l l /winter  2019.  A revised 
vers ion that  wi l l  inc lude 
updates w ith  recent re levant  
changes is  in  progress.  

Staf f  w i l l  review pr io r 
re lated mater ia ls  and 
prepare the  ana lys is  
ident i f ied.   

H igh  October  2020 Al i  Forsythe  Start ing short ly .   Wi l l  begin  
afte r deve lopment  of  the  
Revised EIR/EIS project  
descr ipt ion  and ident i f icat ion  
of  the Prefer red Pro ject  in 
September.    

1.2  E Prepare an analys is  of  the major comments  
rece ived on the  draft  EIR/S.  Ident i fy approach to 
address ing those comments and working wi th  
spec i f ic  commenters .  

•  March 29,  2019 –  Jacobs  
provided a memo that  
inc luded Draft  EIR/EIS 
Comments  Matr ix,  Mas ter 
Response Topics ,  Key 
Comment  Let ter  
Summaries ,  and draf t  
In i t ia l  Responses .  

•  Apr i l  12,  2019 –  Strategy 
meet ings  were in i t iated  
with  ICF,  Rec lamat ion 
and Author i ty  to  address  
overal l  approach as  wel l  
as  spec i f ic  topics .  Based  

on these strategy 
sess ions,  an out l ine  for  
the F inal  EIR/EIS was  
prepared and an 
approach for  responding 
to comments,  inc luding 
master  responses to  
comments  was  ident i f ied 
and forwarded to  both  
CEQA (Author i ty)  and 
NEPA (Rec lamat ion) lega l  
counse l .  

•  June 5,  2019 –  ICF 
provided master  
response annotated 

out l ines and commenced 
prepar ing responses.   In  
addit ion,  the  Author i ty  
EPP began meet ing w ith  
key commenters ,  (e .g. ,  
CDFW, NRDC,  Humboldt 
County,  etc .)  to  c lar i fy  
issues of  concern.  

•  The work that  has  been 
completed to date  in 
responding to  comments  
wi l l  be  ut i l ized in  e i ther  
the complet ion of  a  F ina l  
EIR/EIS  or in  prepar ing a 
Rec ircu lated Draft  
EIR/EIS .  Assuming 
rec ircu lat ion  of  the Draf t  
EIR/EIS  is  the preferred 
approach for  moving 
forward based on the 
status of  the Va lue 
Plann ing ef fort ,  ICF is  in  
the process  of  prepar ing 

a s trategy/work p lan to  
be completed in  May 
2020.   

•  The Author i ty  EPP w i l l  
a lso  cont inue  out reach to 
Draf t  EIR/EIS  
commenters  and 
Agenc ies  as ef fo rts  move 
forward.   

 

H igh  •  Analys is  
completed 
under  
or iginal  
work plan 
and to  be  
updated 
Apr i l  2020 
with  
preparat ion 
of  EIR/EIS 
Work Plan  

•  Meet ings 
with  

spec i f ic  
commenters  
–  ongo ing 
throughout  
2020 and 
2021 

Al i  Forsythe  Part ia l l y  comple ted.    

•  Revised EIR/EIS Work Plan 
completed.   As  part  of  th is  
ef fort ,  a l l  comments  were 
reviewed and approaches to  
revis ing the  EIR/EIS  to  
address pr ior  comments 
were ident i f ied.    

•  Genera l  meet ings  wi th  some 
commenters  comple ted.   
Addi t iona l  meet ings  planned 
for post  September 2020 .  



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 2  of  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

1.3  E Ident i fy  lega l  requi rements of  the env ironmental  
laws  that  S i tes  wi l l  be requi red to comply w ith.    

Pre l im inary l is t  o f  permi t  
requ irements and other  
approva ls  were  inc luded in  
the Draft  EIR/EIS  re leased 
in August  2017.  

The pre l iminary l is t  w i l l  be 
updated in  the  deve lopment 
of  the Revised Draft  
EIR/EIS .  

Medium December  2020 Al i  Forsythe  Start ing short ly.   Wi l l  begin  
afte r deve lopment  of  the  
Revised EIR/EIS project  
descr ipt ion  and ident i f icat ion  
of  the Prefer red Pro ject  in 
September.    

1.4  F Estab l ish  a permit t ing f low chart  w ith  real is t ic  
t ime l ines.  

In 2019,  the Environmenta l  
P lann ing and Permi tt ing 

team deve loped and 
maintained an MS Projec t 
schedule.   

•  Env ironmental  P lann ing 
and Permi tt ing team 

along wi th  the  
Operat ions  and 
Engineer ing teams is  
current ly  deve loping a 
detai led pro ject  schedu le 
focus ing on act iv i t ies  
thru  the  end of  2021.     

•  Develop p lanning /  
permit t ing f low chart  and 
add in key dates  f rom 
schedule  ef for t .  

•  Present  summary 
schedule  and f low chart  
to Res  Com and Board 
and then t rack progress 

month ly  thereafter.  

H igh  •  Apr i l  2020 
Res Com 

and Board 
meet ings –  
Deta i led 
and 
summary 
schedule  
completed 
along wi th  
f low chart  

•  On-going –  
Track and 
repor t  on 
progress  

Al i  Forsythe  On-going Track ing.   

•  A detai led pro ject  schedule 

that inc ludes  act iv i t ies  
through the  end of  2021  
has been deve loped and 
was presented to  the 
Reservoir  Committee  and 
Author i ty  Board in the  
“Work Plan fo r  September 
1, 2020,  to December  31,  
2021” at  the Apr i l  2020 
Reservoir  Committee  and 
Author i ty  Board meet ings.    

•  A summary o f  the schedule 
was deve loped and 
provided to  the  Reservo i r  
Committee  and Author i ty  
Board at  the May 2020 
meet ings.    

•  Tracking w i l l  be  ongoing.    

1.5  E/F  Prepare analys is  of  the draft  EIR/S for  use  by al l  
of  the permit t ing agenc ies to  issue permi ts  upon 
the f inal izat ion  of  the EIR/S.   Ident i fy  schedule  for 
document complet ion.   

A pre l iminary l is t  of  permit  
requ irements and other  
approva ls  were  inc luded in  
the Draft  EIR/EIS  re leased 
in August  2017.   

•  Analys is  –  As the team 
works  to  deve lop a 
revised project  
descr ipt ion  and rev ise 
the Draft  EIR/EIS,  the 
permit t ing agency 
comments  wi l l  be 
reviewed in  response to  
Act ion 1.2  and a 
regu latory agency 
technical  team wi l l  be 
formed in  response to 
Act ion 2.4.  These two 
ef forts  wi l l  co l lect ive ly  
address the  analys is  
request  in th is  act ion.    

•  Schedule  –  See  Act ion 
1.4 for  schedu le  
deve lopment.   

Addressed 
thru  other 
Act ions  

--  --  See Status  fo r Act ions 1.2,  1.4,  
and 2.4.  



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 3  of  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

1.6  Execut ive  
Director  

Determine i f  Water  Commiss ion has author i ty  to  
grant  schedule  re l ie f .   I f  yes,  then fo rmal ly 
request  schedule  re l ie f .   I f  no,  then f igure  out a  
leg is lat ive  f ix  and t iming.  

The re levant  deadl ines  are 
spec i f ic  in  the  voter  
approved bond language .  
The cur rent  COVID -19 
s i tuat ion presents  an 
opportuni ty  fo r  poss ib le  
adjustment.  

Work wi th  Legal  Counse l ,  
and Gov’ t  Re lat ions  Team to 
review statue  in deta i l  and 
determine  opt ions.   Ac t ion 
plan be ing deve loped.  

High  May 2020 Jerry  Brown In-progress.   I t  was 
determined that  the schedule  
requ irements were  in  the bond 
language which means i t  
cannot  be  changed wi thout 
going to the voters .   A jo int  
le tter  w ith  other  WSIP grant 
rec ip ients  was submit ted to  the 
CWC for  cons iderat ion o f  

re leas ing addit ional  funding  
sooner.   A lso,  def in ing what  
const i tu tes  feas ib le  and 75% 
loca l  cos t share  commitment is  
be ing pursued.  

1.7  C Prepare an analys is  of  the pros  and cons  a long 
with  a s taf f  recommendat ion to  present  to the  
governance bodies  on whether  to  spend addit ional  
t ime and money pursu ing WIIN Act  funding.  

Extens ive  coord inat ion w ith  
Rec lamat ion has been 
conducted to  date  and 
Rec lamat ion ant ic ipates 
provid ing i ts  f ina l  review 
process o f  the i r  Feas ib i l i ty  
Report  in  Apr i l .  Staf f  has 
also  deve loped a st rategy on 
how to  br ing the  Federal  
Feas ib i l i ty Repor t in  l ine  
with  the  Value  Plann ing 
ef fort  by next  summer 
(2021).   

Staf f  w i l l  prepare  the 
analys is  requested and 
e levate  for  dec is ion -making 
to the Reservoi r  Commit tee 
and Board.   

H igh  June 2020 Kevin Spesert  Completed.   Federa l  Leg is la t ive  
Pr ior i ty and State  Leg is lat ive  
Pr ior i ty were  presented at  the  
May and June 2020,  Reservoi r  
Committee  and Author i ty  Board 
meet ings,  respect ive ly.    

1.8  --  Determine i f  there  is  a  v iable  s t rategy to  phas ing,  
which  could a l low for  addi t iona l  project  partners .  

The Value  Plann ing exerc ise 
has formulated potent ia l  
pro jects  around meet ing the  
needs of  current  part ic ipants  
with  the  opportuni ty  to 
expand in  the  fu ture .  

Reservoir  Committee/Board 
wi l l  be  se lect ing a prefe rred 
pro ject  in  Apr i l .   A l l  
a l ternat ives  have  the  ab i l i ty  
to be  phased should the  
Reservoir  Committee/Board 
chose to  do that.   

No Act ion  --  --  --  

2.1  F Deve lop an interes t ,  sc ience based permi tt ing 
strategy.  

See Act ion 1.1.   H igh  October  2020 Al i  Forsythe  Start ing short ly.   Wi l l  begin  
afte r deve lopment  of  the  
Revised EIR/EIS project  
descr ipt ion  and ident i f icat ion  

of  the Prefer red Pro ject  in 
September.    

2.2  F Determine when appropr iate fo r  project  s taf f  and 
governance members to  be involved in  the  
permit t ing process and at what  leve l .  

--  This  w i l l  be  addressed in  the  
strateg ic  p lanning exerc ise.    

--  June 2020  --  Completed.   A  negot iat ions 
approach for  permi ts  and 
operat ing agreements ,  which  
ident i f ies  the ro les  of  
governance members  in  the 
permit t ing process,  was  
approved by the Reservo ir  
Committee  and Author i ty  Board 
meet ings in  June 2020.    



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 4  of  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

2.3  F Determine i f  overa l l  pro ject provides  a “net  
envi ronmenta l  benef i t ”  beyond co ld water poo l  in  
Shasta.  I f  yes,  then work to  get  agency and NGO 
buy in.   

Outs ide  of  the  Refuge water  
supply and Del ta sme lt  
benef i ts ,  ne t env ironmenta l  
benef i ts  were  ident i f ied in 
the WSIP appl icat ion  re lated 
to co ld water poo l  
management  in Shas ta.   
CDFW expressed concerns 
with  us ing these net  

envi ronmenta l  benef i ts  to 
of fset impacts  in  the ir  2081 
permit  –  request ing 
“assurances”  that benef i ts  
would occur.    

•  Revised net  
envi ronmenta l  benef i ts  
wi l l  be  de termined as 
part  of  the deve lopment  
of  operat ional  cr i ter ia.    

•  Agency and NGO 
discuss ions  are  planned 
to occur throughout  

2020.   

H igh  December  2020  Al i  Forsythe  Start ing short ly.   Wi l l  begin  
with  the  deve lopment  of  the  
operat ions and bio logica l  
model ing ef for ts  for  the  
Revised EIR/EIS.    

2.4  F Estab l ish  a regu latory agency technical  adv isory 
committee at the s taf f  leve l  that  meets regu lar ly.  

A number of  meet ings  were 
he ld wi th  CDFW, USFWS,  
and NMFS in  2019,  inc luding 
the CDFW “60 -day”  process 
that inc luded techn ica l ,  
management,  and execut ive 
leve l  meet ings.    

A regu latory agency 
technical  team wi l l  be 
establ ished in  spr ing /  ear ly  
summer 2020 as  
envi ronmenta l  p lanning and 
permit t ing act iv i t ies  are 
restar ted.  In  addi t ion,  the 
interna l  S i tes  team (EPP, 
Integrat ion and ICF)  ho ld 
regu lar ly  estab l ished 
coord inat ion and work 
plann ing meet ings.  

High  June 2020  Al i  Forsythe  Completed.   Two groups were  
establ ished for  near -term 
act iv i t ies  and d iscussed at  the  
Reservoir  Committee  and 
Author i ty  Board meet ings in  
June 2020.   



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 5  of  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

3.1  D Quant i fy  and get  agreement f rom the  state  and 
feds as  to  what  the benef i ts  are to an integrated 
operat ion wi th the  SWP and CVP.  

Model ing of  S i tes  Reservoir  
operat ions scenar ios have 
assumed an in tegrated 
operat ion of  the  SWP and 
CVP.   Numerous  d iscuss ions 
have occurred w ith  DWR and 
Rec lamat ion on operat ions 
cr i ter ia and benef i ts .    

•  Development o f  a  revised 
operat ional  scenar io  is  
scheduled to  be 
completed in  June 2020.   

•  Model ing and ana lys is  to  
quant i fy benef i ts  of  the  
revised operat iona l  
scenar io  is  scheduled to  
be completed in  
December  2020.    

•  Sites s taf f  wi l l  be 
work ing w ith  Rec lamat ion 
and DWR throughout  the  
deve lopment  and analys is  
of  the rev ised scenar ios  
to both quant i fy  and 
obtain agreement on 
cr i ter ia and resul t ing 
benef i ts  o f  an integrated 
operat ion wi th the  SWP 
and CVP.   

•  Discuss ions w ith SWP 
and CVP should be  

memoria l i zed in draft  
agreements  and the 
Operat ions  P lan,  Vers ion 
1.0 in  2020.   

H igh  December  2020  Al i  Forsythe  Start ing short ly.   Wi l l  begin  
with  the  deve lopment  of  the  
operat ions and bio logica l  
model ing ef for ts  for  the  
Revised EIR/EIS.    

3.2  C Estab l ish  a s trategy to get s tate  and federa l  
agenc ies to  be  storage  investors .  

•  The State is  committed 
to be ing an investor  in  
the pro ject  through the  
WSIP program.    

•  Federal  part ic ipat ion is  
addressed in  Ac t ion 1.7.  

•  Bui ld  schedule  to  meet 
the current  requ irements 
of  the CWC WSIP to  
maintain  s tate current  
leve l  of  investment  

•  Cont inue to  pos i t ion  wi th 
CWC to  get  addi t iona l  
funding through WSIP 
should funds come 
ava i lable .  

•  Work ing w ith  government 
af fa i rs  work group to 
pos i t ion  fo r potent ia l  
funds  in a November  
s tate  water  bond.  

•  Address Federa l  
part ic ipat ion through 
Act ion 1.7.   

H igh  June 2020 Kevin Spesert  See Status  fo r Act ion 1.7 .  



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 6  of  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

4.1  H Review a l l  fac i l i ty  plann ing prev ious ly  comple ted 
by DWR to make certain that there  are not  missed 
opportuni t ies  to  in tegrate new fac i l i t ies  wi th  
exis t ing fac i l i t ies .  

The Value  Plann ing ef for t  
has taken a c lose look at 
pro ject  fac i l i ty  needs  and 
costs  and has  re-evaluate a l l  
of  the previous ly ident i f ied 
fac i l i t ies .  

Complete  the  Value  Planning 
Report  and adopt  a new 
Prefer red A lternat ive.  

High  Apr i l  2020  Jerry  Brown Completed.  Va lue  P lanning 
Report  was adopted by the 
Reservoir  Committee  and 
Author i ty  Board at  the ir  Apr i l  
2020 meet ings .   Addi t ional  
review of  appl icable  fac i l i t ies  is  
inc luded in  the  scope of  ef fort  
for Amendments 1B and 2 .  

5.1  B Once a schedu le is  deve loped,  then make certa in  
to inc lude  al l  ant ic ipated Board dec is ions that  are 
cr i t ica l  path to  projec t deve lopment .  

The work plan through 
December  2021 inc ludes a 
detai led schedule  that is  
near ing complete  and w i l l  
serve as  the  bas is  fo r adding 
in key board dec is ion  dates .  

See Act ion 1.4  High May 2020 Jerry  Brown See Status  for  Ac t ion 1.4  s ince  
cr i t ica l  path is  current ly  
envi ronmenta l  p lanning and 
permit t ing. 

5.2  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

Once a new schedule  is  agreed to,  governance  
members  need to  dedicate enough t ime to  keep up 
with  the  agreed upon pace of  th is  pro ject .  

--  See Act ion 1.4   --  --  --  See Status  fo r Act ion 1.4.  

5.3  Execut ive  
Director  

Get mater ia ls  to  governance members  at  least  a  
week in  advance that  c lear ly  ident i f ies  dec is ions to 
be made,  any analys is  be ing made in  support  of  
the author i ty s taf f  recommended dec is ions,  and 
other  opt ions that  were cons idered .  

Staf f  have  prev ious ly  
deve loped templates fo r  
Reservoir  Committee  and 
Author i ty  Board mater ia l s .  

•  Act ions  to  implement  a 
more inc lus ive and 
ef fect ive pol icy making 
process have  been 
in i t iated.  

•  Progress to  be eva luated 
as par t  o f  s trategic  
plann ing exerc ise.  

H igh  Apr i l  2020 
(with  further  
adjustments  
thereaf ter)  

Jerry  Brown Completed.  

•  Adjustments to  the  
Reservoir  Committee  and 
Author i ty  Board meet ing 
agendas  and staf f  report  

format  have  been made in 
response to  th is  Act ion .    

•  Cont inuous  improvements 
wi l l  be  made based on 
feedback and as ident i f ied 
by members and Au thor i ty  
Agents .  

5.4  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

As part  of  the new schedule,  each governance  
member  shou ld ident i fy  which  dec is ions  warrant  
s taf f  making a presentat ion to  the ir  ind iv idua l  
agency to  make certain  that  they are  in  
concurrence w ith the d irect ion  the  projec t t is  
moving.  

--  --  --  --  Fr i tz  Durst  /  
Thad Bet tner  

--   

Current ly,  the  focus  is  on 
complet ing the cash ca l l  
process.  



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 7  of  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

5.5  --  Use jo int  Board workshops and ind iv idual  agency 
meet ings to  walk thru  assumptions  and ant ic ipated 
outcomes so  that when a dec is ion  comes  to  
governance members for  approval ,  the informat ion 
wi l l  no t  be  new.   

Staf f  has  s tar ted to  u t i l i ze  
jo in t Board /  Reservoi r  
Committee  workshops in  
2019.  

•  Staf f  w i l l  cont inue  to  
propose and ut i l i ze  jo in t  
Board /  Reservo ir  
Committee  workshops  as  
appropr iate  fo r spec i f ic  
top ics .  

•  Ind iv idual  agency 
meet ings may be 
in i t iated by staf f  or  by 
an ind iv idua l  agency and 
tracked thru the  process 
deve loped under   

•  No addit ional  spec i f ic  
act ion  wi l l  be taken to  
address th is  Act ion.   

--  Ongo ing --  In Progress .   Workgroups and 
committees are  meet ing with  
the necessary f requency to  
support  ef fec t ive dec is ion 
making at  the  Reservo ir  
Committee  and Author i ty  Board  
leve l .  

5.6  C Review the  costs  and de l iverab les accrued to  date 
and t ie  fu ture  cash cal ls  to  ant ic ipated 
de l iverables .  

Staf f  worked to  t ie  cash 
cal ls  to de l iverab les in  
Amendment  1B e f for ts .  
However ,  some act iv i t ies  are 
more ongo ing bus iness that  
do  not  necessar i l y  resul t  in  
a de l iverab le .  

Draf t  Amendment  2  

Workplan inc ludes  
de l iverables  by service  area 
and explains  areas  where 
there may not  be  a 
“de l iverab le”.  

•  Draf t  2019 Annual Repor t  
prepared address ing 
i tems such as  
accompl ishments  and 
expendi tures  in  2019 .  
Wai t ing review  and 
comments  f rom Author i ty 
and s taf f  wi l l  f ina l i ze  

Apr i l  2020.  

•  Draf t  Amendment  2  wi l l  
be f inal i zed end of  Apr i l  
2020.  

High  Apr i l  2020   Joe Trapasso  In-progress.  

•  2019 Annual  Report  was  
approved by the Reservo ir  
Committee  and Author i ty  
Board at  the ir  Apr i l  2020 
meet ings.   

•  Reservoir  Committee  and 

Author i ty  Board approved 
the Amendment  2  Work Plan 
at  the ir  Apr i l  2020 
meet ings.    

•  Amendment  2  Task Orders 
are  expected to  be  
reviewed at the  August  
2020 Reservo ir  Committee 
and Author i ty  Board 
meet ings.   

6.1  A Determine process  and schedule  to  de l ive r cos t 
per  ac re-foot  and long- term debt  informat ion to 
pro ject  investors .  

Cost per  acre -foot  has  
h is tor ica l ly  been deve loped 
and shared wi th  members.   
In la te 2019, s taf f  
deve loped a “Cash F low” 
too l  to  he lp show long -term 
debt  info rmat ion.  

•  Cont inue to  present  cost  
per  ac re-foot  when 
discuss ing af fo rdabi l i ty.    

•  Update  Cash F low tool  
per iod ica l ly  as 

assumptions change or  
become outdated.   

H igh  •  Apr i l  2020 
–  Updates  
as a resul t  
of  Value  
Plann ing 

ef forts  

•  Future –  
Per iod ic  
updates as  
changes 
occur 

Jerry  Brown Completed.   

•  The Value  Plann ing Report ,  
which  inc luded updated 
cost per  ac re -foot ,  was  
adopted by the  Reservoi r  

Committee  and Author i ty  
Board at  the ir  Apr i l  2020 
meet ings.  

•  Costs  w i l l  be  ref ined w ith 
the Plan of  F inance 
expected to  be  in i t iated in 
September  2020 and be  
completed in  summer 2021.   



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 8  of  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

7.1  --  Determine process  and schedule  to  de l ive r how 
long-te rm costs  of  th is  project  compare  to  other 
sources of  water .  

Informat ion on costs  of  
other  sources o f  water i s  
di f f icu l t  to  obta in.   In  
addit ion,  the  “value  
propos i t ion”  for  each 
member  agency w i l l  be  
di f ferent  depending on a 
number o f  fac tors  inc lud ing 
ag,  M&I uses,  water  located 

north  or  south  of  De lta,  
length  of  agreement,  and 
r isks .   

As th is  is  d i f ferent  for  each 
member  and informat ion is  
di f f icu l t  to  obta in,  no  
addit ional  work is  proposed.  

Low --  --  --  

8.1  A Prepare a f inanc ia l  plan that lays  out the  potent ia l  
sources of  funding inc luding Ca l i fo rn ia  IBank.   

•  The scope  and budget  
for the  deve lopment  of  a  
f inanc ia l  plan was 
deferred by the 
Reservoir  Committee  /  
Board to a la ter  date .  

•  Exploratory 
conversat ions w ith  IBank 
date  back to  September  
28,  2017 .  Changes to  
the ir  program wou ld be  
needed fo r members to  
use th is  source.    

•  Develop f inance  plan as  
part  of  Amendment  2 .  

•  Cont inue to  ident i fy 
potent ia l  grant and other 
funding sources -  at  both 
the state and federa l  
leve ls  -  that  could reduce 
the pro ject ’s  f inance  
costs .  

•  Cont inue to  work with 
Water  Commiss ion on 

t iming o f  addi t iona l  Prop 
1 funds  becoming 
ava i lable ,  s ince  the  
or iginal  funding amount 
was less  than the amount 
they deemed S ites to  be  
e l ig ible  to  rece ive.  

Medium  Ju ly  2021  Joe Trapasso  Start ing short ly.   Th is  ef fort  is  
planned as  part  of  Amendment 
2.   

9.1  F Prepare a Board br ie f ing on the  comparat ive  costs  
of  mit igat ion f rom comparable  projects  to he lp 
determine  a leve l  o f  reasonableness.  

Mit igat ion cost  techn ical  
memorandum was prepared 
by CH2M Hi l l  in 2016. 
Addi t iona l  mi t igat ion cost 
reviews  were  prepared in 
October  of  2019 and 
February 2020 fo r the  Value  
Plann ing Process.   

Mit igat ion plann ing and a 
c lass  4  cost  est imate are  
scoped to  occur in  
Amendment  2  ( la te 
2020/ear ly  2021).  

H igh  Late 2020  Al i  Forsythe  In Progress .    

•  The Value  Plann ing report  
inc luded a review of  the  
mit igat ion cost  est imate  
and compar ison  to  o ther  
pro jects .  

•  Further ref inement  of  these 

est imates w i l l  occur  as part  
of  Amendment  2.  

10.1  Execut ive  
Director  

Determine process  and schedule  to  de l ive r 
informat ion regarding the cost  of  s torage versus  
the cost  of  y ie ld  in  the  context  of  deve loping a 
t iered pr ic ing approach .  

--  The approved Storage  Pol icy 
addresses th is  issue.   
Addi t iona l  work is  needed to  
al locate cos ts  according to 
s torage  benef i ts .  

Medium Nov 2020 Jerry  Brown Start ing short ly.   Th is  ef fort  
wi l l  be  par t  of  the  Plan of  
F inance deve lopment.  



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 9  of  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

11.1  B Once the governance  members  agree on a projec t 
schedule  then have staf f  only  focus  on scope  thru 
permit t ing and come up with  a budget .  

Work Plans are deve loped by 
staf f  and approved by the 
Author i ty  Board.   These 
Work Plans ident i fy spec i f ic  
tasks and pr io r i t ies  and 
Author i ty  s taf f  work to  
execute these plans  as  
wr i t ten.  

Draf t  Amendment  2  work 
plan comple ted and wi l l  be 
reviewed and commented on 
by Author i ty  in Apr i l  2020.  
Staf f  w i l l  make  necessary 
changes and f ina l i ze .   Focus 
act iv i t ies  thru  December  
2021 on those act iv i t ies  
ident i f ied in  the  Amendment 

2 Work Plan.    

H igh  Apr i l  2020 Joe Trapasso  See Status  fo r  Act ion 5.6.   

12.1  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

Hold team bu i ld ing sess ions to  bet ter understand 
how governance members process informat ion and 
make dec is ions w ith  the ant ic ipated outcome for 
governance members and Author i ty s taf f  to  agree 
upon the ir  respected ro les and respons ibi l i t ies .  

--  --  --  --  Fr i tz  Durst  /  
Thad Bet tner  

In Progress.   This  wi l l  be 
addressed as  part  of  the  
strateg ic  p lanning sess ion in 
Augus t 2020.  

12.2  Execut ive  
Director  

Author i ty  s taf f  shou ld work to  make Board 
meet ings more  of  a  f inal  s ign of f  or  endorsement  
of  a  po l icy  dec is ion  or  budget  approval .  

This  Act ion is  s imi lar  to  
Act ion 5.5.  

See Act ion 5.5.  --  Ongo ing Jerry  Brown See Status  fo r Act ion 5.5 .  

13 
(13.1  

to 
13.5)  

B Staf f  w i l l  document  and track al l  governance  
member  quest ions and prov ide  responses to the  
governance members.    

--  Staf f  in i t ia ted work on  a 
track ing tool  to track 
member  quest ions and 
informat ion requests  and 

update i t  on a regular  bas is .   

H igh  Ongo ing Joe Trapasso  In-progress.   Staf f  are  
document ing al l  quest ions and 
review ing the  l is t  in ternal ly  to 
ensure member  quest ions are 
addressed and appropr iate 
fo l low up is  comple ted.    

14.1  F Concerns w ith the s truc ture and informat ion f low 
from the  CDFW discuss ions.   

--  •  Hold more frequent  
Env ironmental  and 
Permit t ing Work Group 
meet ings to  provide 
updates on the CDFW 
efforts .  

•  Cont inue to  provide 
updates at  the 
Operat ions  Work Group 
meet ings on the  CDFW 
efforts .  

H igh  Throughout  
2020 

Al i  Forsythe  In-progress.    

•  Discuss ions w ith CDFW 
have been re in i t ia ted  to 
ensure the  coverage  wi th in  
the Revised Draft  EIR is  
suf f ic ient for  permitt ing 
purposes .    

•  A check- in  schedu le w ith  
the CDFW Director has  been 
prepared.    

15.1  Execut ive  

Director  

Prepare a discuss ion paper on what  lessons  have  

been learned by other  s imi lar  pro jects  that  can 
potent ia l ly  be  adopted for use  by the S ites  
Pro ject .  

--  Staf f  cont inuous ly  mon itors  

other  projects  fo r lesson 
learned and appl ies  them to 
th is  Project  as appropr iate .   

Low Ongo ing,  

verba l  
Jerry  Brown In-progress.   



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 10  o f  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

15.2  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

Create a jo int  s t rateg ic  plan fo r the Reservoi r  
Committee  and Board.  

--  Issue a Request  for  Proposal  
for a  St rategic  P lan  ef fo rt  
and contract  w ith  a Strateg ic  
Planner.    

H igh  December  2020  Jerry  Brown In-progress.    

•  A contract  fo r s trategic  
plann ing serv ices was 
approved by the Reservo ir  
Committee  and Author i ty  
Board at  the ir  May 2020 
meet ing.    

•  A st rateg ic  p lanning sess ion 

is  planned for  August  2020.   

16.1  C  Create a s trategy to  get  Rec lamat ion to  the tab le 
to descr ibe  what  the  local  investment  wi l l  do  for  
the ir  contracts .  

See Act ion 1.7.  Such as s trategy w i l l  be  
coord inated w ith  Ac t ion 1.7.  

High  June 2020 Kevin Spesert  See Status  fo r Act ion 1.7 .   

16.2  B Explo re the concept  o f  benef ic iary pays to 
accurate ly  account  fo r  the benef i ts  rece ived by 
each investor  and cons ider a t ie red pr ic ing 
system.  

The concept  of  benef ic iary  
pays  has been d iscussed a 
number o f  t imes.  Once a 
Prefer red Pro ject  has  been 
se lected and addit ional  
des ign /  use /  benef ic iary 
informat ion is  bet ter  
unders tood,  the concept  of  
benef ic iary  pays  can be  
exp lored fur ther.   See Act ion 

10.1.  

•  Explore the concept  o f  
benef ic iary  pays  as 
des ign and cost  
informat ion progresses.   
Ref ine and have  an 
agreed upon approach 
for Phase 3 (pos t 2021) .  

•  Governance  
cons iderat ions  inc luding 
potent ia l  t iered pr ic ing 

wi l l  be  d iscussed in  the 
strateg ic  p lanning 
exerc ise.  

Medium Late 2020 /  
Mid 2021  

Joe Trapasso  See Status  fo r Act ion 8.1 and 
10.1.   This  wi l l  be addressed as 
part  of  the Plan of  F inance 
deve lopment.  

16.3  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

Formal ly request  south  o f  De l ta investors  to  
ident i fy  ways  of  keeping nor th  of  De l ta  ag in  the  
pro ject .  

--  This  w i l l  be  discussed as  
part  of  the S trategic  
Plann ing ef fort .    

--  --  --  --  

17.1  B Perform ana lys is  to val idate  i f  increased 
partnerships would resul t  in  the  projec t becoming 
more af fordable.  

--  Dependent  on approval  of  
upcoming funding request 
results .  

Medium Apr i l  2020 Joe Trapasso  See Status  fo r Act ion 6.1  

18.1  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

Celebrate and memoria l i ze the cooperat ive 
re lat ionsh ip be tween nor th o f  De lta  and south  of  
De lta par t ic ipants  on the  Projec t .    

--  This  w i l l  be  discussed as  
part  of  the S trategic  
Plann ing ef fort .    

--  --  --  --  

19.1  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

Formal i ze the ro les  and respons ib i l i t ies  between 
the Res Comm and Board and look fo r ways to  
reduce  dupl icat ion.  

--  This  w i l l  be  discussed as  
part  of  the S trategic  
Plann ing ef fort .    

--  --  --  --  

20.1  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

Complete  ana lys is  of  the  legal  requi rements  fo r 
the Res Comm and Board governance.   Consu lt  
with  other Prop 1  rec ipients  that have  mult ip le  
partners  to see  how they are set  up.   

--  This  w i l l  be  discussed as  
part  of  the S trategic  
Plann ing ef fort .    

--  --  --  --  

20.2  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

Depending on the  resu lts  of  Act ion  21.1,  have  a 
pol icy  leve l  d iscuss ion to dec ide i f  the  Res Comm 
and Board make -up can be and should be changed.  

--  This  w i l l  be  discussed as  
part  of  the S trategic  
Plann ing ef fort .    

--  --  --  --  



 

Draft – For Discussion Purposes Only Page 11  o f  11  

 

Action Items and Schedule in Response to Organization Assessment  

Quarterly Update –  July 7,  2020  

Action 
# 

Primary 
Service 

Area 

Summary of  Action  Activities Completed To 
Date  

On-going and Suggested 
Future Activities and 

Deliverables  

Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Target Board 
Item Date  

Person 
Responsible  

Status  

21.1  Board /  
Res 

Comm 

Rules fo r membership on the  Author i ty  Board are  
not understood.   Get  a lega l  and pol icy  rev iew o f 
the compos it ion  of  the  Board to  inform a 
discuss ion and dec is ion  on Board compos it ion.   

--  This  w i l l  be  discussed as  
part  of  the S trategic  
Plann ing ef fort .    

--  --  --  --  

22.1  Execut ive  
Director  

Prepare a legal  ana lys is  of  what  are  appropr iate  
mater ia ls  to  be covered in c losed sess ion.   

--  The ana lys is  w i l l  be  prepared 
and presented to  the Res 
Comm and Board.   

H igh  Augus t  2020 Scott  Kuney  On schedule.   

 



 
Top ic :  Reservoir Committee Agenda Item 3.6 2020 July 16 

Subject:  Strategic Planning Session Agenda 

 

Status: F ina l  Preparer: Jer ry Brown  Phase: 2 Version: A 

Purpose: Si tes  Staf f  Repor t  QA/QC:  Date: 2020 Ju ly  16  

Caveat: Informat iona l  
Authority 

Agent: Jer ry Brown  Ref/File #:  

Notes:  Page: 1 o f  2 
 

Requested Action :   

Review and comment on the Strategic Planning Session Draft Agenda.  

 

Detailed Description/Background:  

The Catalyst  Group was hi red by the Authori ty  to prepare a strategic plan and 

faci l i tate a st rategic planning session. The consultant has reviewed the 

organizational assessment f indings and has conducted interviews with 

coordinating committee members  (Reservoi r  Committee (RC) and Authori ty 

Board (AB))  and key staff .  Based on th i s input,  the attached draft  agenda has 

been prepared for  the strategic planning session and the consultant would l ike 

the RC’s feedback before f inal i z ing pre-meeting activi t ies and plans for the day . 

 
In addit ion, before the meeting, the Catalyst team wi l l  be sol icit ing addit ional 

input regarding the st rategic p lan through an onl ine survey to be dist r ibuted to 

the Authori ty Board,  Reservoir  Committee, agents  and select consultants.   The 

purpose of  the joint  workshop i s to discuss and aff i rm the Authori ty’s vis ion,  

miss ion,  values,  goals,  and objectives.  

Currently ,  the st rategic planning session is scheduled to occur Thursday ,  August  

13,  2020. Due to uncertaint ies of  the COVID s i tuation ,  accommodations were 

attempted for  a north and a south meeting location  along with vi r tual  meeting 

accommodations.  However, only  a north location has been secured at this  t ime.  

Staff wanted to hold the meeting in -person but sees the upsides of  having the 

meeting sooner in l ine with ongoing project activi ty  outweighing the downsides 

of  wait ing for the COVID s i tuation to pass.  The consul tant wi l l  have a l ive 

faci l i tator  and v ideo capabi l i t ies  at  each faci l i ty.  The consultant i s  also 

evaluating options for  making the vi r tual  part ic ipation as interactive as poss ible.  

Thi s  wi l l  be a joint  meeting of  the RC and the AB  and members wi l l  have the 

option of attending in the manner they are most comfortable with .  

The st rategic plan document wi l l  be writ ten fol lowing the sessio n and a draft i s  

scheduled to be del ivered in September 2020.  

 

F iscal  Impact :  

 

Suff icient funds for  the strategic plan and faci l i tat ion are included in the 

Amendment 1B work plan.  Funds and contract authori ty  previously  authorized by 

the board for Catalyst and Darl ing H2O to assi s t  wi th st rategic plan 

implementation are being held for these activi t ies .  

Prior  Action:  



 Page 2  of  2  

 

May 27, 2020: Approved a consult ing contract wi th The Catalyst Group for 

faci l i tat ion services in an amount not to exceed $50,000 and approve a t ime 

extension through December 31, 2020 for  the exi st ing contract with Darl ing H2O.  

 

Apri l  22, 2020: Approved the Organization Assessment Report as fol lows:  the plan 

and schedule for  addressing the report f indings and  recommendations,  the 

scope, schedule and budget for strategic pl anning faci l i tat ion services  and 

release a Request  for Proposals for st rategic planning faci l i tat ion services.  

December 20, 2019:  Approved Darl ing H20 to expand the scope of  work  to 

support the recruitment of a  faci l i tator for St rategic Planning .   

 
November 21,  2019: Darl ing H20 Consult ing,  Inc. presented the draft  

Organizational Assessment.  

 

August 26, 2019 : Approved a budget real location for  the organizational  

assessment and execution of a sole -source professional services agreement with 

Darl ing H2O to perform an organizational  assessment.  

July 22,  2019:  Discussed working on an organizational  assessment plan to 

evaluate the st ructure of  the Sites Project’s program management team, 

Reservoi r  Committee and the Authori ty.  

Fiscal  Impact/Funding Source : 

None.  

Staf f Contact :  

Jerry Brown 

Attachments :  

Attachment A:  Proposed Draft  Agenda.   



Sites Project Authority Strategic Plan 

 

Joint Strategic Planning Workshop  

8:30  I. Welcome, Agenda Overview, Introductions — Jerry Brown & Charles Gardiner 

Workshop Purpose: Identify & affirm Authority vision, mission, and values and project and 
organizational goals to achieve our mission. 

Objectives: 

• Review and affirm Vision, Mission, and Values statements.  

• Identify, modify, and affirm the high-level goals to achieve an approved, funded project. 

• Identify, modify, and affirm organizational needs to lead the project. 

Introductions: Board and Reservoir Committee members introduce themselves and state their 
objectives for the day. 

Protocols: Review meeting process guidelines 

8:50 II. Review Strategic Plan Intent, Content & Progress to Date — Facilitator 

Strategic plan purpose and timeframe:  

• Sets vision, mission, values, and broad project goals and organizational…. 

• Will be used to…. 

• To be addressed today….and in future work. 

Key Findings: Review key findings emerging from staff and Coordinating Committee 
interviews/meetings. 

Discussion: Q&A on Strategic Plan, findings, and agenda.  

9:15 III. Review and Affirm Strategic Plan “Vision, Mission & Values” — Facilitator 

10:20 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ BREAK 10 mins ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  

10:30 IV. Review & Affirm Content of the Strategic Plan Goals & Objectives — Facilitator 

Goals and Objectives:  Present, discuss, and affirm 3-5 strategic plan goals for the project and 
organization. 

11:50 V. Review Work Task and Break into Work Groups — Facilitator 

12:00 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ Working Lunch ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  

12:15 VI. Breakout Session #1 – Identify Core Challenges/Needs for 2-3 Goals (Breakout Group 
for each Goal) 

What is needed to achieve the high-level project goals – approaches, relationships, teams, 
knowledge, deliverables, etc.? 

1:30 VII. Breakout Session #2 – Identify Challenges/Needs for the Organizational Goal(s) (2-3 
breakouts) 

How does the organization need to grow and develop to own and lead the project? 

2:15 VIII. Reconvene as Full Group – Summarize Outcomes & Agree on Broad Themes 

Reports from breakout groups. Refinement and direction to work groups/staff to refine the goals 
and develop implementation strategies. 

2:55 Next Steps & Adjourn  

2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee, 

Agenda Item 3.6 Attachment A 



2020 July 16 Reservoir Committee,  

  Agenda Item 4.2 Attachment A 

Status: Issued f or Us e 

Purpose: Informational 

Preparer: 

QA/QC: 

JB, JT, KMS, AF Phase: 2 Version: A 

Date: 2020 July 16 

Caveat: Subject to c h a n g e  Authority Agent: Jerry Brown Ref/File #: 1 0. 2 1 1 - 0 1 6. 0 0 0 

Notes:   Page: 1 of 2 

 

Topic: Sites Reservoir Project, Phase 2 

 
Subject:  Monthly Status Report          Report Period:      2020 June 

 

Monthly Status  Summary:  

The development of  the S i tes Project cont inues to make progress in  the cr i t ical  areas  

including the fol lowing act iv i t ies :  

 

WSIP  Funding:  

•  Meetings  were conducted with  CWC staf f  to evaluate a dmini st rat ive act ions  that 

could be taken to accelerate ear ly  funding to the pro ject .   Of these measures ,  

re lease of  retent ion has  been author ized and a revised scope of  work  that  

redis t r ibutes funds wi th in ex i st ing tasks  i s  being reviewed.   Combined these 

act ions would accelerate approx imately  $2 -$3M of s tate funding to the project  

in  the Amendment 2 work  p lan that was not p revious ly  ant ic ipated.   A th i rd act ion 

to temporar i ly  a l low h igher s tate cost  share i s  under cons iderat ion as wel l .   S taff  

cont inue to pursue further  def in i t ion  f rom CWC on the 1/1/2021 requi rements  for  

feas ib i l i ty  and 75% local  cost  shar e commitment.  

  

WIIN Act  Funding:  

•  See “Coordinat ion with Reclamation” sect ion below.  

 

USDA Funding:   

•  No update.  

 

Engineer ing:  

•  Engaged PG&E and WAPA in power  del ivery  discuss ions .  

•  Cont inued feas ib i l i ty  analys i s  and des ign of  project  a l ternat ives.  

•  Cont inue support ing data needs for  preparat ion of  the Pro ject Descr ipt ion.  

 

Coordinat ion with Reclamation:  

•  Began coordinat ing with Reclamation for  in-k ind work  associated with  Geologic 

& Geotechnical  explorat ion effor ts  in  support  of  the feas ib i l i ty  des ign .  

•  Cont inued to work wi th Reclamation p lanning and envi ronmental  teams on the 

Nat ional  Envi ronmental  Pol icy Act  approach, including ident i f icat ion of  schedule 

for  Reclamation review process  assuming join t  envi ronmenta l  d ocument.   

•  Provided updated mater ia l s  for  F inancial  Ass i s tance Agreement  appl icat ion for  

WI IN Act funding.  

•   

Environmental  P lanning  and Permi t t ing :  

•  Cont inued development of  the project descr ipt ion for  use in  the Revised 

Envi ronmental  Impact Report  /  Envi ronmental  Impact Statement (Revised E IR/E IS)  

and the B iological  Assessment .  

•  F inal i zed  the Revi sed E IR/E IS  Work P lan.   The Revi sed E IR/E IS  Work  P lan ident i f ies  

the approach and technical  work  (envi ronmental ,  operat ions and engineer ing)  



Monthly Status Report 2020 June Report Period: 
        

   Page: 2 of 2 

 

that wi l l  be needed to support  the analys i s  performed under Amendment 2 .   

•  Updated the CEQA project object ives  in  response to feedback to support  

a l ternat ives  se lected for  the Revi sed Draft  E IR/E IS analys i s .  

•  Completed approach to permi t  and agreement negot iat ions for  Envi ronmental  

P lanning,  Permi tt ing and Operat ions .  

•  Cont inued technica l  d i scuss ions and planning act iv i t ies  for  the water  r ight  

permit t ing and a 2020 in i t ia l  meet ing wi th state Board Staf f  

•  Completed approach for  Regulatory  Agency Technical  Work ing Group.  

•  Cont inued data exchange, water  qual i ty  and geotechnical  smal l  technical  

work ing groups to faci l i tate development of  those pro jec t components  for  use in  

the Revi sed E IR/E IS ,  B iological  Assessment  and S i tes  Feas ib i l i ty  Report .   

•  Cont inued technica l  d i scuss ions and planning act iv i t ies  for  state and federal  

Endangered Species  Act  and Clean Water  Act permi tt ing .    

 
Operat ions :  

•  Ref ined negot iat ions  approach for  work ing on operat ional  agreements wi th  the 

Department  of  Water  Resources  and the Bureau of  Reclamation.   

•  Progressed the development of  operat ions cr i ter ia that wi l l  be bui l t  into the 

models  for  use in  the  Revi sed E IR/E IS  and B iological  Assessment .  Cr i ter ia in  

development include determin ing the model ing basel ine,  model ing of  Shasta 

exchanges,  d ivers ion cr i te r ia,  water  demand, and coordinat ion with  the State 

Water  Project.  

 

Stakeholder  Engagement ,  Publ ic  Outreach & Real  Es tate:  

•  Planning and logi st ics for  the July  14th & 15th S i tes Town Hal l  meet ing s.  

•  Faci l i tated a project  update meet ing for  the Water  Educat ion Foundat ion .  

•  Cont inued engagement and out reach ef for ts  wi th landowners,  local  community  

members,  s tate and federal  e lected off ic ia l s ,  non-governmental  organizat ions  

and coal i t ions  of  regional  and statewide organizat ions  to int roduce the Value 

Planning Report  and the new “r ights i zed” project.   

•  Responded to landowner  requests  for  p roject  information,  faci l i tated 

coordinat ion act iv i t ies  wi th  local  government  agencies  and organizat ions and 

planned for  future landowner,  s takeholders  and general  publ ic outreach 

act iv i t ies  and events .  

 

Program Management & Adminis t rat ion:  

•  Provided update to Reservoi r  Committee and Author i ty  Board on project 

rebalancing process .  

•  Supported WSIP Funding St rategy and opt ions  for  leveraging State Funds v ia 

coordinat ion meet ings wi th Water  Commiss ion  Staf f .  

•  Implemented process and templates for  Amendment 2  Work P lan Task Orders  for  

serv ice area providers .  


	01-01 Draft Minutes_June 18, 2020
	01-02 Treasurers Report 
	01-03 Payment of Claims
	01-04 Reassignment of Staff - Resolution 2020-03
	01-05 Consulting Service Agreements
	01-06 Charter Documents
	01-07 BC Task Order Amendment
	02-01 2019 Audit Report Findings
	02-02 Water Rights Attorney Procurement
	03-01 Storage Policy
	03-02_Key Operational Analysis Factors Baseline
	03-03 Credit Reimbursement Policy
	03-04 Participation Outreach for amendment 2
	03-05 Organizational Assessment Quarterly Update
	03-06 Strategic Planning Session Agenda
	04-02A Monthly Status Report

